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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Review of Results

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$75.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Year”), compared to
a revenue of approximately HK$90.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2023. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
significant decrease in revenue in the provision of Debt Capital
Market (“DCM”) services, as well as the decrease in the scale
of asset management. The revenue from the provision of DCM
was approximately HK$5.5 million, as compared to a revenue of
approximately HK$39.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2023. Due to the difficult operating environment of China’s US
dollars bonds market, the provision of DCM services slowed down
during the year. The loss before tax for the Year was approximately
HK$83.2 million as compared to the loss before tax of
approximately HK$133.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2023.

The net loss after income tax for the Year was approximately
HK$83.2 million as compared to the net loss after income tax of
approximately HK$133.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2023. Basic loss per share attributable to owners of the Company
for the Year was approximately HK$0.49 cent (31 December 2023:
basis loss of approximately HK0.80 cent).

Economy Review

In 2024, the Hong Kong economy continued to expand, though
at a moderated pace, total exports of goods saw decelerated
growth, while exports of services increased further. Overall
investment expenditure shows a further increase. However, private
consumption expenditure continues to decline. The GDP growth for
the year is 2.5%, following a contraction of 3.2% in 2023.

In Hong Kong, the external environment has turned more
challenging recently, the Hong Kong economy is expected to
maintain its growth momentum for the reminder of the year.
Increased global economic uncertainties and escalation of trade
conflicts would affect the performance of goods exports. The
seasonally adjusted unemployment rate stayed at 3% in the fourth
quarter 2024.

The global economic slowdown and persistent high interest rates
cast doubt on Hong Kong’s economic prospects. The local stock
market stays soft during the first half of the year, following the US
interest rate cut in mid-September and the Mainland’s subsequent
announcement of a package of support measures, the local stock
market improved significant as market sentiment getting better. For
the Year, the Hang Seng index opened at 16,788 points and closed
at 20,060 points at the end of the Year. Although the government
take the measures like abolishing stamp duties and easing mortgage
restrictions, Hong Kong’s property market was remained quiet and
soft due to the persistent high interest rates and weak economic
performance.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Due to the high US dollar financing costs and intensified credit risks
of Chinese property developer, the issuance of Chinese offshore
bonds continues the downward trend and slowed down in the year.

Business Review

Brokerage & margin financing

The business is carried on through Instant Achieve Limited (“IAL"),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in Central Wealth Securities Investment
Limited (“CWSI”). CWSI is incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and are carrying on business in type 1 (dealing in securities)
and type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

During the Year, the commission income from securities dealing
was approximately HK$5.5 million (31 December 2023: HK$5.3
million) and the interest income from the securities margin was
approximately HK$25.1 million (31 December 2023: HK$9.2
million). The Group will maintain its prudent credit policy and
risk management approach with a view to achieve a sustainable
business environment.

Debt capital market business

The business carried on through IAL, which in turn owned 100%
equity interest in CWSI. CWSI is incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and is carrying on business in type 1 (dealing in
securities) and type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

During the Year, the Company has participated in 3 debt issues
with roles of joint global coordinator, joint book-runner, joint
lead manager or placing agent with an aggregate issue size of
approximately CNY$1,407.9 million as at 31 December 2024.
The debts are issued through either private or public offerings with
coupon rates ranging from 3.58% to 4.15% per annum. During the
Year, the provision of DCM services has recorded a commission
income of approximately HK$5.5 million. Due to the difficult
operating environment of China’s US dollars bonds market, the
provision of DCM services slowed down during the year.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
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Asset management

The business is carried on through IAL, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in Central Wealth Asset Management
Limited (“CWAM”). CWAM is incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and is carrying on business in type 4 (advising on
securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

During the Year, the Group engages in the provision of investment
management services on diversified and comprehensive investment
products including private funds and discretionary accounts to
individual, corporate and institutional clients. Currently, our
investment fund, namely the Central Wealth Investment Fund SPC
(“CWIF”), mainly focus on the China’s bond market as it is the
second largest bond market in the world and offers attractive yield
opportunities. It is expected that the market will continue to grow
and transform with the global economy. The Group believes it will
become more capital market oriented and open to foreign investors.

About Central Wealth Investment Fund SPC

CWIF is a segregated portfolio company incorporated in Cayman
Islands with limited liabilities in June 2018. CWIF has 3 segregated
portfolios as at 31 December 2024. The investment objectives
of CWIF are to achieve a high rate of return through capital
appreciation and seek fixed income returns with a high degree of
security.

Investment strategies

The investment manager seeks to achieve the investment objectives
by investing in fixed income financial tools, fixed income
instruments traded in the bond market, bond funds, money market
funds, bond initial offerings, structured products and derivatives.
The portfolios now mainly invest in offshore US dollar denominated
bonds issued by Chinese institutions. The investment manager will
seek to diversify the investment portfolios when opportunities arise.

Fund growth

As at 31 December 2024, the assets under management have
reached approximately US$210.2 million (31 December 2023:
US$234.3 million). The management fee income is approximately
HK$5.3 million during the Year.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Investments and Services

Financial investments and trading

During the Year, the Hang Seng Index starts at 16,788 points and
closed at 20,060 points. The Group recorded unrealized gains on
equity and debt investments at fair value through profit or loss
of approximately HK$3.9 million and the realized gains on the
disposal of equity, fund and debt investments at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately HK$0.02 million.

Money lending business

The Group’s Money lending business is conducted through an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, namely Top
Billion Finance Limited (“Top Billion”), which is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong and holds a valid Money Lender
License under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163 of the law
of Hong Kong).

Top Billion is principally engaged in carrying out money lending
business by providing secured and unsecured loans to its
customers. Through the business and social networks of the senior
management of the Company, Top Billion would identity and
be referred potential customers which would be corporate and
individual customers with personal wealth. Top Billion would then
assess the credit and risk of such potential customers based on its
credit policy and procedure.

Top Billion is operated and managed by members of its senior
management and under the supervision of the executive directors
of the Company, who have years of experience in accounting,
corporate development and/or financial management and have
overseen the business operations of Top Billion.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 11 outstanding loans
to individual customers with an aggregate principal amount of
approximately HK$406,911,400 and interest rates ranging from
5% to 7% and 6 outstanding loans to corporate customers with an
aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$144,700,000 and
interest rates of 7% (collectively, the “Outstanding Loans”). The
Company has complied with the relevant requirements set out in
Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with regard to the
grant and renewal of the Outstanding Loans. The Company does not
have any agreement, arrangement, understanding or undertaking
(whether formal or informal and whether express or implied) with a
connected person of the Company with respect to the grant of the
Outstanding Loan.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
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Further details of the Outstanding Loans are set out below: FRRBERERZE-TFHFBHINWOT -
Principal
Borrower BRA amount Interest rate Tenure  Security
(Note 1) (B&ET) PN = HE|R RS
(HK$’000)  (per annum) (months)
(FET) (8%) (R)
(Note 2)
(P 5E2)
Individual customers ~ ELAE P
A A 66,000 7% 36  Equity interest in unlisted Hong Kong entities
FLETERBEBORAER
B B 21,000 7% 24 Residential property in Hong Kong
BEENEEME
C C 15,000 7% 24 Residential property in PRC
PENEENE
D D 16,000 7% 24 Listed securities in Hong Kong
BBH LMES
E E 66,000 7% 36 Commercial property in PRC
S ENEEYES
F F 66,000 7% 36 Residential and commercial property in PRC
RENEEREEDE
G G 75,000 7% 36 Equity interests in unlisted PRC entities
FEMHEERORAES
H H 16,000 7% 24 Listed securities in Hong Kong
BB L MESR
I I 65,000 7% 36 Residential property in PRC
RESEENE
J J 623.7 5% 12 -
K K 287.7 5% 12 -
Corporate customers A B &P
L L 50,000 7% 24 -
M M 12,500 7% 24 Listed securities in Hong Kong
BB LWES
N N 15,000 7% 24 Residential property in Hong Kong
BENEENME
12,000 7% 24 Equity interest in unlisted Cayman Islands entities
FETHERSEENBRAER
(@) O 5,200 7% 12 Equity interest in unlisted Hong Kong entities
FEMEBEBNBAES
P P 50,000 7% 36 Residential property in Hong Kong
BANEEYE
Total st
17 17 551,611.4
Notes: B 5
1. The borrowers are independent of the Company and its connected 1. ERABBLINARAR REBEAL-
persons.
2. The principal and interest of the loans are repayable upon the 2. ZEEFNAe LA S AREIHAEE-

maturity date.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

The majority of the existing customers were referred by executive
Directors of the Company. The executive Directors have good
business and social networks and would refer potential customers
to Top Billion from time to time. However, Top Billion does not rule
out walk-in customers so long as they can fulfil the due diligence
and relevant credit assessment requirements.

Benchmarks for customers
Top Billion has the following benchmarks for its customers:

Corporate customers

No specific requirement that the prospective borrower
should be from a particular industry.

The prospective borrower can have its principal business
operation in Hong Kong, China or overseas.

No minimum amount of revenue/profit required to be
generated by the prospective borrower in the last 12 months.

The prospective borrower should normally have an sufficient
amount of assets enough to cover the loan principal when
they make the loan application. The assets can be in the
form of property, securities, or equity interest in an entity.

The prospective borrower should have a minimum operation
history of three years.

No litigation or winding up records.

Individual customers

The prospective borrower should be over the age of 18.

No requirement on the prospective borrower’s occupation or
minimum monthly income.

The prospective borrower should normally have a sufficient
amount of assets enough to cover the loan principal when
they make the loan application. The assets can be in the
form of property, securities, or equity interest in an entity.

No criminal or bankruptcy records.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
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Credit Policy and Procedures

Top Billon has set up a credit committee (the “Credit Committee”)
which comprises two executive Directors of the Company to
monitor the credit policy and procedures of the money lending
business.

The executive Directors who are members of the Credit Committee
are responsible for overseeing the money lending business. The
financial controller of the Company is responsible for working out
the preliminary terms of the proposed loan and is engaged in the
post-loan monitoring.

Pre-approval due diligence

Top Billion will take reasonable steps to establish the potential
customer’s true and full identity, financial situation and borrowing
objectives. The potential customer will be required to provide
further details of its personal and/or corporate background, proof
of repayment capabilities, proposed loan amount and repayment
method, proof of property ownership (if applicable) and bank
account and/or financial portfolio statements. Preliminary
verification of background information (bankruptcy check and
litigation check) of the potential customers will be performed.

Assessment and loan approval

For material lending transactions which constitute 5% or more
of the total assets of the Group, credit review procedures will be
conducted in accordance with the standard commercial practices
for the purpose of determining the ability of applicants in meeting
their financial obligations. Applications must in the first place,
satisfy certain credit requirements before being further processed
and reviewed by the senior management of Top Billion. Applicants
will be required to submit all information necessary for conducting
the reviews as requested by Top Billion, which includes but is not
limited to updated financial statements, assets and investment
portfolios of the customer.

The Credit Committee will review the due diligence results and the
loan proposal, together with the supporting documents, and then
finalise the loan amount and terms. Loan applications are assessed
and approved on a case-by-case basis in accordance with: (i)
the background of the applicant and whether the applicant has a
satisfactory record or any litigation record; (ii) whether the applicant
is a professional or has goodwill in his/her respective business or
social circles; (iii) whether the applicant has a good loan repayment
or credit record; and (iv) whether the applicant is a repeated
customer. If the outcome of the aforesaid background and financial
assessment is to the satisfaction of the Credit Committee, a meeting
will be arranged between the potential customer, a member of
the Credit Committee and/or the financial controller. During the
meeting, the financial controller will work out the preliminary terms
of the proposed loan.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Apart from the provision of collateral, various other factors such
as whether the borrowers are repeated customers, their credibility,
the amount of the loan, the tenure of the loan, etc. will also
be taken into consideration when assessing the credit risk and
determining the loan terms (including interest rates). The lending
rate should commensurate with the level of credit risk. The
stronger the financial position that the borrower exhibits and/or
the better the market conditions, the lower the applicable lending
rate. Other factors such as the cost of funds, interest rate charged
by competitors, the repayment history and length of business
relationship will also be considered. Interest rates are determined
with reference to risk factors, tenure of loan, borrowing record and
interest rates offered by competitors.

Risk control

In order to safeguard the repayment of loans and minimise default
risks, all of the existing customers are either business contacts
or referrals from the executive Directors which have either good
standings or long-term business relationships with the Group. In
this way, the Group can limit its risk exposure.

Loan documentation

If a loan application has been approved, the financial controller
will then issue a standard loan agreement with the terms agreed by
both parties for the applicant to sign. The applicant should provide
his/her identity documentation and address proof to the financial
controller for him to prepare the loan agreement.

Loan disbursement

The financial controller will not disburse any funds to the customer
until Top Billion is in receipt of the drawdown notice attached
to the loan agreement signed by the customer. Funds are usually
disbursed by crossed or personal cheques deposited to the
customers’ designated bank accounts as per his/her drawdown
notice. Loan disbursement in cash is not allowed, which not only
minimises fraud or theft but also protects the Group from being
inadvertently involved in money laundering activities.

Post-loan monitoring

Interim and annual review(s) will be performed by Top Billion.
Updated background and financial information of the borrower
will be obtained and assessed by the Credit Committee. This helps
Top Billion to promptly discover potential problems that may be
detrimental to timely repayment and allows Top Billion to adjust
collection strategies.

Loan renewal

When considering whether to renew a loan, the Group will
take into consideration (i) the repayment or credit record of the
borrower; and (ii) the borrower’s up-to-date financial strength and
background. If the above factors are not satisfactory and/or the
Directors are of the view that the risks and benefits are not properly
balanced, such loan would not be renewed upon maturity.
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Early repayment

Early repayment of the loan is possible if the customer provides not
less than one business day’s prior written notice. On the date upon
which such early repayment is to be made, the customer shall repay
the outstanding loan and all other monies outstanding (including
accrued interests) thereunder.

Repayment overdue monitoring

The accounts staff will check if each loan repayment is made on
schedule. If any repayment is overdue for more than two days, the
accounts staff will bring the issue to the attention of the financial
controller, and he will make verbal reminders to the relevant
customer. In the event repayment is overdue for more than seven
days after the verbal reminders, the financial controller will then
issue an overdue notice to the customer on record. If repayment
remains overdue for more than 14 days, the financial controller
may issue further reminders to the customer and/or consider other
actions.

Loan collection

The Group monitors the repayment of all loans based on each of
the respective repayment dates of each of the individual loans.
The Group reserves the right to require the customer to repay the
loan and other monies outstanding (including accrued interests)
on demand at any time during the term of the loan by giving the
customer not less than one business day’s prior written notice. On
the date upon which such repayment is to be made, the customer
shall pay to the Group the outstanding loan and all other monies
outstanding (including accrued interests) thereunder.

If the loan could not be collected within a reasonable time
thereafter, depending on the specific circumstances of the customer,
the Credit Committee will decide on instigating legal action(s)
to enforce the Group’s rights under the loan. Mediation may
also be considered to reach an agreement with the customer on
repayment. If the customer fails to perform their obligations under
the mediation agreement, the Credit Committee may decide on
applying to the court for mandatory enforcement.

In case where all potential means of recovery have been exhausted,
the Credit Committee will determine whether to write off the
problem loan as a bad loan. All loan write-offs must be approved
by the Board of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2024, the annual interest rate of loan ranged
from 5% to 7% (31 December 2023: 5% to 7%) and the term
ranged from 1 to 3 years (31 December 2023: 1 to 3 years). The
total gross loan receivable amounted to approximately HK$521.0
million (31 December 2023: HK$438.6 million). The Group’s five
largest loan receivables amounted to approximately HK$330.9
million or 63.5% (31 December 2023: HK$332.2 million or 75.7%)
of the Group’s total loan receivables. During the Year, the interest
income from the money lending business was approximately
HK$30.1 million. The Group will continue to maintain its prudent
credit policy and risk management approach with a view to
achieve a sound financial management and sustainable business
environment.

During the Year, the Group assessed and estimated credit loss
allowances (“ECLs”) for the loan receivables according to the
requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”)
9 issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The Group had recognised ECLs on loan receivables from the
money lending business amounting to approximately HK$20.6
million (31 December 2023: HK$0.1T million). The models and
assumptions adopted by the management in estimating ECLs are
related to the future macroeconomic conditions and borrowers’
creditworthiness (e.g. the likelihood of default by customers.)
Such assessment has taken regard of quantitative and qualitative
historical information and also, the forward looking analysis.
Related disclosures on loan from the money lending business are
included in Note 13 to this announcement.

Prospects

Looking ahead, Hong Kong’ economy will face slower growth as
challenges from China’s economic slowdown with high interest
rate factor. Hong Kong inbound tourism and private consumption
will remain the major drivers of economic growth for the rest of the
year. The external environment remains challenging and weigh on
export and consumer confidence.

Affected by high US dollar financing cost, downturn of the property
market and the weakening of repayment ability, Chinese offshore
bond market issuance significantly decline, especially in the
stressed property sector. The provision of DCM services slowed
down during the year. The Group will continue to actively seek
opportunities for business expansion and focus on the future
potential of artificial intelligent technology (“Al”) and technology-
related sectors. The Group intends to focus future investments on
shares in the relevant sectors of leading global Al companies.
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The complicated external environment will continue put pressure
on Hong Kong's export of goods, but the situation may improve
later in the year if the advanced economies continue to cut interest
rate as expected. The global economy remains unclear and we
shall not overlook the downside risks due to the expectation
of US interest hike and the threat of geopolitical tension which
continue to cloud the global economic recovery. In light of these
macroeconomic challenges, the Group will continue to stay alert,
but positive, to pursue its prudent investment strategy in developing
its existing and identify potential investment opportunities to invest
in leading companies of the Al sector.

Financial Review

The Group for the Year recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$75.7 million as compared to the revenue of approximately
HK$90.2 million last year. The Group’s revenue principally
comprised the interest income from money lending business of
approximately HK$30.1 million, interest income from securities
margin of approximately HK$25.1 million, commission income
from provision of DCM services of approximately HK$5.5 million,
commission income from securities dealing of approximately
HK$5.5 million, advisory income from asset management business
of approximately HK$5.3 million.

The Group recorded net other comprehensive gain of approximately
HK$1.6 million for the Year (31 December 2023: other
comprehensive loss of HK$221.7 million). It was mainly attributable
to an increase in fair value of approximately HK$1.5 million on
equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income (31 December 2023: a decrease in fair value: HK$220.2
million). As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s net asset value was
approximately HK$733.1 million (31 December 2023: HK$776.7
million).

Major Customers

During the Year, the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for approximately 6.45% (2023: 6.25%) and
28.44% (2023: 23.25%) respectively of the Group’s total revenue.
As far as the Directors are aware, none of Directors, their associates
or any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital had any beneficial interest in the five largest customers
of the Group.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the Year, the Group generally financed its operation with
internally generated cash flow, bank overdrafts, bank and other
borrowings and other fund-raising activities. The Group’s cash
and bank balances as at 31 December 2024 were approximately
HK$13.4 million (31 December 2023: HK$22.6 million).
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had bank overdrafts of
approximately HK$14.8 million (31 December 2023: HK$20.4
million), interest-bearing bank borrowings of approximately
HK$10 million (31 December 2023: Nil), other borrowings of
approximately HK$142.9 million (31 December 2023: HK$148.4
million).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s current ratio was
approximately 1.54 times (31 December 2023: 3.08 times) based
on current assets of approximately HK$449.7 million (31 December
2023: HK$810.4 million) and current liabilities of approximately
HK$291.8 million (31 December 2023: HK$262.8 million). As at
31 December 2024, the Group has no capital commitment (31
December 2023: Nil). The Group also had no other contingent
liabilities (31 December 2023: Nil).

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s gearing ratio was
approximately 22.9% (31 December 2023: 21.7%). Gearing ratio
equals total borrowings divided by net asset value as at the end
of the reporting period. The total borrowings of approximately
HK$167.7 million (2023: HK$168.8 million) includes bank
borrowings, other borrowings and bank overdrafts.

The Group’s bank balance, borrowings and interest payment are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong and US dollars. Most of the
Group’s revenue are made in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars.
Therefore, the exchange risks that the Group is exposed to are
insignificant.

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy
liquidity position throughout the Year. The Group strives to reduce
exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments
and evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage
liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group's liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets,
liabilities and other commitments.
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Material acquisitions

(i)

(if)

On 8 May 2024, the Company entered into the conditional
joint venture Agreement with FMC Cayman in relation
to the formation of the joint venture (“JV”) to develop
smart and new energy vehicles market including the
manufacture, design, research and development and sales
of smart vehicles with relevant after-sales services. After the
subscription of shares in the ]V, the issued share capital of
the JV shall be HK$50 million, which shall be owned as to
90% by the Company and as to 10% by FMC Cayman. The
Company shall be responsible for arranging further financing
for the JV of RMB250 million for its working capital and
business development. FMC shall license the BYTON
trademark together with other relevant intellectual properties
right to the JV company. The details of which were disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 8 May 2024.
As the condition precedents to the agreement cannot be
fulfilled on or before the long stop date of the agreement, the
agreement has on 24 January 2025 expired and terminated
in accordance with its terms. No consideration was paid by
the Group under the agreement.

On 31 December 2024, the Central Wealth Infrastructure
Investment Limited (purchaser), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into the conditional sales and
purchase agreement with each of the vendors respectively,
namely Chinese Top Asset Management Holdings Limited
and Bright Joy Investment Limited. Pursuant to which the
purchaser agreed to purchase 100% of equity interest in
Chinese Top Asset Management Holdings Limited for a total
consideration of HK$60 million and 51% of equity interest
in Bright Joy Investment Limited for a total consideration of
HK$60 million. The details of which were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 31 December 2024.

Events after the Reporting Period

(i)

16

On 31 December 2024, an independent vendor (“Party
A”), a Hong Kong citizen and merchant and Central Wealth
Infrastructure Investment Limited (“CWIIL”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into the agreement
pursuant to which the CWIIL has agreed to purchase and
Party A has agreed to sell the sale shares, representing 100%
of the issued share capital of the target company (“Target
Company 1”) for a total Consideration of HK$60,000,000.
Target Company 1 is a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability and is principally engaged in
investment holdings including but not limited to investments
in listed and unlisted securities. The Consideration of
HK$60,000,000 for the sale and purchase of the sale shares
shall be settled by CWIIL upon completion in cash or in
such other manner as may be agreed by the CWIIL.

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FZ&BZREMRA A
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(if)

Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

The completion of Target Company 1 shall be conditional
upon: (i) CWIIL being satisfied with the results of the due
diligence review on Target Company 1; (ii) the warranties
given by Party A under the agreement remaining true,
accurate and complete in all material respects; and (iii) all
necessary consents and approvals required to be obtained
on the part of CWIIL in respect of the agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereby having been obtained. If
the conditions have not been fulfilled (or waived by CWIIL
as the case may be) on or before 31 March 2025, or such
later date as Party A and CWIIL may agree, the agreement
shall cease and neither party to the agreement shall have
any obligations and liabilities towards each other thereunder
save for any antecedent breaches of the terms thereof.

The acquisition of Target Company 1 has been completed
on 25 February 2025, target Company 1 will be accounted
as subsidiary of the Company and its financial results will
be consolidated with the Group for the year ending 31
December 2025.

Details of the transactions were disclosure in announcement
of the Company dated 31 December 2024.

On 31 December 2024, an independent vendor (“Party B”),
a merchant and CWIIL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into the agreement pursuant to which
the CWIIL has agreed to purchase and Party B has agreed
to sell the sale shares, representing 51% of the issued share
capital of the target company (“Target Company 2”) for a
total Consideration of HK$60,000,000. Target Company 2 is
a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability
and is principally engaged in investment holdings including
but not limited to investments in listed and unlisted
securities. The Consideration of HK$60,000,000 for the sale
and purchase of the sale shares shall be settled by CWIIL
upon completion in cash or in such other manner as may be
agreed by the CWIIL.

The completion of Target Company 2 shall be conditional
upon: (i) CWIIL being satisfied with the results of the due
diligence review on Target Company 2; (ii) the warranties
given by Party B under the agreement remaining true,
accurate and complete in all material respects; and (iii) all
necessary consents and approvals required to be obtained
on the part of CWIIL in respect of the agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereby having been obtained. If
the conditions have not been fulfilled (or waived by CWIIL
as the case may be) on or before 31 March 2025, or such
later date as Party B and CWIIL may agree, the agreement
shall cease and neither party to the agreement shall have
any obligations and liabilities towards each other thereunder
save for any antecedent breaches of the terms thereof.

(ii)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The acquisition of Target Company 2 has been completed
on 26 February 2025, target Company 2 will be accounted
as subsidiary of the Company and its financial results will
be consolidated with the Group for the year ending 31
December 2025.

Details of the transactions were disclosure in announcement
of the Company dated 31 December 2024.

Details of Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had pledged certain listed
equity investments of approximately HK$456.2 million (31
December 2023: HK$399.3 million) to secure the bank and other
borrowings.

Employment, Training and Development

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 36 employees.
The Group is committed to staff training and development and
structured training programs for all employees. Remuneration
packages are maintained at a competitive level and reviewed on a
periodic basis. Bonuses and share options are awarded to certain
employees according to individual performance and industry
practice.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries during the year consisted of
securities dealing business, trading of debts and equity investments
and money lending business.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the year ended 31 December
2023, an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial
key performance indicators and discussion on the Company’s
environmental policies and performances and the relationships with
its key stakeholders, are included in the “Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance
Report” and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report. The review forms part of this directors’ report.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2024 and
the financial position of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 232.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements, is set out below. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.
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Results

Revenue

LN

(Loss)/profit before income tax
Income tax expense

BEEHA (B8) /8
FIERAX

(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BR) /&M
Assets and liabilities

Total assets EENE

Total liabilities aERE

Net assets BEFE

2024
—R-mE
HK$'000
TEx

75,708
(83,163)

(83,163)

2024
k- Sud -3
HK$'000
TER

1,027,697
294,570

733,127
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Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1-HLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-=EF C-—E--f —E--% C—EC-EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TER TR THER
(restated)
(&)
90,160 277,840 243,841 669,850
(133,756) (103,318) (369,459) 35,385
(95) (2,738) (1,807) (7,627)
(133,851) (106,056) (371,266) 27,758
EEHEE
As at 31 December
RTt=ZA=+-8H
2023 2022 2021 2020
ZE-zZf CZB-ZE CZE--f CZZC-EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THER THER
(restated)
(&)
1,040,024 2,053,900 1,828,312 2,552,480
263,340 948,826 705,903 1,275,206
776,684 1,105,074 1,122,409 1,277,274




Share Capital
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
note 36 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed

Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities (including
sale of treasury shares) during the year. As at 31 December 2024,
there were no treasury shares held by the Company.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2024, the Company had no reserves available
for cash distribution and distribution in specie. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account and capital reserve, with an
aggregate balance of approximately HK$4,792,550,000 may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The aggregate revenue during the year attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers was 28.44% of the Group’s total revenue, of
which 6.45% was made to the largest customer.

There was no single supplier that contributed to 10% or more of the
Group's total purchase during the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the above customer or supplier.
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Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are as follows:

Executive directors:
Mr. Lo Siu Kit
(appointed on 29 April 2024 and resigned on 31 July 2024)
Mr. Chen Xiaodong
Mr. Li Jing (resigned on 30 May 2024)
Mr. Yu Qingrui
Mr. Wang Jinsong (appointed on 19 December 2024)
Ms. Song Caini (retired on 18 June 2024)
Mr. Chen Hongjin (retired on 18 June 2024)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (resigned on 22 July 2024)
Mr. Wu Ming

Ms. Li Meifeng

Mr. Chan Ngai Fan (appointed on 22 July 2024)

Pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Yu
Qingrui, Mr. Wang Jinsong, Mr. Chan Ngai Fan and Mr. Wu Ming
shall retire at the 2025 annual general meeting (the “2025 AGM”)
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the said
meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company and the Company still considers them to be independent
as at the date of this report pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

Directors’ Biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 73 to 75 of the annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts
Each of Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Mr. Yu Qingrui and Mr. Wang Jinsong
has a service contract with the Company without any fixed term.

Each of Mr. Chan Ngai Fan, Mr. Wu Ming and Ms. Li Meifeng has
been appointed for a fixed term of one year.
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All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment, other than statutory compensation.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors” Remuneration

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders” approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to directors” duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,

Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”,
no director nor a connected entity of a director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed
under the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” in this
directors’ report and note 39 to the financial statements, no equity-
linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered
into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year.
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Share Option Schemes

A share option scheme (the “2013 Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted and became effective on 27 September 2013. The
Company terminated the 2013 Share Option Scheme on 8 June
2023. No further share option has been or will be granted under
the 2013 Share Option Scheme since its termination, while the
share options granted prior to such termination shall continue to be
valid and exercisable in accordance with the 2013 Share Option
Scheme.

The Company has adopted a new share option scheme pursuant
to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules on 8 June 2023 (the “2023
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants (including but not limited to
the directors and employees of the Group) who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations.

As at 1 January 2024, the number of options available for grant
under the mandate limit and the service provider sublimit of the
2023 Share Option Scheme were 157,595,046.

At the 2024 annual general meeting of the Company, the scheme
mandate limit was refreshed and approved by the then shareholders
such that the total number of shares which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the share
option scheme and any other share option scheme(s) as may
from time to time be adopted by the Company must not exceed
1,723,404,550 shares.

As at 31 December 2024, the number of share options available for
grant under the mandate limit and the service provider sublimit of
the 2023 Share Option Scheme were nil.
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A summary of the movements of the 2013 Share Option Scheme RAFE  —E—=FEREASIR_-_ZT-_=4F
and 2023 Share Option Scheme during the Year is set out as FERREETE|Z BB T
follows:
Closing price of the
Company's shares ~ Weighted average
Number of immediately before  closing price of the
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of  share options the date of share ~ Company's shares
share options ~ share options ~ share options  share options ~ share options outstanding at Exercise price of options granted  immediately before
Narme or category outstanding at  granted during  exercised during lapsed during cancelled during 31 December  Date of grant Exercise period of share options during the Year  the exercise dates
of participant 1 January 2024 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2024 of share options share options (HKS per share) (HKS per share) (HKS per share)
REREEER
R=2-RE H-2-mE RrBRERAE  RRORASE
-A-B REEE REEE REEE REEE TZA=1-B ARARH ARARHH
SRERE HRTE Rt et x4 HEH HAfRZ BREGREE HETE  NETSURE
EE ZBRERE flvd 6 BREEA ERERE EREEE BREER RUBRERH BREGERE (8R#ER) (8RER) (BRER)
Director
iz
Chen Xiaodong 159,600,000 - (159,600,000) - - - 20062022 20/06/2022 - 19/06/2024" 0024 - 0.034
RER I “ECCERACTH
~AZtR “BERATARY
167,570,000 - - - - 167,570,000  13/92023 13/9/2024 - 12/9/2025% 0.027 - -
“ECcE “ECREAATZR
AAT=ER ECECRFAATIAY
327,170,000 - (159,600,000) - - 167,570,000
Yu Qingrui 159,600,000 - (159,600,000 - - - 200602022 20/06/2022 - 19/06/2024" 0.024 - 0.023
REH cEIIF
~AZt1H ECRCMERATAAY
167,570,000 - - - - 167,570,000 13/92023 13/9/2024 - 12/9/2025% 0027 - -
i ZE-REAATER
AAT=EH ECRCRFAATIAY
327,170,000 - (159,600,000) - - 167,570,000
Song Caini” 159,600,000 - - (159,600,000 - - 20062022 20/06/2022 - 19/06/2024" 0024 - -
RRR" Sk “E-ZFERRZTA
~AZtR ECRCRERATAAY
159,600,000 - - (159,600,000 - -
Other employee
L4
In aggregate 1,182,990,000 - - - - 1,182,990,000  13/9/2023 13/9/2024 - 12/9/2025% 0027 - -
ait I et “E-REAATER
NATZR ECRCREAATCAY
- 157595,046%  (157,595,046) - - - 2832024 From the Vesting Date 0.024 0.025 0.034
t0 27/3/2029"
“Ropf gEERHE
=Azt/A ECRCNFZACTHAY
- 1,723,404,550° (47,704,550) - - 1,675700,000 2 October 2024 From the Vesting Date to 0.021 0.016 0.017
111012029
—TopE AEBAHEE
tAzA ZECAETA-AY
1,182,990,000  1,880,999,596  (205,299,596) - - 2,858,690,000
Total 1,996,930,000  1,880,999,596  (524,499,596)  (159,600,000) - 3,193,830,000
&t
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The share options shall be vested on the date of grant.

The share options shall be vested on the day falling twelve months
from the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise
period.

The share options shall be vested on the earlier of (1) the day of
fulfillment of the performance target by the grantees to be appraised
and confirmed by the Board; or (2) the day falling twelve months from
the date of grant (the “Vesting Date”).

The grantees shall have to meet the performance target set up by the
Company with referencing to the current circumstances of the Group.
The Board will determine whether the grantees meet the individual
performance target. For more details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 28 March 2024.

The grantees shall have to meet the performance target set up by the
Company with referencing to the current circumstances of the Group.
The Board will determine whether the grantees meet the individual
performance target. For more details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 2 October 2024.

The number of Shares that may be issued in respect of options granted
under the 2023 Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2024 divided by the weighted average number of Shares in
issue (excluding treasury shares) for the year was 0.2.

Ms. Song Caini retired as an executive director of the Company at the
conclusion of the Company’s annual general meeting held on 18 June
2024.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2024, the interests of the directors of the
Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

Long position in underlying shares of the Company — physically
settled unlisted equity derivatives
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2ERMzED RREEMBTAERENTE
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AETETA

Percentage* of
the underlying
shares over
the Company’s
issued share

Number of
underlying shares
in respect of the
share options

Name of director Capacity granted capital

P45 B AR A B R 215

s RiEE RAT S EIT

EEHA 51 ®RHEE BAB DL

Chen Xiaodong Beneficial owner 167,570,000 0.97%
PR R ER¥EAA

Yu Qingrui Beneficial owner 167,570,000 0.97%
REH EnlEAA

Details of the share options granted by the Company are set out
under the section “Share Option Schemes” in this report.

* The percentage represents the number of underlying shares interested
divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31
December 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he/she was deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required to be entered into the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

BRAARRABMREBEREZFEENARE B
PeEstEll —&ne

* Bl ERAEENAEBROBBBRALAF
RZB-NE+-A=+—REETRHHKE -

BRENFIEBEEN RZF_NMF+_A=+—
B ARRZEFXETBITRABHRENRALA
SAEAIREER (EE RESF RAEERPIZEXVEL)
Z By AR K E ST A EARER S R
HIEEAIEXYV BE7RFE8N R AME RN R A N
BRzRmiRR (BRREES KRS EM
CHERERERUERRE ZRBENARR)
HABHARRARIEEZ LB GHIE35216M
FEZECMARREFETIREAMNEG N
NE| R R P BB SOR R

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 £33 27



Report of the Directors

EXgWE

Directors” Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company” and “Share Option
Schemes” above and in the share option scheme disclosures in
note 39 to the financial statements, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any of the directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2024 the following parties had interests of
5% or more in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or as the Company is aware:

EERERDIES ZER

bt [EERARA R RAABRD 2 xS

K [EEMIRER & BT AR B |RERM FE39AE
BREFIRBEEMMBEEN RAFEAR
BEATMEFIAREZTALBRBIRARFTL
REAEBEARRRBROHESFME AN S
Z PR R F BT E AT R F AR o LS

AREHEAEFE QAW ET L EM R B
FEFANTMEMEABEEAZSERN-

EFERRRAAFRG RAEBERD
Z

R-B-_WE+=A=1—R BEAATRE
% RGN E336 M EFE 2 B RMATH
RBA DA E - FIIEHRADF 2 R4 AR
B AR (5 o B 5% A b 2 s

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company REQAREBRZHR
Number of Percentage* of
Name of substantial ordinary shares the Company’s
shareholder Capacity Note interested issued share capital
BEREZZ EARRE BT
TERREB 51 P EE EERHE L NEE
Golden Horse Hong Kong Beneficial owner (Note) 881,971,316 5.10%
Investment Limited
EHEBREARATA BafaA (M)
Future World Holdings Limited Interests held by a controlled 881,971,316 5.10%

corporation (Note)

AR FIZRER A A

Note: The issued share capital of Golden Horse Hong Kong Investment
Limited was wholly owned by Future World Holdings Limited.
Accordingly, Future World Holdings Limited was deemed to be
interested in these shares of the Company which was deemed to be
interested by Golden Horse Hong Kong Investment Limited pursuant
to part XV of the SFO.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares interested
divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at
31 December 2024.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section headed “Directors” Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company” above, had an interest or a short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business

During the year and up to the date of this report, no director is
considered to have interests in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As far as the directors are aware, during the year and up to the date
of this report, the Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its
business and operations.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance practices of the Company are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in
this annual report.

Auditor

Moore Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore”) has resigned as the
auditor of the Company with effect from 14 August 2024 as Moore
and the Company could not reach a consensus on the proposed
fees for the year ended 31 December 2024. The Board, with
the recommendation from the Audit Committee, has resolved to
appoint KTC Partners CPA Limited (“KTC”) as the new auditor of
the Company to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of
Moore.

KTC will hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting. KTC will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment
of KTC as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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Save as disclosed above, there was no other change of the B EMFTETEEIN ARAINBE=FALESE

Company’s auditors in any of the preceding three years. HE A% B -

On behalf of the Board REEEE

Chen Xiaodong HITEFE

Executive Director BREER

Hong Kong e

26 March 2025 ZERF=A=+<H
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Corporate Governance Re

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable
efforts to formulating and implementing corporate governance
practices appropriate to the Company’s needs.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has complied
with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules. Key
corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarized below.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board

Direction and control of Company business are vested in the
Board. The Board establishes policies, strategies and plans for the
development of Company business, and provides leadership in the
creation of value for shareholders. All directors have carried out
their duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, risk management and internal control
systems, material transactions (particularly those involving conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management of the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable laws and regulations are followed.
Any director may request independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses, upon
reasonable request made to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are led by the Executive Committee and senior
management of the Company. The Board has delegated a schedule
of responsibilities to these officers for implementing Board
decisions. The Board reviews the delegated functions and work
tasks regularly. The aforesaid officers have to obtain Board approval
prior to entering any significant transactions.
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Board Composition
The composition of the Board and the Board Committees as at the
date of this annual report is as follows:

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yu Qingrui

Mr. Wang Jinsong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Ngai Fan

Mr. Wu Ming

Ms. Li Meifeng

Executive Committee
Mr. Chen Xiaodong
Mr. Yu Qingrui

Mr. Wang Jinsong

Audit Committee

Mr. Chan Ngai Fan (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Ming

Ms. Li Meifeng

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Chan Ngai Fan (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Xiaodong

Ms. Li Meifeng

Nomination Committee

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Ngai Fan

Ms. Li Meifeng

The biographical details of the directors and the relationships
among the members of the Board are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
in this annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board at all times
met the requirement of the Listing Rules of having a minimum of
three independent non-executive directors (representing at least
one-third of the Board) with one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting and related financial
management expertise.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of
skills and experience appropriate for the business requirement
and objectives of the Group and for the exercise of independent
judgement.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

The Company has implementable and effective mechanism to
ensure independent views and inputs are available to the Board,
with the following key features: (i) the Nomination Committee
is established with clear terms of reference to identify suitable
candidates, including independent non-executive directors, for
appointment as Directors; (ii) the Nomination Committee will
assess annually the independence of all independent non-executive
directors; and (iii) the Directors are entitled to seek, at the Group’s
expense, independent professional advice reasonably necessary
for discharging their duties as Directors. During the year ended 31
December 2024, the Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the mechanism and considered it to be effective.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. To achieve clear division of
responsibilities between the management of the Board and day-to-
day management of the business and hence to ensure balance of
power and authority, there is separation of duties for the Chairman
and Chief Executive of the Company.

Currently, Mr. Chen Xiaodong serves as the vice-chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Company, focusing on
the Company’s business development and daily management and
operations generally. The Group is considering a suitable candidate
for the chairman of the Board to take up the relevant Board
chairmanship and will publish an announcement in relation to the
relevant appointment in due course.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The executive directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chen
Xiaodong, Mr. Yu Qingrui and Mr. Wang Jinsong have not been
appointed for a specific term but they are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting
in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws. The Company has
also issued a letter of appointment to each of the independent non-
executive directors of the Company for a term of 1 year.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Yu
Qingrui, Mr. Wang Jinsong, Mr. Chan Ngai Fan and Mr. Wu
Ming shall retire at the 2025 AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the 2025 AGM. The Board
recommended the re-election of the above retiring directors at the
2025 AGM.

Training and Continuing Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

All directors of the Company receive a comprehensive induction
on his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of
the business and operations of the Group and full awareness of
director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction is normally
supplemented with visits to the Group’s key plant sites and/or
meetings with the senior management of the Company.

The existing directors are continually updated with legal and
regulatory developments, business and market changes to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Continuing briefings and professional development for directors are
arranged whenever necessary. In addition, reading materials on new
or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the Group
are provided to the directors from time to time for their studying
and reference. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, Mr. Chen Xiaodong,
Mr. Yu Qingrui, Mr. Wang Jinsong, Mr. Chan Ngai Fan, Mr. Wu
Ming and Ms. Li Meifeng received briefings conducted by the
Company Secretary on corporate governance and updates on the
Listing Rules amendments. In addition, the Company has provided
reading materials on regulatory updates to all the directors for their
reference and studying.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
directors” dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Own Code”) on
terms no less exacting than the Model Code. Specific enquiry has
been made of all the Company’s directors and all have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code and the Own Code throughout the period from 1
January 2024 to the date of this report.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms
no less exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by relevant employees of the
Group who are considered to be likely to possess inside information
in relation to the Company or its securities. No incident of non-
compliance with the Employees Written Guidelines was noted by
the Company.

In case the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings
in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors
and relevant employees in advance.

Directors’ Attendance Records

The attendance records of each director at the regular Board
meetings, Board Committee meetings and the general meetings of
the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2024 is set
out below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERE/ EEAY
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Annual
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General
Name of Director Espg Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EZe ®NZEE FHZEE RAZEE LT
] L] L] g%  EBEKg
Mr. Chen Xiaodong RERRL 6/6 - 44 55 11
Mr. Yu Qingrui REHEE 6/6 - - - 171
Mr. Wang Jinsong (note 1) I (F) - - - - -
Mr. Li Jing (note 2) FHEEE (Fii) 22 - - - 171
Ms. Song Caini (note 3) RARLT (H3) 22 - - - 0/1
Mr. Chen Hongjin (note 4) Rite %4 (Hita) 2 - - - 01
Mr. Lo Siu Kit (note 5) EAMNKE (M5) - - - - 17
Mr. Chan Ngai Fan (note 6) RRE %4 (Fite) 4/4 n 2 n -
Mr. Wu Ming REERE 6/6 2 - - 17
Ms. Li Meifeng FERRL 6/6 22 44 5/5 7
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (note 7) PEARE (W) 2 171 17 3/4 Il
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Notes:

Mr. Wang Jinsong was appointed as an executive director and a
member of Executive Committee of the Company on 19 December
2024. During the period from his appointment up to 31 December
2024, no Board meeting was held.

Mr. Li Jing resigned as an executive director, the chief executive
officer and a member of the Executive Committee of the Company
on 30 May 2024. During the period from 1 January 2024 up to his
resignation, 2 Board Meetings were held.

Ms. Song Caini retired as an executive director and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company on 18 June 2024. During the
period from 1 January 2024 up to her retirement, 2 Board Meetings
and 1T Annual General Meeting were held.

Mr. Chen Hongjin retired as an executive director and a member
of the Executive Committee of the Company on 18 June 2024.
During the period from 1 January 2024 up to his retirement, 2 Board
Meetings and 1 Annual General Meeting were held.

Mr. Lo Siu Kit appointed and resigned as an executive director, the
chairman of the Board and the chairman of the Executive Committee
of the Company on 29 April 2024 and 31 July 2024 respectively.
During the period from his appointment and up to his resignation, 1
Annual General Meeting was held.

Mr. Chan Ngai Fan was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company, and the chairman of both the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee, and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company on 22 July 2024. During
the period from his appointment up to 31 December 2024, 4 Board
Meetings, 1 Audit Committee Meeting, 2 Remuneration Committee
Meetings, 1 Nomination Committee Meeting were held.

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company, and the chairman of both the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee, and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company on 22 July 2024. During the
period from 1 January 2024 up to his resignation, 2 Board Meetings,
1 Audit Committee Meetings, 1 Remuneration Committee Meetings, 4
Nomination Committee Meeting and 1 Annual General Meeting were
held.

In addition, due to the vacancy of the chairman of the Board, Mr.

Chen

Xiaodong, the vice chairman of the Board, held a meeting

with the independent non-executive directors without the presence
of executive directors during the year under review.

Pursuant to Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules. Mr. Lo Siu Kit, Mr.

Chan

Ngai Fan and Mr Wang Jinsong have obtained legal advice on

29 April 2024, 22 July 2024 and 23 December 2024 respectively.

Each

of Mr. Lo Siu Kit, Mr. Chan Ngai Fan and Mr. Wang Jinsong

has confirmed respectively that he understood his obligations as a
director of a listed issuer.
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BOARD COMMITTEES AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has established four Board committees, namely, the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees have been established with defined written terms
of reference, which are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website (www.hkexnews.hk) and on the Company’s website
(www.cwghl.com) (except for the written terms of reference of
the Executive Committee which is available to shareholders upon
request). All the Board committees should report to the Board on
their decisions or recommendations made.

Executive Committee

Currently, the Executive Committee comprises all the three
executive directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chen Xiaodong,
Mr. Yu Qingrui, and Mr. Wang Jinsong. The Executive Committee
operates as a general management committee under the direct
authority of the Board to increase the efficiency for business
decision making. It monitors the execution of the Company’s
strategic plans and operations of all business units of the Group
and discusses and makes decisions on matters relating to the
management and day-to-day operations of the Group.

Audit Committee

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises of three members,
namely, Mr. Chan Ngai Fan (Chairman), Mr. Wu Ming and Ms. Li
Meifeng, all of whom are independent non-executive directors. Mr.
Chan Ngai Fan possesses the appropriate accounting and financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the
financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the financial officers of the Group or
external auditors before submission to the Board; (ii) review and
monitor the relationship with the external auditors by referencing
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and
(iii) review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems.
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Audit Committee
performed the following works:

- Reviewed and discussed the Company’s financial statements,
results announcements and reports for the year ended 31
December 2023 and for the six months ended 30 June 2024,
the financial reporting, the related accounting principles,
practices and compliance procedures of the Company;

- Discussed and recommended the re-appointment/appointment
of external auditors; and

- Reviewed the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group.

The external auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee
meetings without the presence of executive directors to discuss with
the Audit Committee issues arising from the audit and financial
reporting matters. The Company’s annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2024 have also been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. There is no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the re-appointment of external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises of three
members, namely, Mr. Chan Ngai Fan (Chairman), Mr. Chen
Xiaodong and Ms. Li Meifeng, majority of whom are independent
non-executive directors.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure and the remuneration packages of directors and
senior management (i.e. the model described in the code provision
E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code is adopted); (ii) review and approve
performance-based remuneration by referencing to corporate goals
and objectives; (iii) establish a formal and transparent procedures
for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration, the remuneration of which will
be determined with reference to the performance of the individual
and the Group as well as market practice and conditions; and (iv)
review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Remuneration
Committee has performed the following works:

- Reviewed and discussed the remuneration policy and
structure and the remuneration packages of the directors and
senior management of the Group;

- Discussed and recommended the grant of share options of the
Company and ensured that the grant of share options of the
Company was in compliance with Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules and aligned with the purpose of the Share Option
Scheme; and

- Discussed and recommended the remuneration regarding
the appointments of Mr. Lo Siu Kit and Mr. Wang Jinsong as
executive directors of the Company and Mr. Chan Ngai Fan as
an independent non-executive director of the Company.

The senior management of the Company are the directors of the
Company. Details of the remuneration of each director of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note
8 to the financial statements contained in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises three members,
namely, Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman), Mr. Chan Ngai Fan and
Ms. Li Meifeng, majority of whom are independent non-executive
directors.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and recommend
any changes to the Board; (ii) identify qualified and suitable
individuals to become Board members and select and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors of the Company, having
regard to the requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iv) make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors in particular, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive of the Company.
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The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as
an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy has been adopted
by the Company, the Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing annually the structure, size and composition of the Board
and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and
to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In
relation to reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the
Nomination Committee is committed to diversity at all levels and
will consider a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional and industry
experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth
and is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection
practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately
structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered. The
Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time
to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

As of the date of this annual report, T of 6 of the Company’s
Directors are female. As of 31 December 2024, the Group had a
total of 20 female staff out of 36 employees, representing 55.56%
of the employees of the Group. The Group will continue to take
opportunities to increase the proportion of female board members
and workforce over time as and when suitable candidates are
identified. Further details on the gender ratio of the Group together
with relevant data can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Company. The Board and the Nomination
Committee have reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the board diversity policy and considered it to be effective for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

The Company has also adopted the Director Nomination Policy
which sets out the criteria and process and the Board succession
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment
of directors of the Company, and aims to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level.
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The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following: character
and integrity; qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy; diversity in all aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service; requirements of independent non-
executive directors on the Board and independence of the proposed
independent non-executive directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules; and commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Nomination
Committee performed the following works:

- Reviewed the Board Diversity Policy, the structure, size and
composition of the Board to ensure that it has a balance
of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Group;

- Considered and recommended the re-election of the retiring
directors standing for re-election at the 2024 annual general
meeting of the Company;

- Assessed the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company; and

- Considered and recommended the appointments of Mr. Lo
Siu Kit and Mr. Wang Jinsong as executive directors of the
Company and Mr. Chan Ngai Fan as an independent non-
executive director of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board has reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code and Employees Written Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2024.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.
The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on
an ongoing basis. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board is fully responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take to achieve the
Company’s strategic objectives, and for establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Group's
assets.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in overseeing the design
and implementation of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Company has developed and adopted different risk
management procedures and guidelines. Self-evaluation would be
conducted each year to confirm that the Company has properly
complied with the risk management and internal control policy.
All divisions would conduct internal control assessment to identify
risks factors with potential impact on the Group’s business. The
management would assess the likelihood of risk occurrence,
monitor the progress of risk management and report to the Board
and the Audit Committee on the findings and effectiveness of the
systems.
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The Group has developed its disclosure policy to provide a general
guide to the Company’s directors, officers, senior management and
relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

The Company’s internal audit staff has performed independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems. Key issues such as accounting
practices and all material controls were examined. The relevant
findings and recommendations are provided to the Board and the
Audit Committee.

The Board, as assisted by the Audit Committee and the
management, has reviewed the report from the management and
the internal audit findings, and reviewed the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls for the year ended 31
December 2024. The annual review also covered areas on financial
reporting, internal audit function, staff qualification, experiences
and relevant resources. The Board considered that such systems
are adequate and effective and ongoing review of the same nature
would be conducted in subsequent years.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report. During the
year ended 31 December 2024, the remuneration paid/payable to
the external auditors of the Company, KTC Partners CPA Limited, is
set out below:
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2024, Mr. Szeto Pui Tong,
Patrick, the Company Secretary, has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.

The Company maintains a website at “www.cwghl.com” as a
communication platform with shareholders and investors, where
information and updates on the Group’s business operations,
developments and financial information are available for public
access. Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or
requests to the Company using the below contact details:

Address: 5th Floor, Phase Il, China Taiping Tower,
8 Sunning Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Department of Investor
Relations)

Fax: (852) 2865 4654

Email: info@cwghl.com

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, will normally
attend the annual general meeting and other shareholders” meetings
to answer questions.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them posted of the Company’s developments.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder

meetings,

including the election of individual directors. The

Company’s shareholders may convene a special general meeting or
put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings as follows:

(M

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the voting rights at general meetings
(on a one vote per share basis) in the share capital of the
Company may request the Board to convene a special
general meeting pursuant to Clause 58 of the Company’s
bye-laws by sending a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written
requisition.

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights at the date of the requisition or not
less than 100 shareholders may put forward a proposal at a
shareholders’” meeting, pursuant to the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda by sending a written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong. The proposal should be stated in the written requisition
and such written requisition should be submitted as early
as practicable to enable the Company to make necessary
arrangement (in case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the meeting; and in
case of any other requisition, not less than one week before
the meeting).

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a
retiring director for election as a director of the Company at
a general meeting, the shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting shall send a written notice, duly signed by
the shareholder, of his/her intention to propose such person
for election and also a notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong,
or the office of the Company’s branch share registrar. The
period for lodgement of such notices shall commence on the
day after the dispatch of the notice of such general meeting
and end 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting.
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For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders” information may be disclosed as required by
law.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company has not
made any changes to its bye-laws. An up-to-date version of the
Company’s bye-laws is also available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.cwghl.com).

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
shareholders’” meeting.

POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has in place a Shareholders” Communication Policy
to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Company has reviewed the Shareholders’ Communication Policy
and considered that the policy was effectively implemented with the
measures as disclosed under paragraphs headed “Communications
with Shareholders and Investors” and “Shareholder Rights”.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company
and the Group and the conditions and factors as set out in the
Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the
Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial
year will be subject to the shareholders’ approval.
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Environmental, Social and Governance ReE_ort

Scope and Reporting Period

This is the eighth Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG”)
report of Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
and collectively with its subsidiaries referred as the “Group”),
highlighting ESG performance, with disclosure reference made to
the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix C2 of the Listing
Rules and Guidance set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The principal activities of the Group are engagement in financial
investments, trading and money lending business. This ESG report
covers the Group’s overall environmental and social performances
of its major business operations in its offices in Hong Kong (with a
total floor area of 249.91 m?), from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2024, unless otherwise stated.

Due to corporate downsizing, the Group has ceased business
operations of its offices in Shenzhen and Shanghai of the People’s
Republic of China during the Reporting Period, and thus their
operations are not included in the reporting scope of this report.
Otherwise, compared with that for the period from 1 January 2023
to 31 December 2023 (the “Last Reporting Period”), all other
operations of the Group have remained the same in this Reporting
Period.

Reporting Principles

The Report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” set out in Appendix C2 to
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange (the “Guide”). The contents
covered herein are in compliance with the provision of “Comply
or Explain” as well as four reporting principles of materiality,
quantitativeness, balance and consistency required in the Guide.

Materiality — Materiality assessments have been carried out to
identify material environmental and social issues that have major
impacts on investors and other stakeholders, the significant
stakeholders, procedures, and results of the engagement of
which are presented in the section “Stakeholder Engagement and
Materiality” in the Report.

Quantitativeness — Key performance indicators (“KPIs”) have been
established, and are measurable and applicable to make valid
comparisons under appropriate conditions; information on the
standards, methodologies, assumptions, and/or calculation tools
used, and sources of conversion factors used, have been disclosed
when applicable.

Balance — The Report presents the Group’s performance during
the Reporting Period in an impartial manner, avoiding choices,
omissions or presentation formats that may unduly influence
readers’ decisions or judgements.
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Consistency — Consistent statistical methodologies and presentation
of KPIs have been used to allow meaningful comparisons of related
data over time.

The Group’s Future Development and
Commitments

As public focus on sustainable development intensifies,
opportunities and risks linked to environmental and social issues
are becoming increasingly prominent. In response to this evolving
landscape, the Group has proactively adapted its development
strategies to align with market trends. It aims to enhance the
management of ESG-related risks in its future business endeavours,
while also maintaining high ethical standards. With a long-term
vision to expand its operations, the Group will seize opportunities
and steer clear of risky investments to ensure steady and sustainable
business growth.

Sustainability Governance

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s sustainability
strategy and reporting. The sustainability plan of the Group is
developed based on results of ESG Reports and regular reports from
senior management of its subsidiaries, which is reviewed on an
annual basis and adjusted as needed to align with the long-term
business strategy of the Group. Additionally, the Board evaluates
the Group’s progress in achieving the reduction targets against
the baseline year annually, and adjusts said targets based on the
situation.

The Chairman’s Statement

Throughout 2024, the continuing wars in Eastern Europe and the
Middle East, as well as escalating tensions between US and its
allies and China, show that global geopolitical conflicts are still a
huge cause for concern. Furthermore, monetary policy in the US
remains largely unchanged from last year, sustaining high interest
environments and impacting businesses around the world. All these
events reaffirm that sustainability is the key to tide over difficult
macroeconomic, geopolitical and health situations.

At the same time, stakeholders are increasingly nudging
corporations to take sustainability factors into consideration when
doing businesses. As a corporate citizen, the Group recognises
this and continues to make sustainability its operational focus by
regularly conducting assessments and materiality analyses. To better
understand the demands and expectations of our stakeholders, we
invite employees, service providers, and clients to participate in a
survey to maintain effective communication, allowing us to better
accommodate their needs.
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We are dedicated to improving our sustainability performance in
our operations, and we understand that sustainability governance
is the foundation to a successful operation. The Board is, therefore,
responsible in setting our strategic direction, ensuring that our ESG
strategy reflects the Group’s values and core businesses. The Board
is committed to maintaining better management and control of ESG
issues, and will be continually reviewing the progress made against
ESG-related goals through establishing KPIs, as to guide the Group
in monitoring its ESG performance.

Through embedding sustainability in our business concept, we
create greater value for both our stakeholders and society. We
believe we have a responsibility to the environment, society, and
our employees, these include minimising the Group’s pollution
emissions, promoting equal rights, and offering more opportunities
for all employees. This belief applies across the entire organization,
and thus the Group assigns responsibilities for ESG management at
all levels. Without the contribution of our employees, customers,
business partners, and communities, it would not have been
possible for us to have achieved so much.

Looking ahead, to tackle future challenges, we will continue
to drive our sustainability performance and further incorporate
sustainability into our core strategy through setting up relevant
guidelines and policies for better management and control of
ESG issues. We strive to maintain our market position in asset
management and securities brokerage, and also to better manage
upcoming business challenges. In line with upholding the business
sustainability of the Group, we will continue to maintain high
ethical standards, and formulate environmental, economic, and
social strategies to achieve stable and sustainable returns to our
stakeholders.

This report sets out our sustainability practices and approaches
throughout the past year. We hope this report will provide our
stakeholders an overview of our sustainability performance.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Group to
report on for this ESG report, the Group regularly collects views
and discusses ESG matters with stakeholders through a variety of
channels, such as engagement sessions including routine meetings
and annual general meetings. When issues have been identified,
they are discussed as an issue of the corporate culture. The Group
also emphasises on the importance of paying attention to issues and
giving appropriate response to the arising problems. Solutions to
relevant topics are regularly explored on such that relevant issues
can be addressed and resolved.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has specifically engaged
board members, senior management, and frontline employees to
gain further insights on ESG aspects they find material and relevant
challenges that they may induce. A materiality assessment has then
been produced according to the engagement as follows.
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Environmental

BiR

Al Energy C1
AEIR

A2 Water C2
KER

A3 Air Emission C3
REEHE

A4 Waste and Effluent Cc4
5IKEE)

A5 Other Raw Materials Consumption C5
H A0 R FOE

Ab Environmental Protection Measures Cé6
RIRTETE

A7 Climate Change c7
RIREAE

Labour
2T

B1 Employment D1
=%

B2 Occupational Health and Safety D2
BERRELZD

B3 Development and Training D3
TR M IE

B4 Labour Standards
& TR

According to the assessment, the five most material topics to the
Group are therefore,

1. Risk Management

2. Protection of Client’s Rights

3. Prevention of Malpractice

4. Occupational Health and Safety
5. Labour Standards

The Group aims to keep close communication with its stakeholders
for the identified aspects and continue to improve its ESG
performance. The Group also hopes to have better management
on ESG-related risks for future business development. In alignment
with the Group’s vision on sustainability, the business will continue
to operate with high ethical standards and provide sustainable
returns to stakeholders.
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Operational
reg
Supply Chain Management
HiEEE R
Intellectual Property
RN EBEE
Data Protection
BRHMRE
Customer Service
PR
Product/Service Quality
Em/ REEE
Anti-corruption
R&ES
Community Investment
HERigE
Other
Hito

Risk Management

[\ B 3R

Protection of Client’s rights
REEZFHER

Prevention of Malpractice
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Stakeholders’ Feedback

The Company welcomes stakeholders’

feedback on its

environmental, social and governance approach and performance.
Please give your suggestions or share your views with the Group via
email at info@cwghl.com.

A. Environmental

Al.

Emissions

Due to the nature of the business, the Group’s operations
are office-based and their related environmental impact
was very minimal. During the Reporting Period, the
Group has strictly followed all environmental-related
rules and guidance from local and national authorities.
In addition, the Group did not note any cases of
material non-compliance relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharge into water and land, and the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste as
required by the applicable laws and regulations during
the Reporting Period. These include, but not limited to,
the Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance and
the Waste Disposal Ordinance.

Al.1 Air Emissions
During the Reporting Period, there were no group-
owned company vehicles, meaning there had not
been any contributions to the emissions of sulphur
oxides (“SOx”), nitrogen oxides (“NOx”), and
particulate matters (“PM”) emission.

See below for the breakdown of 2024 air
emissions, as well as comparisons with previous
reporting periods.
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2024 Emission

2023 Emission

2022 Emission

(in kg) (in kg) (in kg)

—E-MMEF —E-=F —E-—F

Type of Air Emission BEREERER HHE(TR) HHRE(TR) HHRE(TR)
SOx =l &) 0.00 0.06 0.06
NOx AELY 0.00 21.48 43.59
PM LR 0.00 2.00 2.02
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Al1.2 Greenhouse Gas Emissions

During the Reporting Period, 36.44 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent (“tCO,e”) greenhouse
gases (“GHG”, mainly carbon dioxide, methane
and nitrous oxide) were emitted from the Group’s
operations. This is a 49.11% decrease from Last
Reporting Period, which is due to the disposal of
business operations in Mainland China.

The intensity of GHG emissions by the Group was
145.79 kgCO,e per m? of total office area.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s GHG
emissions were contributed by:

- Scope 2 - “Energy indirect” emissions
resulting from the generation of purchased
or acquired electricity, heating, cooling and
steam consumed within the Group; and

- Scope 3 — All other indirect emissions that
occur outside the Group, including both
upstream and downstream emissions.

Since the Group no longer owns any company
vehicles, there were no Scope 1 GHG emissions
during the Reporting Period.
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See below for the detail breakdown of 2024

2024 Emission

—EUFARATE

RERRENFE B R EF—
GHG contributions, as well as comparisons with &L T &~
previous reporting periods.

2023 Emission

2022 Emission

Scope of GHG Emission Sources (in tCO,e) (in tCO,e) (in tCO,e)
—E-_ME —E-=F —Eg--
e HHE BHE
BRERBHREE BEROR (B-E{HREE) (W_StREE) (HM-_FELtRES)
Scope 1
gE1

Direct Emissions

Combustion of petrol
in group-owned

vehicles Noe ! 0.00 11.21 10.64
=377/ SEBRERHTH
PR fg s
Scope 2
EE2
Energy Indirect Emission  Purchased electricity
Note 2 Note 3 32.72 50.94 50.23
BE IR R R BEE D
Scope 3
EE3
Other Indirect Emissions  Paper waste disposal Mt 2.92 3.66 4.15
H b R R EREEN
Electricity used for
processing fresh water
and sewage by third
party handler Nete4 0.00 0.05 0.04
FZTRERERIERK K
BIKE RE
Business air travels N> 0.80 5.73 5.74
AR IR
Total 36.44 71.59 70.80
Bt

Note 1: Emission factors were made reference to
Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules and their
referred documentation as set out by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, unless stated

otherwise.

Note 2: According to The Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of People’s Republic of China
(2023): Emission factor of 0.5703 tCO,e/MWh
was used for purchased electricity from the
National Grid of the PRC in 2023; Emission
factor of 0.5810 tCO,e/MWh was used for
purchased electricity from the National Grid of

the PRC in 2022.
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Al.A4.
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Note 3: According to HK Electric Investments
Sustainability Report 2023, 2022, and 2021:
Emission factor of 0.66 tCO,e/MWh was used
for purchased electricity from HKE in Hong
Kong in 2024; Emission factor of 0.68 tCO,e/
MWh was used for purchased electricity from
HKE in Hong Kong in 2023; Emission factor
of 0.71 tCO,e/MWh was used for purchased
electricity from HKE in Hong Kong in 2022.

Note 4: According to Water Supplies Department
Annual Report 2021/22 and 2020/21, and
Drainage Services Department Sustainability
Report 2020-21 and 2019-20: Emission factor
of 0.435 kgCO,e/m* was used for processed
fresh water in 2023, whereas emissions factor
of 0.21915 kgCO,e/m* was used for processed
sewage in 2023; Emission factor of 0.428
kgCO,e/m* was used for processed fresh water
in 2022, whereas emissions factor of 0.21
kgCO,e/m* was used for processed sewage in
2022.

Note 5:  CO, emissions from the Group’s business air
travels were reported in accordance with the
International Civil Aviation Organisation (ICAO)
Carbon Emission Calculator.

Hazardous Waste

In previous reporting periods, the Group’s
hazardous waste was generated by its business
operations in Mainland China. Since these
operations have been ceased, the Group did not
generate any significant amount of hazardous
waste during the Reporting Period.

Non-hazardous Waste

In previous reporting periods, the Group’s non-
hazardous waste was mainly generated by its
business operations in Mainland China. Since
these operations have been ceased, whereas
the Group’s business operations in Hong Kong
generate insignificant amounts of non-hazardous
waste, the Group did not keep records of its non-
hazardous waste generation during the Reporting
Period.
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Al.5. Measures to Mitigate Emissions

Al.6.

The Group’s operations resulted in insignificant
emissions. The main source of emission was paper
waste from daily office operations, and details of
paper-saving measures will be presented in section
A1.6. In terms of vehicles, the Group prioritises
electric cars when it has to rent one, followed by
fuel efficient ones.

In the Last Reporting Period, the Group had set the
target of achieving a 10% reduction in emissions
intensity by 2033, using 2023 as the baseline year.
The Group's emission intensity in 2023 was 21.26
kgCO,e per m? of total office area, which means
the Group has recorded a 585.71% increase in
emissions intensity from the baseline year for this
Reporting Period.

This significant increase in emissions intensity
is due to the change in reporting scope for this
Reporting Period, during which the Group’s
business operations in Mainland China had
been ceased. As to maintain consistency across
comparisons, and to properly evaluate the
effectiveness of its emissions mitigation measures,
the Group shall be redefining its 10-year target
for emissions intensity reduction. Going forward,
the Group shall set the target of achieving a 10%
reduction in Scope 2 GHG emissions intensity
by 2034, using 2024 as the baseline year. As
disclosure requirements for Scope 3 GHG
emissions will be updated next year, the Group
shall wait for detailed emissions figures from the
Next Reporting Period before setting its 10-year
reduction target for Scope 3 GHG emissions.

Waste Reduction and Initiatives

In the Last Reporting Period, the Group had set the
target of achieving a 10% reduction in hazardous
waste and non-hazardous waste intensity by 2033,
using 2023 as the baseline year. However, due to
the disposal of business operations in Mainland
China, the Group no longer generates significant
amounts of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
Nevertheless, the Group implements waste
reduction measures throughout its operations.
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The Group generated very minimal hazardous
waste from its office operations, they were
generated only when replacement was needed.
Waste lamps would be collected by the
Management Office, and waste printing cartridges
and other hardware wastes would be sent back to
suppliers. Non-hazardous waste from the Group
is collected and handled by the Management
Office. Paper is used for daily office operations
such as documents printing and deliverables
packaging. Paper saving initiatives are encouraged
among employees, such as adopting double-sided
printing and printing with single-sided used paper.
The Group tries to recycle paper used whenever
possible in attempt to reduce waste disposed of at
landfills.

With the principles of “reduce, reuse and
recycle”, the Group centralised stationary supply
to utilise stationaries and avoid wastage. It
returns used cartridges to suppliers and purchases
remanufactured toner cartridges for its multi-
functional devices. Reusable dishes and tableware
instead of disposable ones are used in office.
Other wastes including unneeded computers
and furniture are donated to Caritas Hong Kong
whenever possible.

A2. Use of Resources
The Group has not established policies on the efficient
use of resources. Nevertheless, employees are reminded
of resource conservation practices in offices.

A2.1. Energy Consumption

A total of 49,571 kWh of energy was consumed by
the Group for its operations during the Reporting
Period, which represents a 57.01% decrease from
Last Reporting Period. This significant reduction in
overall energy consumption is due to the disposal
of business operations in Mainland China during
the Reporting Period, which had accounted for
49.35% of total energy consumption in the Last
Reporting Period.

Electricity was the main source of energy
consumption for the Group, which was used
to power its offices’ lighting, office equipment,
and other miscellaneous items necessary for
maintaining the offices’ daily operations.
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A2.2.

A2.3.

See below for the detail breakdown of 2024
energy consumption, as well as comparisons with

TREN - _MFRERER
B FEIE RA 40 A K B — 3R 25 Y

previous reporting periods. BV EL B o
2024 Direct 2023 Direct 2022 Direct
Type of Energy Source BERER Consumption Consumption Consumption
—EBE-MEF —E-= g S
HIEZHRE HIZHRE HIZHME
Electricity EH 49,571.00 kWh 78,088.00 kWh 73,245.00 kWh
49,571.00F KL 78,088.00F L& 73,245.00F K K
Petrol D 0 litres 4,200 litres 5,100 litres
o7t 4,2007 5,100F+
2024 2023 2022
Consumption Consumption Consumption
Type of Energy Source RERER (in kWh) (in kWh) (in kWh)
—EBE-MEF —E-= —=E-=
HE(TERE) HE(TER) HEHE(TER)
Electricity EW) 49,571.00 78,088.00 73,245.00
Petrol b 0.00 37,220.99 35,448.56
Total HEt 49,571.00 115,308.99 108,693.56
Note:  Conversion factors were referred to IEA Energy Mizt: BRERBI2R (BEEE
Statistics Manual and 2006 IPCC Guidelines for REERGEFM) k(=
National Greenhouse Gas Inventories. ZZERFIPCCHZFRAER
825 EEmM) mMIEL -
Overall, the Group'’s energy use intensity during BEMS AEEREREAE
the Reporting Period was 198.36 kWh per m? of ERERLAEBMESE T K
total office area. 198.36F ELEs ©
Water Consumption A2.2. 7K

As water usage of the Hong Kong office

was managed by the office building, water

consumption data for the Hong Kong office was
not available for the Reporting Period.

Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives

To reduce electricity consumption, employees
are reminded to turn off office lights, computers,
printers, and air conditioners when leaving office.
Energy efficient office equipment are also used

when possible, and older electronic equipment
are to be gradually replaced by more efficient
ones. Air conditioners are defaulted to follow
temperatures as required by relevant regulations

by authorities to reduce energy use.

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FZ£BIZRERA A
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A2.4.

A2.5.

Environmental, Social and Governance Rejport

In the Last Reporting Period, the Group had
set the target of achieving a 10% reduction in
energy use intensity by 2033, using 2023 as the
baseline year. The Group’s energy use intensity in
2023 was 34.24 kWh per m? of total office area,
which means the Group has recorded a 479.25%
increase in energy use intensity from the baseline
year for this Reporting Period.

This significant increase in energy use intensity
is due to the change in reporting scope for this
Reporting Period, during which the Group’s
business operations in Mainland China had
been ceased. As to maintain consistency across
comparisons, and to properly evaluate the
effectiveness of its energy use efficiency initiatives,
the Group shall be redefining its 10-year target
for energy use intensity reduction. Going forward,
the Group shall set the target of achieving a 10%
reduction in energy use intensity by 2034, using
2024 as the baseline year.

Water Use Efficiency Initiatives

The Group had set the target of achieving
a 5% reduction in water consumption at its
Shanghai office by 2031, using 2021 as the
baseline year. However, due to the disposal
of business operations in Mainland China,
the Group no longer maintains any records of
water consumption. Nevertheless, the Group
actively promotes water conservation in its office
operations. Water was supplied and managed
by the building management of all offices and
there was no issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose.

Packaging Materials

The Group's operations did not involve any regular
use of packaging materials. When there is such
usage as deemed necessary, cardboard boxes
made by recycled materials are used.

IR B REARE
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A3.

A4.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to conducting its business
responsibly, ensuring that its business does not
contribute to significant adverse impact on the
environment and society while bringing sustainable
growth and profit.

A3.1. Significant Impacts of Activities on the

Environment

Although the Group’s business does not generate
significant adverse environmental impact as
compared with businesses in other sectors, the
Group is committed to reducing GHG emissions
and preserving natural resources. With electricity
consumption as its main source of GHG emission,
and printing practices as another source of
emission and waste, the Group frequently reminds
employees to practise energy and resources-saving
habits in offices.

Climate Change

Due to the nature of business as an office-based
company, climate change has not posed significant
impact on the Group’s business operation. As such, the
Group has not formulated any policy regarding climate
change. However, the Group has identified relevant
climate-related risks and assessed their potential
financial impacts. The climate risks identified, their
time horizon, trend, and the potential financial impacts
affecting the Group are shown below.

RERBARER

AEBBNREBEEEMAREER
i (R L SE TG 1 7 SRS AR ME = KO A Y
R TEHRENMEEEXNEIMNEX
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A3.
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EEAKBEXRBRERAMITESR
BHRETESRRELEADT
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A4.

Potential financial impact

BENBTE

Climate Risks ~ Time horizon  Trend
RIRER B 40 as
Physical Risks ~ Acute Short term Increase
EERAR oy 2 &m
Chronic Long term Increase
(543 =330 Em
Transition Risks ~ Technology Long term Increase
BERR il =4 m
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Extreme weather events with increased severity during cyclones,
hurricanes, storm surges and floods can cause supply chain
interruption by bringing damage to local infrastructure,
potential damage to offices and disruption to human resources.

ERIE BE-BRHRAKEE SRAREHOBEERE
TEEM AR ERRE URAEERBERE
YRAANER feMEHHEERE -

Longer-term shifts in climate patterns can increase capital costs,
operating costs, costs of human resources and increased
insurance premium.

REEANRARCERMERRA LXK ANERKK
RRBER-

During the transitional period, the Group expects increased
procurement expenditures to introduce new and alternative
technologies, and the additional cost of adopting/deploying
new practices and processes.

IR - AR B TEEHE MEREE B S OA S BT R R B KB
IR HERE BRI PR -
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Potential financial impact

BENETE

Climate Risks  Time horizon  Trend
RIRER BEEE ]
Policy and Short to Increase
Legal medium term
BRRAR  PRH B
Market Short term Increase
[k 5k Zm
Reputation Short to Increase
medium term
BE e il

A4.1. Significant Climate-Related Issues

The Group recognises that extreme weather events
caused by climate change may negatively impact
daily operations and has accordingly prepared
contingency plans for these situations. These
include, but not limited to, work-from-home plans
for employees and insurance against damages
from extreme weather events. However, the Group
has yet to identify any opportunities arising from
climate change.

A4.2. Metrics and Targets

To measure the level and impact of the Group’s
climate-related risks, the Group monitors
metrics and indicators to ensure an effective and
quantitative assessment. The Group monitors and
reviews its Scope 2 and Scope 3 GHG emissions
(in tCO,eq.), total GHG emissions (in tCO,eq.) and
GHG emission intensity (in tCO,eq./m? of total
office area) regularly. The GHG emission data and
information about target setting are shown in the
section “A1. Emissions” of this Report.

The Group has also included carbon footprint
reduction as one of its long-term goals.
Furthermore, in pursuit of social responsibility,
and to align with the national target of carbon
neutrality by 2060, the Group has pledged to
become carbon neutral in its operations.

Implementation of tightened environmental laws, stringent
requirements on climate disclosures and carbon pricing system
increases operating costs.

EREBRRNRIE BRELBRENRE EMREE
ERAEEKA

During the transitional period, the Group might face a decrease
in revenue due to higher environmental requirements of clients,
if no strategy has been set accordingly.

BEHE ARRPHRANEXER WAKBIRAHE
R ARES KNG B R SR R YA TR

Stakeholders” concerns on climate-related issues of the Group
might dampen the investment sentiment of investors, impacting
the stock price and market capitalisation of the Group, and
hence increasing the liquidity risk.
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B. Social
1. Employment and Labour Practices
B1. Employment
B1.1 Employment Figures

The Group continues to invest in capacity
building among local human resource,
adopting best practices, and following local
and national laws. These include, but not
limited to:

Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57)

. Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112)
. Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap.
480)

e Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Cap. 485)

J Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Cap. 486)

J Disability Discrimination Ordinance
(Cap. 487)

J Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance (Cap. 527)

o Race Discrimination Ordinance (Cap.
602)

e Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608)

The Group did not note any cases of material
non-compliance in relation to employment
during the Reporting Period.
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As of 31 December 2024, the Group had
a total of 36 employees in its Hong Kong
office. See below for the detail breakdown of

GEOH

IR B REARE

the workforce, as well as comparisons with BB NRMAFBEIN R
previous reporting periods. BB RSB T
Total Workforce as of BE+=-ZA=+—H 2024 2023 2022
31 December #Y 55 B o 48 B —F-mE —TZ-= e
By Employment Type RERERES
Full-time N 36 56 121
Part-time e B 0 0 9
By Gender gz E- B
Male Bt 16 27 74
Female it 20 29 56
By Employee Category RESERE D
Senior Management EREEE 10 15 18
Middle Management hARERE 3 13
Frontline and Other Al &R R E Ath fE 8

Employees 23 35 99
By Age Group RERARE D
18-25 18E255% 0 0 16
26-35 26%E355% 12 19 67
36-45 36ZE455% 15 25 35
46-55 46ZE555% 6 8 9
56 or above 56555k A _E 3 4 3
By Geographical RiBNEE S

Location
Mainland China R A i 0 29 98
Hong Kong i 36 27 32
Total o 36 56 130

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F#

63



Environmental,
R HERE

B1.2

Social and Governance Report

AWmE

Turnover Figures

A total of 22 employees left the Group
during the Reporting Period, which
corresponds to a turnover rate of 61.11%.
The Group regularly reviews salary
remuneration and benefits to retain talents
and stay attractive and competitive in the
market.

See below for the detail breakdown of
turnovers by gender, age group, and
geographical region during the Reporting

B1.2 BEBEUR
RBEBHRN - AEEHLS
FZEBEBER BEBX
61.11% © 2~ 5 B F #1553
TEHFMEEF Wik
BETRALTRETS %
FRS| D REBRF -

R EHALMER - Fi
MBI Ko i 1B 2 F B oy 0 B
BREA ARG B A M B — 3R

Period, as well as comparisons with Last FHLBRAT -
Reporting Period.
2024 2023 2022
—EomE —E-=F —E-=H

Turnovers as of BZ+=A Turnover Turnover Turnover
31 December =t+-H Number Rate Number Rate Number Rate

HERER A¥ BRE A¥ BR=E A¥™ BR=E
By Gender BURED
Male Bl 12 75.00% 35 129.63% 9 12.16%
Female 7 10 50.00% 33 113.79% 5 8.93%
By Age Group RERARE S
18-25 18E255% 0 NATEAR 10 NATER 6 37.50%
26-35 262355 4 33.33% 35 184.21% 5 7.46%
36-45 362455 10 66.67% 23 92.00% 3 8.57%
46-55 462555 4 66.67% 0.00% 0 0.00%
56 or above 565K E 4 133.33% 0.00% 0 0.00%
By Geographical RiBEUEES

Location

Mainland China HEl A, 0 NATER 6 22.22% M 11.22%
Hong Kong N 22 61.11% 62 213.79% 3 9.38%
Total @t 22 61.11% 68 121.43% 14 10.77%
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RIE g hERWmE

Competitive Compensation and Benefits

The Group abides by all applicable
employment and labour related laws of
Hong Kong. Employees are provided with
attractive salary with year-end double pay.
Salary is reviewed on a periodic basis
with considerations given to employees’
performance during the year, market rate of
the industry, profit result, and the projected
earning ability of the Group. Individual
salary adjustment in respect of promotion,
confirmation, transfer, re-classification etc.
are recommended by the Department Head
in consultation with the Administration
Department. For certain job positions, the
Group pays commission and incentives in
line with trade practices and management
policies. Various types of leave, including
annual leaves, sick leaves, maternity leaves,
paternity leaves and jury services leave, are
also provided. Apart from the Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme, employees
are entitled to medical benefits scheme and
employees’ compensation insurance. The
standard working hours are 8.5 hours per
day and 5 days per week.

There were no major changes in policies
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity
and anti-discrimination during the Reporting
Period.

Promotion, Transfer and Dismissal

The Group aims to provide channels of
promotion and promote employees based
on their performance, qualification, integrity
and ability. Promotion will be offered with
considerations of the Group’s operation,
competence, potential and interpersonal
skills of the employee and recommendations
given by the employee’s Department
Manager. The Group reserves the right to
transfer any employee to other locations
or opportunities to perform jobs of similar
nature if necessary.
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Employees who completed the probation
period and wish to resign must notify
in writing to the Department Manager
with at least one month’s notice. Specific
notification periods for different positions
are stipulated in the appointment letters. For
employees who fall under circumstances
including redundancy, termination with or
without prejudice, they shall be provided
with one month’s notice or one month’s
salary in lieu of notice if their employment is
to be terminated.

B1.5 Equal Opportunity

The Group provides equal opportunities for
employees in respect of recruitment, training
and development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. Employees are
not discriminated against or deprived of
such opportunities based on gender, ethnic,
background, religion, colour, age, marital
status, family status, retirement, disability,
pregnancy or any other discrimination
prohibited by applicable laws of Hong Kong.

B1.6 Employee Communication

To enhance employees’ sense of belonging
as well as create bonds and team spirit
outside of workplace, the Group regularly
organises gatherings, such as annual dinners,
sports matches, and Christmas parties for its
employees.

B2.  Employee Health and Safety
The Group has complied with relevant
occupational health related laws and regulations.
These include, but not limited to:

. Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap.
282)

. Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
(Cap. 509)

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FZ&BZREMRA A
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As employees spend most of the time on working
with the computers, the Group has installed eye
protectors on monitors to reduce the chance of
eye damage that may be caused by computer
screens. Employees are also reminded to maintain
good posture and appropriate viewing distance
between eyes and computer screens, and conduct
stretching exercises during rest breaks. The Group
also arranges professionals to sterilise the working
environment, and place greenings in the office.
By these, the Group hopes that employees’ health
can be safeguarded in workplace. With regards
to precautious measures against fire hazards,
the Group has arranged fire drills for employees
to familiarise them with the office buildings’
escape routes and location of fire extinguishing
equipment.

There were no major changes in management
practice in relation to occupational health and
safety during the Reporting Period.

B2.1 Work-related fatalities and injury

RE e NEamsE

AR EEARBEEASEKT
B REBBEERE RS L &ﬁﬁ
ERLURD A BER B R E S
BRRBEE - RPITIEEES
RIFRFLZE  RIFBEFMEN
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B2.1 BETEERMBTHIE

Occupational Health and “EZIEH

Safety Data in 2024 BEXRERZZHE

Work related fatality TEBRIET A 0
Fatality Rate RS 0.00%
Work injury cases >3 days I%fl; (ZR3X) 0
Work injury cases <3 days BER (DPRIENRIK) 0
Lost days due to work injury ITHBEERIERH 0
Occupational Health and —E=FH

Safety Data in 2023 BEEERZ2HE

Work related fatality TEREIRT AR 0
Fatality Rate T E 0.00%
Occupational Health and —EZFW

Safety Data in 2022 BERERZZHE

Work related fatality TEBRET A 0
Fatality Rate LT K 0.00%

During the Reporting Period, the Company
did not receive any complaints or lawsuits
regarding violations of health and safety-
related laws, and there was no work-related
death in the past three years.

RBmEHA AR AELE
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ERBEREORF MR
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B3.

Development and Training

The Group continuously monitors employees’ job
performance in order to identify training needs.
Employees are encouraged to participate in work-
related and personal development trainings
through on-the-job trainings and external trainings
to understand market trends and increase their
competence.

During the Reporting Period, 10 employees, or
27.78% of all employees, received training as
arranged by the Group, and the average training
hours that each employee received (inclusive
of those who did not receive training) was 2.78
hours. Training provided was mostly duty-related
courses or seminars delivered by external service
providers. The trainings covered topics such as
accounting standards, laws and regulations, and
anti-corruption.

The percentage and average training hours
per gender and employee category during the
Reporting Period are as follows:

B3.

ZiEEBES L

BR L IE

AEBERBEEEREMNTHER
BIABRRIFINFE R - AR BB
B B & BEBEI RINEBE
SETEEBREAZREI
INTBRTSBEREREE -

RIBEEA 102 EE (k282
BEEM27.78% ) BEXAEEL
ENEI MEREEESNT
HEEIER (BT EE S
&) 52,7818 /N o BT IR 4 A9 55
K Z e AINEE AR 7S FE RS IR
2 BERBERERTTE - A
MR EEEniEatE
Bl AP M ERAN R EITE-

R|EA - RIERI KRB EH
Elnoza N R EIEH
L{INE

Percentage  Average Training

of Trained Hours per
Employees Employee
BHEEN

IR B

By Gender gk =By
Male Bt

Female ek

By Employee Category RESERNE S
Senior Management = ARE IR E
Middle Management hRERE
Frontline and Other Employees AR R Bt fE B
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25.00% 2.50 hrs /J\Bf
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Labour Standards

Pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong, there was no
child nor forced labour in the Group’s operation
during the Reporting Period. All resumes, original
identification cards and relevant certificates of job
candidates are first checked by the Group during
interviews. Candidates’ preceded employers may
be contacted for provision of references. If any
case of non-compliance is discovered, the Group
will immediately terminate employment and
further investigate to avoid recurrence.

2. Operating Practices

B5.

B6.

Supply Chain Management

Only suppliers related to technology and financial
tools were engaged during the Reporting Period.
Despite the relatively low environmental and
social risks involved in the Group’s supply
chain, the Group encourages best practices in
supply chain management. The Group prioritises
cooperation with suppliers it has worked with
before to ensure the quality of supplies. All
suppliers are expected to comply with all relevant
environmental and social laws, such as the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, in
their own operations. During the Reporting Period,
the Group had not engaged with any long-term
key suppliers.

Product Responsibility

The Group takes full responsibility for its
products and services, and follows all regulatory
requirements, industry guidelines and internal
procedures on safeguarding customer health
and safety, promoting responsible marketing and
ensuring privacy of information related to the
Group and its business partners. As such, the
following laws and guidelines are therefore strictly
followed by the Group:

. Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap.
486)

e Office of the Privacy Commission for
Personal Data, Hong Kong

e Trade Marks Ordinance (Cap. 559)
J Patents Ordinance (Cap. 514)

e Copyright Ordinance (Cap. 528)
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B6.1

B6.2
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Quality Assurance

It is the Group’s aim to provide products and
services that are satisfactory and provide
customer services that are professional. To
ensure that all employees are competent
with advising customers, employees are
required to prepare presentations regarding
the operations’ products regularly as a mean
for management to assess and determine
employees’ performance.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had
not received any product or service-related
complaints. In addition, there had been no
products sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons during the
Reporting Period.

Confidential Information

As stated in the employment contract,
employees shall not at any time, during the
course of their employment, and after the
termination of the employment:

o use any confidential information for
his/her own purpose or for any purpose
other than that of the Group;

e divulge or communicate to any person
any confidential information except
to those of the employees or officials
of the Group whose province it is to
know the same; or

e cause any unauthorized disclosure of
confidential information (including
without limitation), relating to the
dealings, organization, business,
finance, transactions or any other
affairs to the Group or its clients or
customers, through failure of exercising
due care and diligence.
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B7.

Environmental, Social and Governance Refort

All notes, memoranda, records and writings
made by the employees in relation to the
business or concerning any of its dealings or
affairs or the dealings or affairs of any clients
or customers of the Group shall be handed
over by him/her to the Group from time to
time on demand and in any event upon his
leaving the service of the Group and the
employees shall not retain any copy thereof.
A breach of the above provisions can be
subject to dismissal without notice and legal
claim for damages.

The Group complies with all applicable
laws regarding confidential information and
data protection of the laws of Hong Kong.
No substantiated complaints concerning
breaches of client privacy, identified leaks,
thefts, or losses of customer information was
received during the Reporting Period.

B6.3 Intellectual Property Rights

The Group attaches great importance to the
protection of intellectual property rights,
and complies with the relevant laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period,
there had been no cases that violate
intellectual property rights.

Anti-corruption

The Group abides by the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance, Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong
Kong in relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering. All other guidelines outlined by
the Independent Commission Against Corruption
(“ICAC”) and Securities and Futures Commission
(“SFC”) are also followed by the Group. The
Group has a whistle-blowing policy available
for anyone to raise any concern worthy of the
Group's awareness, protecting the anonymity of
any whistle-blower. To ensure that directors and
its employees familiar with relevant topics, the
Hong Kong office invites ICAC to deliver training
regarding anti-corruption. There was no concluded
legal case regarding corrupt practices brought
against the Group or its employees during the
Reporting Period.
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B8.

In order to enhance the anti-corruption awareness
and level of employees, the directors and
employees of the Hong Kong office received
annual anti-corruption training as offered by the
ICAC during the Reporting Period, which covered
topics such as whistle-blowing, business ethics,
avoiding conflict-of-interest, and anti-bribery.

Community Investment

The Group understands that engaging the
community in which it operates is an essential
corporate responsibility, and thus has focused its
contributions on activities and organisations that
are beneficial to the local community. During
the Reporting Period, the Group has encouraged
employee participation of Dress Casual Day, and
has donated HK$3,000 to the Community Chest
for social welfare.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Executive Directors

Chen Xiaodong

Chen Xiaodong, aged 43, is an executive director, the chairman
of the Board of the Company, the chairman of both the Executive
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company since 2
December 2016 and a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company since 8 March 2023. He holds a bachelor degree
of management from Royal Holloway, University of London. He
also holds a master of science degree in process technology and
business management from University of Warwick. He has more
than 12 years of experience in bank and securities marketing and
is familiar with the local market and has strong capabilities in
market exploration, customer appraisal and risk management. He
also has extensive experience of regulations and rules of financial
market in Hong Kong and Mainland China, as well as certain
corporate financial analysis skill. Mr. Chen has resigned as an
executive director and chief executive officer of Future World
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 572) with effect from
24 December 2018.

Yu Qingrui

Yu Qingrui, aged 53, is an executive director and a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company since 22 June 2016.
Mr. Yu specializes in property investment and trading business in
the People’s Republic of China. After graduating from high-school
in 1989, Mr. Yu joined the shipping and trading business in the
PRC. He was the general manager of a shipping company before
he became a private investor in 2003. In 2011, Mr. Yu joined a
marketing and management firm in Shanghai and served as their
property investment manager. On 21 July 2014, Mr. Yu was engaged
to provide advisory and consultancy services relating to property
investments and trading to Future World Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, stock code: 572). Currently, Mr. Yu is an executive
director of Future World Holdings Limited.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXERE

Wang Jinsong

Wang Jinsong, aged 62, served as a lecturer at Teachers’
Development School in Jinning District, Kunming from August
1985 to May 1992. He founded the first Sino-Taiwan joint venture
in Jinning District, Kunming with a partner who worked at West
Asia and North Africa Department of Ministry of Foreign Trade and
Economic Cooperation from May 1992 to April 1999, and served
as the assistant to the general manager and the manager of the
marketing department. He served as the deputy chief clerk of the
Jinning District Government Office of Kunming from May 1999 to
November 2005; the chairman of the Federation of Industry and
Commerce and the president of the Chamber of Commerce in
Jinning District, Kunming from December 2005 to December 2010;
the director of the Archives Bureau of Jinning District, Kunming
City, and the third grade investigator since late December 2010,
and retired in August 2022.

He graduated from Yunnan Provincial College of Education (now
known as Yunnan Normal University) with a bachelor’s degree in
Chinese language and literature from the Chinese Department in
July 1990.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Chan Ngai Fan

Chan Ngai Fan, aged 45, has over 15 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management. In the early stage
of his career, Mr. Chan worked successively in JBPB & Company
(formerly known as Grant Thornton and later merged with BDO
Limited), with his last position as an assistant manager in assurance
from August 2007 to February 2011. From March 2011 to April
2015, he served as the chief financial officer of a PRC-based mining
company.

Mr. Chan acted as the financial controller of KPa-BM Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2663) from May 2015 to April 2018. He acted
as an independent non-executive director of Sino Vision Worldwide
Holdings Limited (formerly DX.com Holdings Limited) (stock code:
8086) from August 2017 to September 2018. In addition, he acted
as a non-executive director of Shenzhen Mingwah Aohan High
Technology Corporation Limited (stock code: 8301) from September
2016 to April 2018 and from January 2019 to March 2019. He
also acted as an executive director and the chief financial officer of
Shenzhen Mingwah Aohan High Technology Corporation Limited
(stock code: 830 1) from April 2018 to January 2019. Afterwards,
he acted as the company secretary of Sino Vision Worldwide
Holdings Limited (formerly DX.com Holdings Limited) (stock code:
8086) from January 2019 to May 2019. In addition, he acted as
an independent non executive director of Sanxun Holdings Group
Limited (stock code: 6611) since September 2019 to September
2023 and an independent non-executive director of Contel
Technology Company Limited (stock code: 1912) since March 2022
to June 2023.
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Currently, he act as an independent non-executive director of
Persistence Resources Group Limited (stock code: 2489) since
November 2023. He also acted as an independent non-executive
director of Capital Finance Holdings Limited (stock code: 8239)
since January 2022. He is also an independent non-executive
Director of Leader Education Limited (stock code: 1449) since July
2020. He also acted as the joint company secretary of Centenary
United Holdings Limited (stock code: 1959) since January 2019,
the joint company secretary of China Bozza Development Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1069) since May 2022, the company secretary
of Bison Finance Group Limited (stock code: 888) since August
2022 and the company secretary of Zhengwei Group Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 2147) since May 2022 for handling
compliance related matters.

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor’s degree in Arts in Accountancy and
a master’s degree in Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in December 2007 and October 2013,
respectively. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (Practising), and an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (now known as The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute) since February 2011
and November 2019, respectively.

Wu Ming

Wu Ming, aged 52, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company since 2 October 2018. He holds a bachelor of science
with honours in business with marketing from The City University
London. Mr. Wu specializes in trading business in the People’s
Republic of China and Hong Kong and has extensive experience in
trading and management.

Li Meifeng

Li Meifeng, aged 33, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director, and a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company since 8 March 2023. She has extensive experience in
accounting and securities trading in Mainland China and Hong
Kong.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEMBES

KTC Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

T MEEAMEERERAA

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 84 to 232, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

BEESTEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMWESFOMEEFARETSEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables from securities dealing business

EHREEXBELENE ZHEAZRETE

The Group has adopted a forward-looking expected-loss
impairment model to recognise the expected credit losses
(the “ECLs”) of trade receivables from securities dealing
business in accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 9.
B R EARE R I 7% W5 2 A 529578 AR TE %40 A1 BE 1 TR A1
EBEBERLUAESFESXBEEZRRE S RFERE
HEEHR ((RHMFEEBE]) -

As at 31 December 2024, gross trade receivables from
securities dealing business, and the related ECLs amounted
to approximately HK$273,180,000 and HK$259,779,000,
respectively.

R-ZB-NME+-_A=+—H EHEEXBELEZEK
BB AERARESREEBED 54 /273,180,0008
7t %259,779,000/8 7T °

For the assessment of the classification at each stage,
we have obtained understanding of the internal control
system and checked the outstanding margin receivable
balances to the corresponding values of collateral assets
(defined as loan-to-collateral-value);

SRS ERERN Y BRME RS T HARBEIEHE
WiZHREERWRES FHEEINEENHEEE
MR (ERAERERAMEELEX)

For trade receivables from securities dealing business
classified at stage 1, we evaluated the Group’s estimation
methodology of ECLs, and checked the parameters to
external data sources where available, including the
price volatility of selected underlying collateral;
HERDBRRIEENESEEXBEL B RE S
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B RE S

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

HMEETEE

FERETEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANEANMEEBERETSE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables from securities dealing business (continued)

BEHEERBELZENEZHRNZRET G (E)

The assessment of ECLs of trade receivables from securities
dealing business involves significant management
judgements and estimates, including estimation of
probability of defaults, valuation of collateral, expected
future cash flows and future economic conditions.
EFEEXBELAZRKRESRAZEREEEENEY
REREELDERHE MG SREEOMEX ER MG
B FAHIR R 2R 8 MR RGBT ET

The Group assesses whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk for exposures since initial recognition
by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected
life between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition.

BEREZEBLEHRE A MENGER QB2 HNETFH
NEENEORR FEEVHRERAREERRE TR
Zghne

Related disclosures about trade receivables from securities
dealing business, and its related ECLs are included in Notes
2(j), 3, 22 and 48 to the consolidated financial statements.
EFEEXBELAZRREZRANEBERBEEERE
ZHEBBREHN G A M IEHRERMEE2() 3 22548

For trade receivables from securities dealing business
classified as stages 2 and 3, we checked the price
volatility and liquidity of the collateral, and developed
a reasonable range of expected cash shortfall for
comparison with the Group’s assessment; and
HROBRFICEBRNELEEEBEL ZBKE
ST BMEREERROERKEL RSN AT
HERReRENAEEE E SRENFGET
Lo &

We also evaluated the related disclosures regarding the
accounting policy, the judgement and estimates involved
and the details of the ECLs included in the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

TAITRE 2 BIEHE PSR & AT ERR - HIET R A R DA B kR
BUBHREMEESNEEEERFBOMREKE-
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

HEETEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZBEN R E S

FEEETEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANEANMEEBERETSE

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receivables from money lending business

HEXBELZEWREZRFEZREF S

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had gross loan and
interest receivables from money lending business amounting
to approximately HK$520,970,000 and HK$45,407,000,
respectively. The Group had recognised ECLs on loan
and interest receivables amounting to approximately
HK$81,285,000 and HK$16,495,000, respectively.
R-ZZE-_ME+_A=+—H EBEEEAREE®
EE 2 BWERRF BB D H4520,970,000% 7T &
45,407,0008 7L > & % B 2 B4 B R A B RE R IR
EEEED 51481,285,000/ 7T 516,495,000/ TT ©

The models and assumptions adopted by the management
in estimating ECLs are related to the future macroeconomic
conditions and borrowers’ creditworthiness (e.g. the
likelihood of default by customers). The management
believes that they have considered reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost and effort for this purpose. Such
assessment has taken the quantitative and qualitative
historical information and also, the forward-looking analysis.
EEENGFAREERERRANEE RERREREER
BREMRARBRANGEE (MEFRBOMAREL) B
ERERS RECEEEWATESL AR R KA
BESRUEFELILERARE N ZEFEERATE
K TE N 2 B S B R DA R BB 1 o3 A

Related disclosures from loan and interest receivables from
money lending business, and their related ECLs are included
in Notes 2(j), 3, 21, 26 and 48 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MEEBEE 2 REEREMNENARERBEREEER
Z R BEN A IS MARME2() 3 21 26548

We reviewed and assessed the adequacy of the Group's
classification of stages based on the past due dates of the
loan and interest receivables.

BPEB LG ERERBEKERRFSBEDH
HETERERIBENEEE-

We assessed the effectiveness and marketability of
certain collaterals, including considering fair values of
collaterals and the liquidity of the collaterals.
HFFFEE TERARZBEREREH L BHEE BEMR
fn Y 2 SR R IR r R aa I

We assessed the reasonableness and relevancy of the
external information used by the Group as the default
rates and forward-looking information including
economic data and forecasts published by government
bodies and monetary authorities, such as GDP growth
rates, etc.

BAFIFHE BEREREEOXRLAEEER ZIBER
MR RERIE BREBRAEE R BEFI B A&
EEUR M IER fIanE AL EREERR S -

We checked the accuracy of the calculation of ECLs
based on the methodology adopted by the Group, as
well as disclosures in relation to credit risk exposed by
the Group in the consolidated financial statements.

BACRERE BESKEMRADATERMEEER
ZEBENGAMBRRAE ESEHEZEERR
TERE I EE -

We discussed with the management of the Company
and independent valuer, for the reasonableness and
relevance of the methodologies, inputs and assumptions
adopted for the valuation report prepared and issued by
independent valuer.

BB BB A EM R E R B M2 HERSARAA
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Other matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023, were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 27 March
2024.

Other information included in the annual report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the Corporate
Information and Management Discussion and Analysis (but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, and the Chairman’s Statement, Report of the
Directors, Corporate Governance Report, Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, Biographical Details of Directors and Summary
Financial Information, which are expected to be made available to
us shortly after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not and will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

When we read the Chairman’s Statement, Report of the Directors,
Corporate Governance Report, Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, Biographical Details of Directors and Summary
Financial Information, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to
audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) and take
appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.
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Responsibilities of the directors and those charged
with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the audit committee
of the Company in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B RE S

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

J Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

J Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

J Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the group as a basis
for forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of
the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

We communicate with the audit committee of the Company
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence of the Company, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee of
the Company, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

KTC Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chow, Yin Kwan Yvonne

Practising Certificate Number: P07989
Hong Kong, 26 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —FE_/JF+_-H=+—HIFFZ

Notes
B 5
Revenue L'ON
Financial investments and services M BRE MRS
Brokerage and commission income K R me A
Advisory fee income i E WA
Consultancy fee income EIHE- LI ON
Sales of goods #HE 7 m
5
Cost of sales and services SHE R R
Brokerage and commission expenses Kk Bemx
Cost of sales 5 AR
Gross profit EH
Other income and gains, net E A A M s F 58 5
Administrative expenses THR X
Equity-settled share option arrangements A% 4 &5 & 2 B i 1 % HF 39
Other operating expenses HAh B ERX
Finance costs 5B R 6
Unrealised fair value gains/(losses) on & i8R A T AT
equity investments at fair BRZBREIREZ RE
value through profit or loss, net RAFERE
(B518) F5
Unrealised fair value gains/(losses) on & 1E ik A FETI K
debt investments at fair value through ~ Z E#IEE 2 KREH
profit or loss, net ~NENES (BE)
FEE
(Provision for)/reversal of credit loss TREEEEBERE
allowance on financial assets (FH#8) /&M@
Change in fair value of investment REMERNFEEH
properties 14
Loss on disposal of investment HEREME ZEBE
properties 14
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZEE 44
Provision for impairment loss on BB ERIE R
goodwill 17
Provision for impairment loss on FERERBRER
inventories 25
Share of losses of an associate DIE B E QR Z
BB 18

Share of losses of a joint venture

DiE—HARELEZ
g
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2024
—EB-mEF
HK$'000

FHET

30,106
36,107
8,736

759

75,708

(8,635)
(922)

(9,557)
66,151
4,265

(59,296)

(25,565)

(569)
(8,355)

168

(32,669)

(6,191)

(283)

(24,545)

2023
—E-=

HK$’000
FBT

9,967
54,037
14,119
11,460

577

90,160

(16,650)
(630)

(17,280)

72,880

11,084
(165,781
(21,600
(5,712

)
)
)
(13,495)

(5,035)

(409)
7,533

703

(474)
(636)
(2,962)
(8,962)

(890)




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
LA E

-~

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

2024 2023
—R_-DOF —F-=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s FTHERT FAET
Loss before income tax BRATBRATE R 7 (83,163) (133,756)
Income tax expense FRSHR X 10 - (95)
Loss for the year KEEER (83,163) (133,851)
Loss for the year attributable to UTATEEFEES
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZZ SN (83,135) (132,864)
Non-controlling interests FEIE Rt (28) (987)
(83,163) (133,851)
Loss per share attributable to KA EEAREER
owners of the Company g
Basic and diluted EAREE 12 HK(0.49) cent HK(0.80) cent

(0.49) #B Al (0.80) &1l
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meETHWRER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #ZE_-F_/JF+_-FA=+—HIFF/Z

2024 2023
—E-NE -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Loss for the year KEEERE (83,163) (133,851)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) HitzmEWKz (BHE)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may AJRERBER IR EF DR
be reclassified to profit or loss in TEﬁﬁZﬁ’rﬁliﬁW =/
subsequent periods: (E548) -
Exchange differences on translation of MEBIEBZELEZR
foreign operations (1,526)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that TERErRARERSEE
will not be reclassified to profit or loss BazHME2EEE
in subsequent periods: (E18)
Equity investments at fair value through FRHMEERRRAFE
other comprehensive income: SRR Z IR AR E
Changes in fair value, net of tax N ELE)  BREiE 1,547 (220,162)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Zliir_ﬁﬁi?fﬁﬁ
for the year m,/ (B18) 1,598 (221,688)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEXHEEBHELE (81,565) (355,539)
Total comprehensive loss for the year UTATEBEREFEZR
attributable to BEAE
Owners of the Company EN/NSIEZ SN (81,537) (354,552)
Non-controlling interests FEIR R R R (28) (987)
(81,565) (355,539)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Notes
s

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB N&RE 13
Investment properties REME 14
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15
Intangible assets BVEE 16
Goodwill [EES 17
Investment in an associate R—HBERRZRE 18
Equity investments at fair value FRHEMEEmREE A FE

through other comprehensive SR Z AR E

income 19
Deferred tax assets RIER IR & 20
Loan receivables from money WE R EE 2 RKE R

lending business 21
Prepayments, deposits and other BAFIE RE R EAMRER

receivables IR 26
Total non-current assets FERBEERE
Current assets RBEE
Loan receivables from money MEEBEE 2 BRKER

lending business 21
Trade receivables from securities BLREEEBELEZ

dealing business FEWE 5 BR K 22
Trade receivables from placingand BEREEBTEEBREE L

asset management business FEW & 5 BR K 23
Finance lease receivables BMEHERKHIE 24
Inventories 58 25
Prepayments, deposits and other TR FRIE - Re R EAD R

receivables ;A 26
Equity investments at fair value BEBBERRAFEIRZ

through profit or loss AR E 27
Debt investments at fair value FRBEREATEIRZ

through profit or loss BBRE 28
Cash and bank balances Re RRITERF 29
Bank balances held on behalf of REBEPHARTHER

clients 30

Total current assets

RE BRI R R

31 December 2024 =L =pJF+=H=+—H

2024 2023
—EF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,595 1,563

- 17,737

3,657 2,494
132,635 157,180
2,638

34 34
434,482 30,608
1,404 17,323
577,992 229,577
5,203 347,298
13,401 59,728
1,883 4,310

- 1,646

3,250 4,442
271,530 267,656
38,844 25,681
334 166
13,398 22,553
101,862 76,967
449,705 810,447
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iR e BRI LR

31 December 2024 —ZE—pFE+—H=+—H

Notes
B 5
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables JENE R 31
Lease liabilities HEaE 32
Other payables and accruals At JE T FRIE R BT B A 33
Other borrowings HiEE 34
Bank borrowings RITEE 34
Bank overdrafts RITHE X 34
Tax payable e IR
Total current liabilities mEBERRE
Net current assets RBEEFE
Total assets less current liabilites EEAZABBRBAE
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEEaE 32
Defined benefit plan obligations RERAEIEME 35
Total non-current liabilities R B EEE
Net assets FEE
Equity R
Share capital [N 36
Reserves g 37

Equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

R RS PR T M

Non-controlling interests IR
Total equity AR

Chen Xiaodong
BR B2 3R

Director

EFE
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2024
—E-MF
HK$’000
FET

2023
—E-=%F
HK$'000
FET

107,329
1,049
15,757
142,861
10,000
14,800

77,573
2,989
13,195
148,425

20,375
255

291,796

262,812

157,909

547,635

735,901

777,212

2,246
528

528

2,774

528

733,127

776,684

172,818
560,309

167,573
609,083

733,127

776,656
28

733,127

776,684

Yu Qingrui
REH
Director

EF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

an\ IE/%/}”JE%E

For the year ended 31 December 2024 EZE_-F_/JF+=-A=+—HIIF/Z

2024 2023
—EC-E —E=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iz FTERT FET
Cash flows from operating activities K& TEEECHESRE
Loss before income tax BrETIS TR &8 (83,163) (133,756)
Adjustments for: BMTFIEE EHE:
Bank interest income SRITH B U A 5 (1,650) (97)
Interest income on finance lease BMEMERKFIES
receivables R A 5 (244) (220)
Interest income on other receivables — E fth fE UL TE 2
FEHA 5 (710) (6,298)
Finance costs B 75 & A 6 8,355 13,495
Change in fair value of investment BEMENTEES
properties (703)
Depreciation on property, plant and ¥ % - B5E k& HITE
equipment 7 1,603
Depreciation on right-of-use assets CREEERE 7 2,993
Provision for/(reversal of) credit loss & @& EEEEIE
allowances on financial assets Bt (@) (7,533)
Equity-settled share option R E 2 AL B
arrangements, net HE 39 21,600
Reversal of provision for defined RERNGTEIEERE
benefit plan obligations B[l 35 (138)
Dividend income from investment FTTRAEFEFREZ
in listed equity securities A& B A 5 (94)
Interest income from debt BBRE 2 FBWA
investments 5 (736)
Share of losses of an associate DIE—RBERRZ
B8 18 8,962
Share of losses of a joint venture DIE—RAEEREZ
18 890
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRARZEE 474
Loss on disposal of investment HEREMEZEE
properties 14 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE BERLKEZ
and equipment W 5 -
Loss on early repayment of REEEALEER
promissory note g 1,474
Unrealised fair value (gains)/losses FBBRRAFEY R
on equity investments at fair value ZHXZMXQZ?EWEE
through profit or loss, net ~NFE(KE) S
Eﬁtﬁ FE (3,726) 5,035
Unrealised fair value (gains)/losses BEREQTEYE
on debt investments at fair value ZTE BREZAREH
through profit or loss, net NTE (W) S
BEFR 409
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

2024
—E-mF
Notes HK$’000
B 5 FTHET
Realised fair value gains on debt ﬁﬂ?ﬁlﬁﬁ&@$fﬁﬂ
investments at fair value through Zﬁi‘%&ﬁz [ F
profit or loss, net NFE W
Loss/(gain) on early repayment of 1 P88 H A e U KR
other receivables ZEE, (Was) 5
Gain on early repayment of note RPEEENEERZ
payable Yoz 5
Provision for impairment loss on EEREEER B
goodwill
Provision for impairment loss on FEREEBEEE
inventories
Written off on other receivables 5 H b FE U R IR 7
Written off on trade receivables i H U E B BRI 7
Operating profit/(loss) before working &8 & & # 8 gl )48 &
capital changes AL (EE) 12,839

Increase in loan receivables from
money lending business

(Increase)/decrease in equity and fund
investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Decrease in trade receivables from
securities dealing business

Decrease in trade receivables from
placing and asset management
business

Decrease in finance lease receivables

Decrease in trade receivables from
sales of goods

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

(Increase)/decrease in bank balances
held on behalf of clients

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

Increase in other payables and
accruals

WEEBEE 2 BIRER
i"jJD
BEmRATEIEREZ
Hx$&ﬁ$&§
(gm) R
BHRBEBEBEE ZEW
B 5RO
EREEERERESL
2 EWE 5RO D

BhETE & EWGRIE R
KA HE R MmN E U
FER

TERTRIE - e R E b FEUR
AIE R

REBFRERTHE
(&) R

JERHE ZERFIE M,
CRA)

HMEMFRIBEMERE R
o

(87,351)

(9,437)

42,755

909

174

(24,907)

29,756

3,718
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2023
—E-=4F
HK$'000
FET

19,132
(32)
(987)
636
2,962

3,244
117

(67,568)

(5,200)

4,792
93,386
29,516

2,520

2,670
331

37,997
614,389
(617,914)

24,573




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
,\v\ E/Eufrzmb%%

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

2024 2023
—®R_F —T=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iz THET FET

Cash (used in)/generated from 2 (FTA) /38R e
operations (22,111) 128,621
Dividend received B E 19 94
Interest received SR EESN 7 736
Interest paid ERFE (1,255) (1,195)
Tax paid EfRHIEA (255) (731)

Net cash (used in)/generated from RS (FIR) s

operating activities PN (23,595) 127,525

Cash flows from investing activites RETZBEEZRESRE
Purchases of items of property, plant ~ BEEY % - HFE L& #EHEE

and equipment (561)
Purchase of investment properties BEREME (17,034)
Proceed from disposal of investment &R & W 2 PTG FIE

properties -
Acquisition of debt investments at fair Wi FEBiE=Z AT E

value through profit or loss SRR 2 ERIRE (18,101)
Acquisition of additional equity Wi —HBERRZ

interest in an associate BRSNS HE (79,136)
Capital injection to a joint venture M—EaERHEITE (10,816)
Proceeds from disposals of debt HEFEBEREATE

investments at fair value through PR BEBIRE 2

profit or loss AT S 3R 28,071
Interest received EELENS) 97
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition W& — i Y & 2 & & 4 )

of a subsidiary WEMAFRE 43 2,330
Net cash outflow arising from disposal (& — & iff & A & & 4 K9

of a subsidiary RembFeE 44 (1,355)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEZGRR (A2

investing activities BEFR (96,505)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

2024
“ENE
Notes HK$’000
B 5 FTERT
Cash flows from financing activities BEEZHEELEZRERE
Net proceeds upon exercise of share 1715 B # 715 50 H ) F &8
options
Proceeds from other borrowings H & E RS RIA
Proceeds from bank borrowings 31714 8 S 2R
Proceeds from promissory note A R BS IR
Repayment of note payable BREENEE
Repayment of other borrowings BERAMES (17,728)
Repayment of bank borrowings BRIBITEE -
Repayment of promissory note BEAHFE -
Repayment of the principal portion of EEREBEAL I D
lease liabilities (3,054)
Payment for interest portion of XN RENEE S
note payable
Payment for interest portion of X EMEE R BE D
other borrowings (8,099)
Payment for interest portion of SARITEEN B E D
bank borrowings
Payment for interest portion of XA REFNEE D
promissory note
Payment for interest portion of NEERENEED
lease liabilities (CR))
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEFHFE (TR 2
financing activities b2 - 5,633
Net decrease in cash and cash RekBHeFEEAZ
equivalents LR (4,774)
Cash and bank balances at beginning  F# 2} & RKRITEF
of year 2,178
Effect of foreign exchange rates HNENE R E B 2 B FHE
changes, net 1,194
Cash and cash equivalents atend of FARZEHERESEE
year 15 B (1,402)
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRASEEEBEEER
cash equivalents 2B
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHET 29 13,398
Bank overdrafts RITBX 34 (14,800)

(1,402)

94  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FES£ BB HR A A

2023
—E-=%F
HK$'000
FET

7,971
40,785

8,645
38,006
15,435
39,500
10,140

—~ e~~~
== 2

(3,415)
(5,981)
(1,825)

(1,727)

(261)

(58,897)

(37,006)
40,750

(1,566)

2,178

22,553
(20,375)

2,178




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 EZ —FE_[F+_-H="+—HIFFZ

AEAIREBEER
REEBIERERAR ([RQATF])ARA
REFMEK T 2BRAF -ETMREE
H 3k & Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda e AX_A &l 2 F &
BEMBERETEERBICHERERE/MT
181818012 % 5 MR & /4 & ¥ % 388
FHAEAFARAE_HE L _HF+
A+ TOHEBER-

Corporate and group information 1.
Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company has changed from Unit 1801-2, 18/F,
Far East Finance Centre, No.16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
to 5th Floor, Phase I, China Taiping Tower, 8 Sunning Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong with effect from 14 October 2024.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in

ARBEBXRHR/AREEZER -ARFRE
MEAR (TSR AEE]) T2 ﬁ%’ﬂ
FEEEBK BHEERBAKREURN

securities dealing business, trading of debts and equity E¥R-
investments and money lending business.
Information about subsidiaries MELR2ER

RIB_WMERZTE_=F+ZA=+—
B ARBETEMBABZFBNT

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Percentage of equity attributable

to the Company
FRAREREZEI
Place of incorporation Issued ordinary/
Name and business registered share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
EMRLR

REER EBZEnE BRTEER/ERRA B B IEEH
Hoshing Limited* British Virgin Islands Uss1 100 (2023: 100) - Investment holding
Hoshing Limited* AERRHE 1% 100 (ZFZ=%:100) - RERR
139 Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Us$2 - 100 (2023: 100)  Provision of administrative services
13IRFARAT B bES - 100 (ZRZ=F:00)  RETHESR
Chaifa Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 (2023:100)  Investment holding
BRHHERAA B 2B - 100 (ZFZ=F:100)  REARR
Central Wealth Infrastructure British Virgin Islands/ UsS1 - 100 (2023: 100)  Investment in and trading of securities

Investment Limited Hong Kong
PEERBEARAT EERAES/E% 1557 00 (ZE=Z#:00) FAREEBA
Desert Gold Limited British Virgin Islands/ Uss1 - 100 (2023:100)  Investment in and trading of securities

Hong Kong

Desert Gold Limited ARRAHE/BE ESTr - 100 (ZRZ=Fc00)  RAREEES
Top Billion Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 (2023: 100) ~ Money lending
BEFHARAT BB 2B - 100 (ZRZ=F:000)  HME
Winsey Enterprises Limited* British Virgin Islands Uss1 - 100 (2023: 100)  Investment holding
Winsey Enterprises Limited* RBRAES (E - 100 (ZBZ=F:1000 RAER
Central Wealth Securities Hong Kong HK$404,000,000 - 100 (2023: 100)  Brokerage and related services

Investment Limited
FEESREAARAT B3 404,000,000/ ¢ - 100 (ZRZ=%F:1000  BEREBRS
Central Wealth Asset Management  Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 (2023: 100)  Asset Management

Limited
TEAEEEARAF BE 10,000,007 - 100 (ZRZZF:100 EEEE
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Corporate and group information (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

NAIREBER (#0)
HEBARZEE (&)

Percentage of equity attributable

to the Company
ERAREREZAS L

Place of incorporation Issued ordinary/
Name and business registered share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities

EMAIR
NEEE ERSLHY BRTEER/ERRA ER B IERE
Instant Achieve Limited* British Virgin Islands US$62,500 100 (2023: 100) - Investment holding
Instant Achieve Limited* HERLES 62,500%7C 100 (ZZ==%:100) - RERR

Dagi Culture (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.  The PRC RMB1,000,000

EROUE CRYD AR AE HE AEH1,000,0007
Shenzhen Zhongda Youbeigin The PRC RMB10,000
Medical Technology
Management Co., Ltd.
RPEREREANRAEE M AEH10,0007

BRAA
* Not audited by KTC Partners CPA Limited

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FZ&BZREMRA A

- 100 (2023:100)  Development of customised clothing
Brand in live streaming industry

REREZREERCRERME

Provision of consultancy service

- 100 (ZEZZ&:100)
- 99 (2023: 99)

- 99 (ZZZZF:99)  REBHERE

* AEPIHMES M EBAAERIBEX

FRIEARRFEERREAFEAEE
XERIZPEIBRASEEEFET
ERDZARBMBRAB - ARAEER
RBEMBNEARZERMIILE<RIEE
Rtk

REMBHRREREEREX
SR ERER

BWELEAMBRRIDZBELGFIMAE
((BEBEMAG ) BHZEEVBRS
HH([BEBMBRERER]) (BEMBEE
REBMBRELE FEGHEN(E
BEER])M2RE) BEARERA
REBRARGHZEEREMRE L F
HAMBRRTETEBHEXIMAR
NEESF ETRA(TEWRRA ) 288

TR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for the equity, fund and debt investments
and investment properties which have been measured at fair
values. These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the functional
currency of the Company, and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

(@) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs

In the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group has applied, for the first time, the following
revised standards issued by the HKICPA.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current
and Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial

(Revised) Statements — Classification

by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand

Clause

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in Sale and
Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements

and HKFRS 7

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

2.

GEUBBRREREEREKX
SITBERER (@)

W ELE AR TIIRIBE L AL RE
e RATFEFEZ#R B REBKR
BEUARBREMERIN - I EFHRAPHHEER
UARB 2z a® BT ([Bx])IR:
BABEHEPN MAEBEANEERED
FhLe

(@ BFRAFIIRLETEBMBRE
ZE B
AEBRBREHBEZE_Z_NF+_A
T BUHFEZEAYBHRRED
BXERBHEBSGAMASEMBZ T
IS T 2R

BEAERER BRRBIFRD
F1RZEF] BESBRME
REMFERBEE
BEARESSE  MBEERRMEN -
(&1ERT) ERAHSARE
SRABIE (B H TE 2

ERZAE

BEAMBRE ERMEECHERR
ERIF165 2
fE7]

BEAR TR HERBME LY
F7RRE BB
HEEAF7HEZ
{E7]

RAFERNZERETEBTHER
SRABPAEERFERBEFE L
BE S R R K,k bt F 4R & B 7
BEABCHEARYEBELEMNE

S/ 488
R &o
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Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2024. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities

of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances

in assessing whether it has power over an investee.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until

the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FZ&BZREMRA A

2.

n\li\

=

(b)

EHMEBRRBREEREK
FTEERER (@)

GERBEXE
BABBRRBEARTRERBA
RBE_ZT_WNF+_-_A=+—H1t
FEZOBRER -WERARALARQA
HEESMEEZH 2 EE (BEAEE
) EALEBERAEREYEM
Ho2OoRATRAKRKZEEEFNAS
BENEREHREHRZENTEZ
LRR(ANE FAEEIRGEE HIEE
REHRIBEEB 2B ERER)
ERBAAREEEHIREHR) -

(ERNNCIN=RE 3 AR kS R R AN 2§
BREHRRERLEBLUER K&
ERFEEEERREHRERNE
ZRMAERBSEERBR-

B /i 2~ B B 15 $R R TD B AR 2 ] AR A
ZHREIRAR S B RRE M B
NAEZEBEAAREEBUSZEGIE 2 A
ARG AR WEZZEHRELERIE
—H&HEE Al

BRIl HMZARSZEERBNA
SEBRRHEA A NMIERE D - A
B BE PR A B A B A A R
FERAEBKERRZHERXZHEA
ZEEREEREE #m WK
X RB e REHRERE A RRE T2
B ©

5 FE R B LR LSRR Hl
ZERBEPELE AN ZAEE:
AEBEEHFEEROREHREY
RZEGE-RIBABEEEER
ZEH (WEREEGE)RARE
SIVEREZR A 5 °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. HREMBEHRRFEREEREK
statements and material accounting policy B ERERER 30

information (continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (continued) b) LERBEEE(H)
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it fied 7% 52 [ 5k 25 B /&8 B 2 4% o 4 - A
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) SRIEEROZMBRARZEE (B
and liabilities of the subsidiary; (ii) the carrying EEEB)RARE: () EAEERER
amount of any non-controlling interest; and (iii) the ZBREE: R (i) st A 2 REHE
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; HER: THERHEKREZATE:
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration (i) R EREBIRE 2 2 FE: Kiii)
received; (i) the fair value of any investment retained; FPAE R 2 B AE R & BR B AL o fi
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. AEBEBERELEEEEEREE
The Group's share of components previously recognised FERTA B 2 W & B R A& E
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit EAERD DR FIBRIREREEE
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same MOBERBESRE RN -
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

(c) Business combination and goodwill (c) ¥BE/HEEE

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The concentration
test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the
gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If
the concentration test is met, the set of activities and
assets is determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measures
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquirees identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

AEEAEZFENEBRISHELERA
BEFEAG ATHMKRE . —HEE
BREELTWIF—REBHIEHIF
B BREENAFEET S
HRE R E AR EESR A
AR BRI EET - A& SRR -
HEZREETBRASRAELEE
YOERRAEE MBELERER
EXEELZEHE - WHAKETER
AR MNEENETE /SLIEE
B R BIALEHE — Bt

EBAHUBEEIAKR BEERE
A RS AFERE ZRFE
RAKRBEMEBEEENRERROQ
FE RNEEMAERKET RS
AR B E RAREE T AR ERK
BN AESOAN - RNE
EBEMHT AEBEEEEURF
EE W BT Al BRI B ERENE
HLh A ERWBETBREEA
e RS YETRAA
R BRI I REEEFE
FFEB R T B EMAKE DR A
FEMAE - BWBHBANORAREE
RS A3 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(9]

Business combination and goodwill (continued)
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

100 Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited # 5 M2 H R 2 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. HREMBEHRRFEREEREK
statements and material accounting policy B ERERER 30

information (continued)

(c) Business combination and goodwill (continued) (c) ¥BEHEEE (&)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable BMERHERERBA R eELEM
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash- (REELBMAR) AT E & EEST
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. ZHEEE - WHReELAEML(RE
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating EFEEMARN) 2B &EIRE
unit (group of cash generating units) is less than the BREE BRI RN E RS- s B
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An REREBE TSN E & AR -
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating HMEWOIEZEReELSEM (KRS
unit (or group of cash generating units) and part of the EEBEMARN) BZBAHEID
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill BROER BREEHE 2 WaE%k
associated with the operation disposed of is included in BER BEEXBHRBANEEFTA
the carrying amount of the operation when determining REBZFREE - ERZEBERATHE
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of ZEEBALEEBNRENRSE
in these circumstance is measured based on the relative EEUROEEEESELEFTE-
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

(d) Investment in an associate d REBELATZRE

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, which is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decision of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, less any impairment losses, unless it is
classified as held for sale. Adjustments are made to
bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that
may exist. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post-acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating
to the investment. Any acquisition-date excess over cost,
the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the investees and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(d)

(e)

Investment in an associate (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to
zero and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in
the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates is included as part of the
Group’s investments in associates.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over the following
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease terms
or 3 years, whichever is
shorter

Motor vehicles, furniture,

fixtures and equipment

3 to 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

®

(®

Investment properties

Investment properties is interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for properties which would otherwise meet the
definition of investment properties) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of
the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment property is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they
arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment properties is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year of the retirement
or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. HREMBEHRRFEREEREK
statements and material accounting policy B ERERER 30

information (continued)

(h) Impairment of non-financial assets (h FEREERME
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when WEDRBREHRRENEREEE

annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than financial assets and deferred tax assets), the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. An asset
recoverable amount is the higher of the value in use of
the asset or cash-generating unit to which it belongs and
its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any amortisation or depreciation), had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

@)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial assets contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for Revenue
recognition below. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets (other
than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to the fair value of the financial assets, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPP1”) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Interest/dividend income which is derived from the
Group’s ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. FEMBREMRELEREA
statements and material accounting policy S BERER (80
information (continued)

(i) Investments and other financial assets (continued) () RERHEMEBHEE (8)
Subsequent measurement Higit =2
Financial assets are classified as measured at amortised TRHEESDHERRBENEA FHA
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income, b2 B RR R FEINKRIEBESR
and fair value through profit or loss. The subsequent BRATEIGAE - eMEENER
measurement of financial assets depends on their STERAESBET T

classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) REHKATENEREE (BT
H)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if fieh o R2 LA TS B 6% F - AN 5% LS i

both of the following conditions are met: HNANFTESREE

e The financial asset is held within a business model e RNREEBATREENKIRAS
with the objective to hold financial assets in order HWRERENEBRATHER
to collect contractual cash flows. WEMEE-

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give e TREEMAMNEINEEH
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely HEANRSREAR BN
payments of principal and interest on the principal e RAREERSHNE -

amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently REBHEKAAENEREEHRER
measured using the effective interest method and are BERMEEFE WA RELE -
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised BERERIER ERISORER K
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is A MEBRNERRPER -

derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other 1EE B BE M E W 152 F1ES)
comprehensive income (equity investments) R BE (RFKE)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify R ERE AEBEAEEZERERAR
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments REMABEGFTERNENRERMT
designated at fair value through other comprehensive B 2WMETHRAER AL IFFHE
income when they meet the definition of equity under BEE  HERANKE A #E S
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are BRETEBEMEENERATE
not held for trading. The classification is determined on SRR AR E - B Th IR E R T A
an instrument-by-instrument basis. BEEEF-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

@)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments) (continued)
Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Dividends are recognised as revenue in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are
not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,
or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

@

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

This category includes derivative instruments
and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
profit or loss are also recognised as revenue in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated
from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative
if the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss.

2.

I8

AMBEERREERE A

SHBEER &

@

REREMEREE (&)

BBRmE N FEIES T BEE

(#&)

Z BB B AR AN & B A T ]
BoERAZBAMEEWSEZATE
SIRZITAETEARRAIRE - 5BR
FEERRATEIEZEHEEDN
AR E I B R ERS kgﬁmm%ﬂ
S - B ASS AR R B AR R s 1R AT Bk

MAREE  AREMNSREEMA] 52
FAERTTNMEABERABARKA -

ERARBEEHN(BEemAaGEE
TRFE)NTTETAEABHETE
EEEENCBES R R R B A
MARTETARRKRNERTA
RETETANER BREAOT
FBEBEREATERE  AZITE
TRAEFBAIFUIEAEEITETA
PR - MARPTE T EIZ QAT AT E
BEATEEDNGEERRER
1$Q?ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ K e i B H
IR T & Iﬁi/miHT HE R D
ﬁzﬁﬂﬁ@ﬁ@?ﬁﬂ%miﬂé
EESHOER  FETERTG.

BRARGAN(BEEeRMEETR)
MITETAEATERIIR - SREE
Imﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬁilﬂﬁ¥m“ﬁ
BEREAFEIIRZEMEE -

E

I]]]

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F£# 109



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

@)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

J the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
passthrough arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. HREMBEHRRFEREEREK
statements and material accounting policy B ERERER 30

information (continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

For financial assets, except for receivables from margin
clients and receivables from cash clients, the Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in
credit risk when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due. The Group considers these financial
assets are in default when contractual payments are 90
days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

For receivables from margin client and cash clients, the
Group considers there has been a significant increase
in credit risk when clients cannot meet the margin
call requirement and uses the loan-to-collateral value
(“LTV”) to make its assessment. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a margin client
receivable to be in default when there is a margin
shortfall which indicates the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full taking into
account the pledged securities held by the Group. A
margin client receivable is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs.

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not purchased
or originated credit-impaired) and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

()

(k)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has applied loss rates which are
reference to the default rates from international credit
rating agencies, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, accruals, lease liabilities, bank overdrafts and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and note
payable.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(k)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Loans and borrowings (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Modification of financial liabilities

Except for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform in which the Group applies the
practical expedient, when the contractual terms of
a financial liability are modified, the Group assess
whether the revised terms result in a substantial
modification from original terms taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not
conclusive, the Group considers that the terms are
substantially different if the discounted present value
of the cash flows under the new terms, including any
fees paid net of any fees received, and discounted
using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10
percent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability. Accordingly, such modification of terms is
accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees
incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on
the extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 percent.

114  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FiZ &£ EZRE R A 7

2.

n\li\

=

(k)

EHMEBRRBREEREK
FTEERER (@)

TWMEE ()

Higqit 2 (&)

ERREE (FE)

AR AR S B EATE LT
MTEIEE AREREERN X —
BB 2 B RSN o BRI R 55t
ANBumRZMBER-

HIFER A &
ERE NHERBEMEE  BUE S AW
RREERZERAR

WE—HRAEERABERKER &
RO BERBAEREGBEERN 2% — A
SREBERMDRK RERBEZHERX
WARES R EBRIERER L
HARABABYHIAMAGBRE M
& FREEZ M Z BN B R TER o

Tk 8=N

BN R EENE MEHHETE SRR
ERENEMBLEBI (EXFB
AT ARERBBLETTE) ETR
BENE RGKRER R AEEH
EZEMBEMEBEENBR (BREEME
HE) FEEFTROGAEEEH
HRIGHETOEEEBR - RER
MR TR G WRBEHMGRFRE
MENFTRRE (BEMATIRRER
MEHBROERMER (CHGRAEE
A)BEFcHABERBKRASREN
FRBEZLH10% =5 BIERKRZ
FHEAATHER - B % F R
ERIERRIEERZEAR ELN
EAARAKE BRSNS
— WD MR BHRIETHERERN
10% QIR BIFEEEER] -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. HREMBEHRRFEREEREK
statements and material accounting policy B ERERER 30

information (continued)

(k)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Modlification of financial liabilities (continued)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated
at the present value of the modified contractual cash
flows discounted at the financial liabilities original
effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred
are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial liabilities and are amortised over the remaining
term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the
date of modification.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention

(k)

THMEE (8

CiTz @A E (E)
ATEERRIEANERAGBIE
RER HESMABNEREERZ
TRBERERMEBBRNEERTS
RAReRBAEFE - FEEI SRR
LERAEREEESRAENERR
ERRBTHEREHE TANEREE
AREEMFEMERT A MR E SR -

EHTRZHEH

RIS A RO TT 2 R EE
BREH MEBFEFRELEEXRE
BREERFERER 2REENR
TREET A EREE WEFES

to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle WM AR RA ©
the liabilities simultaneously.

() Leases I B\E
Definition of a lease HEM T %

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative standalone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components, including
contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a
property which includes both leasehold land and non-
lease building components, unless such allocation
cannot be made reliably.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when
the Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

U]

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of premises that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

J any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

J any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

J an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)
() Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

J variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the option;
and

J payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)
() Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model. Variable lease payments for
operating leases that depend on an index or a rate are
estimated and included in the total lease payments to be
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index

or a rate are recognised as income when they arise.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date
at amounts equal to net investments in the leases,
measured using the interest rate implicit in the
Interest income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding

respective leases.

in respect of the leases.

Sub-lease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts
for the head lease and the sub-lease as two separate
contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the

underlying asset.

The Group uses the discount rate used for the head
lease (adjusted for any initial direct costs associated with
the sub-lease) to measure the net investment in the sub-
lease if the interest rate implicit in the sub-lease cannot

be readily determined.

2.

GREUBHRREREEREKX
STEERER (@)

0]

HE ()

K BE5H TN

REHD BRI E
AEEEARBAZ BEDAARE
S EE - % BE RSB ENEE

BERENTOHBAED AR & O H®E
BEABRAR ZEODNDDBRERE

HE-FEEMBAEANEREER

1=
=

REEEHENEDRALBERER
ERAEBANERER - EERLHE
REBERELNBRERRAGA
HEEENREE FAKANEDR
NIRBEREEDBRAS RREME
AR A FERAFE - BURRIER K
LERNEEHE I ERENFETT
ﬁﬁAI#AMﬁiﬁmﬂ%W$u
FER B TH B FRARRE P - W FFEURR
h@imTﬁmmT“ﬂfﬁmFF
ERER DA -

RIZ # & S R YOR AR BURR B
HAMERREKFTIE E2BER
HERBEFR YHEASEHRETR
SN KRFE-FBEWARE S
BADE WRRAEEFBEEN
REEREFEIEHDHE-

DHEE

EAKERTRGOEAR ﬁ%%ﬁ
ERAHEARSMNDBILAK 7
ﬁfﬁﬂ%IﬂfFimﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
(F2EHBEE) RO BER/BRELRL
“EHE-

D HER S AR A EE ] S EE -

%$$Eﬁ%$ﬁ%%%%%ﬁ$(%
7 M E R A6 B AN

W%#E“ﬁf2&§@%°



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. HREMBEHRRFEREEREK
statements and material accounting policy B ERERER 30

information (continued)
(m) Cash and bank balances

(n)

(o)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and bank balances comprise
cash on hand and cash at banks, which are not
restricted as to use.

Bank balances held on behalf of clients

The Group has classified the clients’” monies as bank
balances held on behalf of customers under the current
assets section of the consolidated financial position
and recognised a corresponding trade payable to
respective clients on grounds that is liable for any loss
or misappropriation of clients” monies.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —ZFE_/F+—H=+—HIFZF

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)
(p) Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
tax authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries

in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

J in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. HREMBEHRRFEREEREK
statements and material accounting policy B ERERER 30

information (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

J in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

(p)

FRiG% (#)
EETIABEEIBLATE AR B B
ZE - APARBELARREIMARSA
BHEEBZH#ETURR - BLEHIE
BENA ERTUR M AT K 55 7 7R
EREHE KPARAEARRASHA
IR E R 2 W8 o] 2) AR By T LA RERR
KA T BRERSN

© RUFEBAGIRFPER
RRZAESAM (BRI HH
I 7 5 & 7 % 8 R B
FSUBS 18) P2 SR T HR T
EEEMLEEHEEE: R

e HERKMBARZREGHRZ
AR EREZEME  ERE R
ZHAAREEN R HRER
RERABGENHESERDY
REERHEZBERT 7T RRIE
EFRIBEE

EREMIAEE REEINESREH
REH  WR A RIEER & 5 R
MAB B2 E B ELEHAEER
FTUMEEIR - KRR RLEHIEE
ETRNERERRERTG LRA
REIETS B S0 SR Bt A A Uk Bl 2= B 5k
IR IREE Z BT T AMER

BEXERBEERABEDRERRE B
REERICEEER 2R E (RB
) RBREELFERBZHME
BHERZRETAFTE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F# 121



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(p)

(q

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
control of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

J the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(q

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Commission income from securities dealing

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in
time when the customer has received the service from
the Group, generally when the trades are executed.
Commission and handling income on securities dealing
and broking is generally due within two days after trade
date.

Commission income from placing

The performance obligation is satisfied at point in time
when the customer has received the service from the
Group. The customer receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group when the relevant services are
rendered.

Advisory fee income

The Group provides asset management and investment
advisory services on diversified and comprehensive
investment products to customers. Advisory fee income
is charged at a fixed percentage per month on the net
asset value of the fund managed by Group. The advisory
fee income is recognised when it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the net asset
value of the fund is confirmed at each month end.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Performance fee income

The Group is entitled to performance fee income from
its fund management business when the net asset value
of the fund exceeds certain benchmark at the end of
the relevant performance period. Similar to the advisory
fee income of the fund, the performance fee income is
recognised when it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the net asset value of the fund is
confirmed at each relevant performance period.

Revenue from other sources
Property rental income is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. HREMBEHRRFEREEREK
statements and material accounting policy B ERERER 30

information (continued)

(r)

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using the binomial model, further details of which
are set out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(r)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
nonmarket performance and/or service conditions
have not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of
the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. FEMBREMRELEREA
statements and material accounting policy S BERER (80
information (continued)

(s) Other employee benefits s) HEEREHN

Retirement benefit schemes RIKIETIETE)

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory A& B R A B2 ENEDI A
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF HFARERIERHERBIESRIK
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes BN E ([RELsal) - HTRE
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are BEAFEETADLFE WK
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic wIE & Bl 2 AR AE R B MR R E
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss mEAPHNKR -RESTEZEENE
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of VEBZECRAEEZ BED AR
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held B AEEZEETHERRNMBESE
separately from those of the Group in an independently EEL AR EBREEMA  WRE
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions BEBETENAAN WEEXNESD
vest fully with the employees when contributed into BHRATEER A AR E R RES A
the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer EEL z BERERBRETAER-
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the REBRESTE BIREEHAR
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to BEBBRAZ5%E A1,500%8 T
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the ZBIEE MG EIEH R

rules of the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at the lower of 5% of the
employees’ relevant income or HK$1,500 each month.

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group REBRPELEXEB L HMBRARZ
which operate in the PRC are required to participate BREASEHMTTERNER 2R
in the central pension scheme operated by the local RIRGHE - Z S ENEB AR AR
municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries are AHBRRIAEN TERAREB DL
required to contribute a prescribed percentage of their M JGRIRGHEIMH R (BETE T £
payroll costs, subject to certain ceilings imposed, to BR) o« R AR IE R RIBRIRETEER
the central pension scheme as specified by the local AR AEARSBERIE -

municipal government. The contributions are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

Defined benefit plan SRIEETIET 2]

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost HAERABRKEBNEMS - =R MH
of providing benefits is determined using the projected BRZEATERBEFEMEEE
unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being WHREFERERARETEELET
carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. B -BFAE(RREREEER BEE
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and FR(MER)EHNTEREE
losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if EER (TeENE) )b R MR ER
applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding BEISARR R A - TS ok BR B R
interest), is reflected immediately in the consolidated EXHEREM2EREANER -
statement of financial position with a charge or credit H A 2 T W 21 PO e R B BB 5 B B T
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period RERREBFNA LK TS EHFD
in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in BEEHE-

other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(s)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plan (continued)

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the
period of a plan amendment or curtailment and a gain
or loss on settlement is recognised when settlement
occurs. When determining past service cost, or a gain
or loss on settlement, an entity shall remeasure the net
defined benefit liability or asset using the current fair
value of plan assets and current actuarial assumptions,
reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the
plan assets before and after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, without considering the effect
of asset ceiling (i.e. the present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan
or reductions in future contributions to the plan). Net
interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at
the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit
liability or asset. However, if the Group remeasures
the net defined benefit liability or asset before plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement, the Group
determines net interest for the remainder of the annual
reporting period after the plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement using the benefits offered under the
plan and the plan assets after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement and the discount rate used to
remeasure such net defined benefit liability or asset,
taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability or asset during the period resulting from
contributions or benefit payments.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

. service cost (including current service cost,
past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

o net interest expense or income; and
J remeasurement.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents
the actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined
benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation
is limited to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plans or
reductions in future contributions to the plans.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. HREMBEHRRFEREEREK
statements and material accounting policy B ERERER 30

information (continued)

(s)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plan (continued)

Discretionary contributions made by employees or
third parties reduce service cost upon payment of these
contributions to the plan.

(s)

Hitg S| F (8)

REEET 2 (#8)
BERFE=FELNBBEHERRN M
) &1 81 P BB IR D IR B A

When the formal terms of the plans specify that there Mk E et B EXRKETA BB
will be contributions from employees or third parties, FBE=FHAEITHI BIERE BUAR
the accounting depends on whether the contributions HAREERSAERM - FHBAWT

are linked to service, as follows:

o If the contributions are not linked to services (for
example contributions are required to reduce
a deficit arising from losses on plan assets or
from actuarial losses), they are reflected in the
remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability
or asset.

J If contributions are linked to services, they reduce
service costs. For the amount of contribution that
is dependent on the number of years of service,
the entity reduces service cost by attributing
the contributions to periods of service using
the attribution method required by HKAS 19
paragraph 70 for the gross benefits. For the amount
of contribution that is independent of the number
of years of service, the entity reduces service cost
by attributing contributions to the employees’
periods of service in accordance with HKAS 19
paragraph 70.

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the employer
MPF contributions expected to be offset as a deemed
employee contribution towards the LSP obligation in
terms of HKAS 19.93(a) and it is measure on a net basis.
The estimated amount of future benefit is determined
after deducting the negative service cost arising from
the accrued benefits derived from the Group’s MPF
contributions that have been vested with employees,
which are deemed to be contributions from the relevant
employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(s)

®

(u)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plan (continued)

Reimbursement assets

The Group recognises reimbursement asset as a
separate asset because it is virtually certain that another
party (e.g. the trustee) will reimburse some or all of
the expenditure required to settle LSP obligation of
the Group, capped at the portion related to accrued
benefits before the Transition Date. The Group measures
the reimbursement assets at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The changes in fair value are
disaggregated and recognised in the same way as for
changes in fair value of plan assets. The components of
the defined benefit cost recognised is recognised net of
amounts relating to changes in the carrying amount of
the right to reimbursement.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. HREMBEHRRFEREEREK
statements and material accounting policy B ERERER 30

information (continued)

(w)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss with the exception of monetary items that
are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the net investment
is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount is
reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange
differences on those monetary items are also recorded
in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the
date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries = TBINERA] E’JljjA B IEE
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at ToRBMEHRR ZFEBNEERK

the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T A R R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(u)

(v)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity, fund and debt
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participants ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. HREMBEHRRFEREEREK
statements and material accounting policy B ERERER 30

information (continued)

(v)

(w)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

(v)

DNFEFE (8)

RV EEGAMBERRAGTERKE
MITEEENMABE DERYAFE
AAEERMEBEANREEREA
BEIERTARNFERER:

Level 1 -  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) FE—EH - REREEXBER
in active markets for identical assets or EERTISHME (K
liabilities ERE)

level2 -  based on valuation techniques FEHR - BRREBR@EABE
for which the lowest level input EEAREBRRER
that is significant to the fair value HAVTEFAEFERX
measurement is observable, either FEMMER A
directly or indirectly

level 3 -  based on valuation techniques F=EH - BRREBR@EABE

for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Governments grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants relate to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under other
income and gains/(losses), net.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(x) Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(I)  the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

() the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (I);

(vii) a person identified in (I)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)
(y) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted
average cost basis and includes all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion, and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Significant judgements and estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
requires the directors of the Company to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

3. Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods. Our key sources of estimation uncertainty
are as follows:

Credit loss allowances of trade receivables from
securities dealing business

The Group calculates the ECLs of trade receivables from
margin clients and cash clients by estimating the probability
of decline in expected future collateral prices and liquidity of
collateral, with adjustment to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

Credit loss allowances of loan and interest receivables
from money lending business

The Group calculates the ECLs of loan and interest receivables
from individual clients based on the loss rates which are
reference to the default rates from international credit rating
agencies, with adjustment to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

The Group calculates the ECLs of loan and interest receivables
from corporate clients based on these loss rates which are
reference to the default rates from international credit rating
agencies, adjusted for forward-looking futures specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Credit loss allowances of trade receivables from the
placing and asset management business

The Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has applied loss rates which are reference to the
default rates from international credit rating agencies, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

As part of a qualitative assessment of whether a counterparty
is in default, the Group also considers a variety of instances
that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. When certain events
occur, the Group carefully considers whether the events
should result in determining the counterparties as defaulted.

Other than the above, no credit loss allowance has been
provided for other financial assets as the related credit loss
allowance were immaterial.

As at the end of the reporting date, the credit loss allowance
for each type of financial assets is as follows:

B R HE RS (@)
HEREEEEEXER 2ERE SR
FEEFERE
AEEHEEBEEHBEEREE.
REEEE AEMUEBEREERRY
Fi RTNEREDHRELBEHES
EFBERAGEEE AEEERFEX
(2ZBERERIRBBIELNEHE)
WEEARCEBEN S TAEERE
YEdiERRE -

ERERSHH N EEENNEEFERN—
o NREENEE A BERAT AR B
NOERIEN - EHLEABEMHE  AEE
EHAERREENEARERER Y
FRBEN-

B EXCATatE SN S K b & BB AR
REEBHBRRE RASHEBEEBHRR
BEBTEXN-

RESEAHMR SREREENEEBR
BismT

Loan receivables from money lending M E ¥ #E 4+ 7 B E X
business

Trade receivables from securities ERBEEXRBEEZ
dealing business e E 5 BR X

Trade receivables from placing and MENREEEBREBEELEZ
asset management business FEW B 5 BR K

Other receivables H Ath & WK IA

2024 2023
—EUE —E-=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET AT
81,285 60,713
259,779 256,728
89 205

17,225 8,063
358,378 325,709

Further details are set out in Notes 21, 22, 23 and 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T A R R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

3. Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Income tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
carried forward to the extent that it is probable (i.e., more
likely than not) that future taxable profits will be available
against which the unused tax losses can be utilised, based
on all available evidence. Recognition primarily involves
judgement regarding the future performance of the particular
legal entity or tax group in which the deferred tax asset has
been recognised. A variety of other factors are also evaluated
in considering whether there is convincing evidence that it
is probable that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will ultimately be realised, such as the existence of taxable
temporary differences, tax planning strategies and the periods
in which estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets and related financial models
and budgets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and to the extent that there is insufficient convincing evidence
that sufficient taxable profits will be available within the
utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses carried
forward, and the asset balance will be reduced and charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

4. Operating segment information

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations and
the products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of the other business
segments. Summary of details of the operating segments of the
Group are as follows:

(@ the financial investments and services segment
comprises financial investments and trading, debt
and equity investments, advisory and money lending
business;

(b) the brokerage and commission segment comprises
provision of trading in securities contracts services; and

(c) the corporate and others segment comprises
consultancy, sales of goods and corporate expense
items.

138 Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited # 3 & E 1 H R 2 7

B R HE RS (@)

gy

BELHEPRBEES SRBEHAE
EREGEIHBEERZZER RS
WS 2 BREE Y — )R R A

ERERBEENEE Z RBARBGERM
TAER EARBEABE IR BER
RAIBER (BDIRA AT BE ) AR SR & AR B0k A A]
NKRBAHBERTUNEERR - HER

BERZAG N ERBERECHEEEZ
FEZRERAMBER ZRKKRE -1
ZREBAAGRZBERTAIRERS
HEMELERRE ERKGEZIRE
EHEZRAMER BRFERRRE
By 22 BR - B0 7% AR B SR B N R ) A R ET AR A
BRZHR NEBRRERE ARG TR
EMBEEZRAENREBEM BRI ETR
H MELBERDAERIBEBRTRE
RHBAKE RHERTENARFBAE
RENKEER MEESHRSERD LR
HEBmRMR-

KEenBEHR
AREBZEEXBHRBEEHEERE
REZERNMRE D BIETES R ER-
AEEE-—RKENBIRKR - REEBKE
i - A B B8 o fE 0 2 om K AR 7 P AR HE 2 R
REAEEREEMEZDBIE A&
BEE B MEFBOT

@ MBREERRHSE BERMBERE
REBE -BEHEBEAKRE FEHAR
MEE:

by BEFMENE BREHEEES
BHRS &

© GEREMDE SFEBER HED
m&ABEMER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Operating segment information (continued)
Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is measured consistently with the Group’s loss before
income tax except that bank interest income, share of losses
of an associate, finance costs, head office expenses, loss on
disposal of investment properties and corporate expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and bank balances, investment
in an associate, deferred tax assets and other unallocated
head office and corporate assets as these assets are managed
on a group basis.

No operating segment of the Group has been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Segment liabilities exclude, bank overdrafts, bank borrowings,
other borrowings, tax payable, and other unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

ReEsFER (@)

4. Operating segment information (continued) 4.

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE-_Z_HNE+-_BA=1+—HLEEE

Financial
investments  Brokerage and Corporate
and services commission and others  Consolidated
BRRER
R RERfE EERHEAM =E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THER THER
Segment revenue: 2ERA:
External IR 38,842 36,107 759 75,708
Total @t 38,842 36,107 759 75,708
Segment results DEEE 5,983 1,131 (51,390) (44,276)
Reconciliation: #Hik:
Bank interest income |ITHBUA 1,650
Unallocated expenses ADERX (1,163)
Finance costs BBER (8,355)
Provision for impairment loss REREBREES
on inventories (283)
Loss on disposal of investment &R AN EEE
properties (6,191)
Share of losses of an associate HME—EBE AR EE (24,545)
Loss before income tax BRETSBLATES 1B (83,163)
Income tax expense PrEHR X =
Loss for the year AEFEHR (83,163)
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Segment assets DEEE 649,025 130,614 101,352 880,991
Reconciliation: #HE
Unallocated assets AOMEE 146,706
Total assets BEBE 1,027,697
Segment liabilities NEEE 112,172 11,887 124,624
Reconciliation: HEE
Unallocated liabilities AOWMAEE 169,946
Total liabilities RERE 294,570
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Operating segment information (continued) 4.

«(,u/

KESWER (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 Eﬁf:: C =+ -_A=+—RHILFE
Financial
investments  Brokerage and Corporate
and services commission and others  Consolidated
B ER
AR 1% B ke EREM ey
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET TET
Segment revenue: 2ERA:
External IR 24,086 54,037 12,037 90,160
Intersegment sales NEEHE - 44 - 44
24,086 54,081 12,037 90,204
Elimination B - (44) - (44)
Total st 24,086 54,037 12,037 90,160
Segment results DEEE (613) (50,983) (53,400) (104,996)
Reconciliation: K
Bank interest income BITFBWA 97
Unallocated expenses AREHEX (5,036)
Finance costs 81752 A (13,495)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries  {H &M EAE 2 EE (474)
Share of losses of an associate HME—HBEARZER (8,962)
Share of losses of a joint venture ~ Ah—fHEERE 2 EE (890)
Loss before income tax Ffﬁﬁ A& 18 (133,756)
Income tax expense FiEHRE % (95)
Loss for the year AEEERE (133,851)
Assets and liabilities EERER
Segment assets NEEE 646,190 151,753 61,875 859,818
Reconciliation: #ik:
Unallocated assets ADBEE 180,206
Total assets BERE 1,040,024
Segment liabilities NEEE 197 80,596 12,789 93,582
Reconciliation: #ik:
Unallocated liabilities Aok ERE 169,758
Total liabilities BEBE 263,340
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4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. REIEER )
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE-Z-_NF+=-A=+—-HLEFE
Financial
investments  Brokerage and Corporate
and services commission and others  Consolidated
BRRER
% RERFEE  CERHEM ®E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr T T T
Depreciation on property, plant 1% B R R ETE
and equipment 49 1,245 1,294
Depreciation on right-of-use assets {# FIiE & ENE - 2,887 2,887
Provision for credit loss BEBEECRKERZ

allowances on loan receivables ~ {EEEEBRETFE
from money lending business,
net

Provision for credit loss BHEBEBEE RN
allowances on trade receivables ~ Z SR 2 5 BB 1R E
from securities dealing business, &2/ F 5

net

Reversal of credit loss allowances BEREEETEERESE
on trade receivables from LEREBEGERCEE
placing and asset management 5 18 7 & & [E )5 58
business, net

Provision for credit loss BB Re REMER
allowances on financial assets FERE/EREEL
included in prepayments, CEERRGH RIS
deposits and other receivables,
net

Capital expenditure* BAR

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BARXBREANEYR BHERRME-

equipment.
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4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. REIEEHR )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BHE_T-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE
Financial
investments  Brokerage and Corporate
and services commission and others  Consolidated
FBERER
R 7% wekfe PEREAM RA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHT FHT
Depreciation on property, plant %1% FiE RSB ETE
and equipment - 292 1,311 1,603
Depreciation on right-of-use assets {f 4 EHT& - - 2,993 2,993
Provision for credit loss BEEBEEZERER
allowances on loan receivables 2 EEEBREE R
from money lending business, e
net 123 - - 123
Reversal of credit loss allowances % & B ¥ /%&£ 2 FEU
on trade receivables from BN EERER
securities dealing business, net BREEE - (5,340) - (5,340)
Reversal of credit loss allowances E&EREEEEERES
on trade receivables from KB GEREE
placing and asset management 5 18 8 & & [21 /5 58
business, net (464) (78) - (542)
Reversal of credit loss allowances 814705 « 2 & K H At fE i
on financial assets included in FERE EREEL
prepayments, deposits and other  {EE B BEFEERFH
receivables, net (1,774) - - (1,774)
Written off on other receivables — #ifl 85 E 1 JE g 008 - 3,244 - 3,244
Written off on trade receivables — Hi$4 B4 E 5 85 3% 17 - - 17
Capital expenditure* BRI - - 561 561
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BARXBENEWE BEREE-
equipment.
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4. Operating segment information (continued)

Geographical information

The following tables present revenue derived from external
customers for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
and certain non-current assets information as at 31 December
2024 and 2023, by geographical region. The geographical
location of revenue from customers is based on the location
at which the services were provided or the goods delivered.
The geographical location of the specified non-current assets
is based on the physical location of the asset.

Hong Kong
'R

2024
—E-mE

HK$/000
TART

Revenue from external REMREF 2 W
customers
Non-current assets FRBEE
Non-current assets* ERBEE*
* Excluded investment in an associate, equity investments at

fair value through other comprehensive income, deferred tax
assets, loan receivables from money lending business and
prepayments, deposits and other receivables.

Information about major customers

The aggregate revenue during the year attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers was 28.44% (2023: 23.25%) of
the Group’s total revenue, of which 6.45% (2023: 6.26%) was
made to the largest customer.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors of the Company, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interests
in the Group’s customers during the year (2023: Nil).
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2023
e

—<——

TAT
74,949 78,170

577,796 211,293
5,056 3,510

£
HK$'000

RESFER (|
& & B

TRENEZ T -_NMFA_ZT_=F
+-A=Z+—BLFERwEE S ZKRE
INABREZHRENR —_E_NER T
—=E+-A=t—HEMEZHHSZET
IRBEEER -KRARTFE ZWAFTTER
TR EIEHE RSN E R 2
B - BERRDEEZ W NIRIELEE
BT E 5 -

The PRC Total
HE @t
2024 2023 2024 2023

TECNE ekl — T [1F e
HK$000" BEGLCHOON  HKS000 EERIEKN
TER TEL TER TEL

90,160
229,577

759 11,990 75,708

196 18,284 577,992
196 18,284 5,252

* TEER-—HBERRZIRE BEBEM
EHRGEEAFEIIKZEARE RE
MEEAE MEXBEEZEREERLE
NFRIE  1Z S F A e U OE -

EBXFEEFNER

ERN - AEENTAZTPLPOKZEA HE
REFBEW R H28.44% (ZF = =4
23.25%)  ERHEREFE46.45% (=F
T=F6.26%) ¢

FAARBDEFTREMRENBE AL
TR (BARBESHMA SEEAR
BB EITIRAEI5% A IR S| RN A%
BHEFHRATMNEDER (T =4
&)
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Revenue, other income and gains/(losses), net 5. %g)\a CHtt AR K E S (EE)

An analysis of revenue and other income and gains/(losses), BRRA EMBA ks (EB18)FHE
net is as follows: ZOMIAT
2024 2023
—E-pmEF e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER THETT
Revenue [ ON
Revenue from contracts with BB WG ERE 15K LEA
customers within the scope of RE NGRS BT & R & P
HKFRS 15 recognised on a point B ATA

in time basis
Commission income from securities B HFE= 2 A4 WA

dealing 5,250
Commission income from placing ez Ml A 39,539
Advisory fee income B WA 14,119
Sales of goods S m 577
Consultancy fee income EIRE- LI ON 11,460
Revenue from other sources outside &8 81 % & 2ERIE155% & E )

the scope of HKFRS 15 2 B A HIRHA
(Losses)/gains on disposal of equity HEFBBHIEATEIER S

investments at fair value through BAKRE 2 (BE) s

profit or loss 499
Gains/(losses) on disposal of debt HEBBEREAFENEZ

investments at fair value through BBRE 2 W= (F18)

profit or loss (18,332)
Losses on disposal of fund investments & #EiBE=IE A TFEFEZ

at fair value through profit or loss HeREZER (433)
Dividend income from investment in ~ ETRAFHFIEE 2 R EWA

listed equity securities 94
Interest income from money lending  E %52 5 B A

business 27,403
Interest income from securities margin  F#FHRF & B E 2 5 B A

financing 9,248
Interest income from debt investments &% & 2 F B U A 736

90,160
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

Revenue, other income and gains/(losses), net

(continued)

An analysis of revenue and other income and gains/(losses),

net is as follows: (continued)

=ECHE )

WA HEtt AR KRGS (B])

BREBA A A RN (BR)FE

2T (8&)

2024

—E-_NEF

Notes HK$’000
Bt FERT

Other income and gains/(losses),
net

Bank interest income

Handling fee income

Rental income

Interest income on finance lease
receivables

Interest income on other
receivables

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on early repayment of
promissory note

(Loss)/gain on early repayment of
other receivables

Gain on early repayment of note

Hittg AR Wi~ (B518)
RE

RITHAEBHA
FEBURA

HE WA
BMEHERUIAEZ
B A

H fth & YR IH 2 BB A

HEWE BEMREZ
Wz
REEEALEBZER

REEEHEMEBYRFIEZ
(BHR) s
REPEEERNZEERZ K

26(ii)(b)

19

payable
Others Hity
Note: B 5

(i) This amount represented the rental income from leases of
investment properties and sub-leases of properties under
operating lease arrangements with leases negotiated for three to

eight years.

The Group ceased to receive rental income since the disposal
of investment properties in July 2024 and the sub-leases of
properties was expired in February 2024 with no renewal of

rental agreement.
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2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FH T

97
1,491
2,057

220

6,298

(1,474)

32

987
1,376

11,084

() ZEeREREEEEELHETHERE
MEREEMEZ2HSRA FHRBEER

ER=ZENEF-

B-ZE_MELABEREMER K&
ETBRBRESKA-MEERHE R =
ToMFE—ARER UEETEHEDS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

Finance costs 6. MBEHR
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: HBEROITWT:
2024 2023
—E-IEF —Fo=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Interest on bank borrowings RITEER R 399 1,727
Interest on other borrowings HAbEE S
— margin loans —-REZER 1,562
Interest on other borrowings H A 8 & 78
— secured/unsecured — B I 6,580
Interest on bank overdrafts RITEZF B 1,185
Interest on note payable N RIBF B 2,141
Interest on lease liabilities HEABENR 261
Interest on promissory note EAREZHE 29
Others HAh 10
13,495
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

7. Loss before income tax 7. BRITBBATEIE
The Group’s loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/ AEERAEHATEE IR (FTA)
(crediting): THA®ESR:
2024 2023
—E_m4F —E =4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT T T
Depreciation on e
Right-of-use assets (Note 15) FREEE (M:E15) 2,887 2,993
Property, plant and equipment M- BB R FRE (HE13)
(Note 13) 1,294 1,603
4,181 4,596
Employee benefit expenses BE®A ﬁ?ﬂiz (BREEEH)
(including directors’ remuneration (B3E () %&28) :
(Notes (i) and 8)):
Wages and salaries TERES 67,820
Equity-settled share option iR E 2 B 35
arrangements, net (Note 39) (B#E39) 21,600
Retirement benefit scheme RORAE FIFT B
contributions 4,400
93,820
Provision for/(reversal of) credit loss & @& EEE R BEE
allowance on financial assets: aTIR/ (B E)
Provision for credit loss allowance WMEEBEEZRBEERZ
on loan receivables from money EEEEREHTIRFHE
lending business, net 123
Provision for/(reversal of) credit loss SEBEXEBELECEKES
allowance on trade receivables Rz EEEBRETRS
from securities dealing business, (B E) F5
net (5,340)
Reversal of credit loss allowance MEREEERERELEL
provision on trade receivables RWE ZEAZEEHE
from placing and asset BB OERR
management business, net (542)
Provision for/(reversal of) credit loss i‘ﬁﬁﬁ RIE e R E MUK
allowance on financial assets IE’FE LEREECZEER
included in prepayments, deposits JEE?E\ BEHR (#E)
and other receivables, net FEE (1,774)
(7,533)
Lease payments under short-term REEEE T 2 HERNRK
leases (Notes (ii) and 15) (B i) X215) 9,129
Auditors’ remuneration % BN BN & 1,680
Meals and entertainment expenses BRI IREE B A 28,938
Legal and professional fees ERMNEXER 3,573
Written off on other receivables i 8 B b JE UGRIR 3,244
Written off on trade receivables i iH R E B BRI 117
Foreign exchange differences, net MEERR  HE 1,041
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

Loss before income tax (continued) 7. BREFGHATEE @)
Notes: BieE
(i) As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had no forfeited (i) RZB-_WNFER - -_=F+_A=+—
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the A RNEBWEDLKHEZRTBERD K
retirement benefit schemes in future years. RAF R RRAE AT B -
(i) The amount represented short-term lease payments for the (i) ZeHERBEEVHRSENE 165
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 under HKFRS 16. RBE-Z-_MER-_ZT-_=F+_4
=+t—BIEFEZEBREENK-
Directors’ remuneration 8. EEME
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to R ETARR - BB REMEDIZE383(1)(@)
the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong b):(c) RO IERAR AT (HEEEMZZER)
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies ROIE2HMBEE 2 FRNEEMSMT
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:
2024 2023
—EZMEF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Fees ik 1,317 1,302
Salaries, allowances and benefits Fo EZHMEREMREA
in kind 167 692
Equity-settled share option ARz BRELHE 38
arrangements, net 4,908
Retirement benefit scheme IRRAEFIFT S
contributions 37
6,939

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no share options
(2023: 335,140,000) were granted to the directors of the
Company, in respect of their services to the Group, further
details of which are set out in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BE-_Z-_MNWE+_-_A=+—B1-FE"
BMEREA LA ESHASEENRB MFE D
BB (== = =4 :335,140,0001 ) * i
— B BENGRE T HBREFE39 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

8. Directors’ remuneration (continued)

2024 —EoRmE
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman and RERELE
Chief executive officer) (XEFRTHAR)
Mr. Wang Jinsong (Appointed IYRELE(R-T_MmE
on 19 December 2024) TZATNBEZHE)
Mr. Yu Qingrui RESEE

Mr. Li Jing (resigned on 30 May 2024)  FEAEE (RZZ-MF
EAZTREE)
Mr. Lo Siu Kit (appointed on 24 April 2024 EBAALE (RZTZRF

and resigned on 31 July 2024) MA-+NBEEZER
RZF-MELA
=+—REE)
Ms. Song Caini (resigned on 18 June 2024) RFEX T (RZFTZMF
AATNBEE)
Mr. Chen Hongjin (resigned BtensE (R-T-mEF
on 18 June 2024) AAT\EEHE)
Independent non-executive directors* BUKHTES
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (resigned BEREE(RZTZMF
on 22 July 2024) tAZT-REM)
Mr. Chan Ngai Fan (appointed REELLE(R-_T_ME
on 22 July 2024) tA-+-REZEHA)
Mr. Wu Ming RBIE
Ms. Li Meifeng FEELL
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Salaries,
allowances and
benefits in kind

e MR

e BENEHN
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz TR

Retirement
benefit scheme
contributions
BB

HE 8
HK$'000
THET

Total
remuneration

HeaE
HK$'000
FTER
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

Directors’ remuneration (continued) EEME )
Equity-settled
Salaries, share option Retirement
allowances and  arrangements,  benefit scheme Total
Fees  benefits in kind net  contributions  remuneration
REREE
He MRk BRERE AR
ik ENEH F8 sTEIR HegR
2023 2R HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TR TAL TR TR
Executive directors BiTES
Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman) REREE(XR) 960 80 2,454 24 3,518
Ms. Chen Jinxian (resigned BEWLL (R-F=-=F
on 24 July 2023) tAZTmERHE) - 21 - - 21
Mr. Yu Qingrui REHRL 7 55 2,454 5 2,586
Ms. Song Caini (resigned ARERT (RZB-MEF
on 18 June 2024) NATNBEET) - - - - -
Mr. Chen Hongjin (resigned RHexE(R-2oMF
on 18 June 2024) ~NRTNABEE) - - - - -
Mr. Li Jing (resigned on 30 May 2024) ~ FEEE (RZZZRF
EA=ZTAERE) - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors’ B FHTES*
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong PEARE 150 - - - 150
Mr. Wu Ming RAKE 71 536 - 8 615
Mr. Lin Guoyan (resigned on HEA RS (RZBZ=F
8 March 2023) ZANEEE) - - - - -
Ms. Lii Meifeng (appointed on PEERL(R-F-=%
8 March 2023) ZANBEZRE) 49 - - - 49
1,302 692 4,908 37 6,939

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Mr. Lin Guoyan
agreed to waive the remuneration for his service in year 2022
upon his resignation on 8 March 2023.

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent

non-executive directors during the year (2023: Nil).

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The independent
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were

mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

BE-_ZEZT-_=—F+-_A=+—81LFE"
MEXREER T -_=F=H N \BETE
FAERERN-_Z-_—_F2REHE -

RERNBEENTEIIERTES 2 EM
He(ZEZ=ZF:E)-

EXHRTRBTESCHMEETERBENE
BARBRASEEHRME Z R MIRHE -
EXRTRBIFATEZTZME IR
FERARRERRMH ZMBMIEMH -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F# 151



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

9. Five highest paid employees
The five highest paid employees during the year included no
director (2023: one director), details of whose remuneration
are set out in Note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for
the year of the five (2023: four) highest paid employees who
are not a director of the Company are as follows:

TNBESHFMES
FANANESFNEEEEE (T ==
F—FEFF) HEZHeFBIHR EX
WiFs - FRM T AB(ZE_=F:U%)
IARFEEZ R FTWEE Z2HEFH1B
U

2024 2023
—S-NE —E =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Salaries, allowances and benefits
in kind

Equity-settled share option MRiEEE 2 BT F8

arrangements, net
Retirement benefit scheme ROKEFIET B R

contributions

o EUMEEYER

1,300 16,486

10,586 2,364

152 75

12,038 18,925

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

MENTFTIBEZIFEE 2SS FHHE
BAZWMT :

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
Above HK$7,000,001

2023
—E-=

1,500,001 7T £2,000,00078 7T 1
2,000,001/ 7T £2,500,0007%8 7T -
2,500,0017% 7T £3,000,0007%8 7T -
4,500,0017% 7T £5,000,00078 7T 2
7,000,001 7T A £ 1

4

During the year ended 31 December 2024, 777,875,046
(2023: 167,570,000) share options were granted to five (2023:
one) non-director highest paid employees in respect of their
services to the Group under the share option schemes of the
Company, further details of which are set out in Note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on the grant date, was determined at
the date of grant. The amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the years were included in the
above non-director highest paid employees’ remuneration
disclosures.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

10. Income tax expense

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group has no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

Taxes on profits assessable in the PRC in the current year
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the PRC
in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

10. FRB%iBA X

HREBEZE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=+—HL%F
B AEETERNESEEERB G W
AMEBANERELBB (=4
7)o

AEEPEBERV M2 BB RBERT
EOERRcRERED  mARELE
FIENTBEZBITHEE -

2024 2023
ZEMF —®E-=

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THET

Current — Hong Kong BN —F&E
Charge for the year FEXH -
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERES (399)
(399)

Current — the PRC BER—h
Charge for the year FREXH 418
Deferred tax (Note 20) RIERIA (FEE20) 76
Income tax expense PGB X 95

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to loss
before income tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions
in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax position at the effective tax rates is as
follows:

ERARE REKEBD M E R B ERDE
R ZAERERFEZRAMERAERE
RZAEHRAY BREREMEAEZR
BB IR

2024 2023

—E-NEF —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT FET
Loss before income tax B ET1S T AT E1E (83,163) (133,756)
Tax at the statutory tax rates BEERMETE 2 HIR (14,510) (26,264)
Income not subject to tax RBETUA (5,641) (19,283)
Expenses not deductible for tax AATHIF A 2 19,758 34,605
Tax losses not recognised RNERRIEE S 4,423 17,010
Tax losses utilised EBATIEEE (4,800) (4,044)
Temporary difference not recognised R R E & FH 141
Over-provision in prior years BIEFEEBERE (399
Tax concession IS E R 1,671)
Tax at the effective rate REBRBEFE 2HIE 95
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

11. Dividends 11.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of any final dividend for the year (2023: Nil).
12. Loss per share attributable to owners of the 12.
Company
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share are
based on:

R E
NARERWERES AT EIRMNERK
HBRE(ZE_=F :8)-

EXAREEAELREBREE
BREARBEEEDER TIERGHE
2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TAT

Loss for the year attributable to owners 518 &% 57 & #55 E518
of the Company, used in basic and FTRZARREIHES A
diluted loss per share calculations JEIEFREE

(83,135) (132,864)

Number of shares

Shares ligv)
Weighted average number of ordinary &t 8 & B B 7 [ #5% 518 AT

shares in issue during the year used A2 2175 @R h#E T HE

in the basic and diluted loss per
share calculations

gl QE]
2023
—E-=
‘000
i
17,074,958 16,604,689

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the assumed exercise
of potential ordinary shares in relation to the share options
has an anti-dilutive effect to the basic loss per share (2023:
Same).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

13. Property, plant and equipment 13. % -BERR®E
Motor vehicles,
Leasehold furniture, fixtures
improvements and equipment Total
RE-HR-
HEMEERE RERRE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR THET TR
At 1 January 2024: R-E-NFE-A—B:
Cost A 17,106 5,990 23,096
Accumulated depreciation RiE (15,721) (5,812) (21,533)
Net carrying amount fREFE 1,385 178 1,563
At 1 January 2024, net of R-E-_NF—HF—H"
accumulated depreciation Mk RTER 1,385 178 1,563
Additions NE 2,350 2,358
Written-off of cost 85 P 2N (3,500) (3,500)
Disposal - cost H & — AR (112) (112)
Depreciation charged for the year FR# & i (Fizt7)
(Note 7) (1,245) (1,294)
Written-off of accumulated MisH L E REHTE
depreciation upon disposal 2,528 2,528
Disposal H &
— accumulated depreciation -2 E
Exchange realignment bE 5
At 31 December 2024, net of R-E-_mE+=A=+—H"
accumulated depreciation Mkr
Bt &R 1,458 137 1,595
At 31 December 2024: R-B-MOFE+=A=+-AR:
Cost DN 15,874 5,998 21,872
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (14,416) (5,861) (20,277)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,458 137 1,595
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

13. ¥ -BERXE @

13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Motor vehicles,

Leasehold  furniture, fixtures
improvements and equipment Total
RE R
BEMEREE KENRE #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TiET TET TET
At 1 January 2023: R-B-=f-A—8:
Cost AR 16,929 6,035 22,964
Accumulated depreciation RiE (14,654) (5,682) (20,336)
Net carrying amount RmE#E 2,275 353 2,628
At 1 January 2023, net of R-ZZE-=%—-H—RH"
accumulated depreciation HBREFIER 2,275 353 2,628
Additions NE 477 84 561
Acquisition of subsidiary — cost Y EE M B A R — A - 29 29
Written-off of cost 38 X A - (5) (5)
Disposal of a subsidiary — cost HE—FME LR —KA - (53) (53)
Depreciation charged for the year FRITE S H (MiFF7)
(Note 7) (1,364) (239) (1,603)
Acquisition of subsidiary WS KT E A A
— accumulated depreciation —Z2FtE - (3) (3)
Written-off of accumulated WiH & RETHTE
depreciation upon disposal - 5 5
Disposal of a subsidiary HE - E R A
— accumulated depreciation —Z2tiE - 14 14
Exchange realignment 0 i (3) 7) (10
At 31 December 2023, net of RZZE-_=F+-A=+—H81"
accumulated depreciation Mk RFTER 1,385 178 1,563
At 31 December 2023: R-F-_=F+-A=1+—H8:
Cost DR 17,106 5,990 23,096
Accumulated depreciation RiE (15,721 (5,812) (21,533)
Net carrying amount RmE%E 1,385 178 1,563
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

14. Investment properties

14. REWE

Investment

properties

REWE

HK$’000

FAT

At 1 January 2023 RZEZ=F—H—H -

Additions NE 17,034

Net increase in fair value N EEIFRE 703
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 N _E_=F+_A=+—8BK

—E_NFE—-HA—H 17,737

Disposals HE (17,737)

At 31 December 2024

R-E-_NE+=-A=+—H _

The Group leased out various shops under operating leases
with rentals payable monthly. As at 31 December 2023, the
leases typically run for an initial period of 6 to 8 years.

At 31 December 2023, the Group’s investment properties
with a carrying value of approximately HK$17,737,000 were
pledged to secure an other borrowing granted to the Group,
which was provided by a former director of a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group (Note 34). The investment properties
were leased to third parties under operating leases, further
details of which are included in Note 40(a).

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
disposed of the investment properties and recorded a loss
on disposal of investment properties to an independent third
party of approximately HK$6,191,000 (2023: Nil).

REBUKLEHAE AL HZHEEH &
AYxffe- R—_E-_=F+=-_A=+—
B ¥AHEE R AE6E8F -

RZE-_=F+_-_A=+—"HB A&£HKE
H{EE 17,737,000 T 2 EMEBE W
EHAERAESEER ZHEMEE ZE
ERALEE—M2ENB AR ZAIESIR
H(HE34) BEDEUKEREFRA
BHEFE=F -BEE—TFBIHNHF
40(a) °

HE-_EZT-_NOME+-—_A=+—H1EE"
AEBHEREYE THEHEREY
XTI E = ZEEH6,191,0005 7T (=
To=F )
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

14. Investment properties (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation was performed by the valuer,
Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, to determine
the fair value of investment properties as at 31 December
2023. The change in fair value of investment properties was
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss during the year
ended 31 December 2023. The following table presents the
fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment
properties carried at fair value:

14. REY = (#)

DFEER

%:g:Zi—i—_ﬂ*-@-—E'fEﬁEﬂiﬁi
I EERABRA EITEIUEE A
BEEREMEZR ¥f§ CBE_T_=F

WL‘H*JF HIEFE #EMERTE
""""" BHIRNGEEERPRR - TRIITAE
A FEINEZREMELTEAZE
S g

Recurring fair value measurement categorised into

REMQATVEABLER

Quoted price Significant Significant
in active other other
markets for observable  unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
MEEERE EBEXHMTH EXH@GFT
BHiSRE RBABE BRHARE
AVE (B—EBHR) (B=ER) (BZER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTET FET FET
As at 31 December 2023 R=ZE==
+t=RA=+—8H
Investment properties KREME
~ Commercial — PRC e 17,737 - - 17,737
Valuation processes of the Group AEBZEHERRF
All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued as at R-ZTB_=%F+= )EI =t+—RB KA&EEMR
31 December 2023 by independent professionally qualified BEREVMEIHBIEXSERMHEMY

valuer, Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, who
have among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors who have recent experience in the valuation
properties in the relevant locations.

The Group’s finance department, which directly reported to
the chief financial officer, reviewed the valuations performed
by the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes.
The finance department held discussions with the independent
valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no
transfer into or out of Level 3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

14. Investment properties (continued)

Valuation techniques
For all investment properties, their current use equated to the
highest and best use as at 31 December 2023.

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties as at 31
December 2023:

Valuation techniques

B

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTUEEGARE

14. REWE (#|)
CREEs &1
N-TE-—=#+-A=+—H FEHEE
MEREAMBETMS NASERREE
F AR o

RZE-_=F+_A=+—8 "Xl
HEMEGHEMANGEERTEEEGA
U

Range or unobservable inputs

HEITTHEHARE

Commercial properties  Income approach

Estimated rental value

RMB57.7 to RMB434.7

(per square meter/month)

BERME WAE

Growth rate (p.a.)

TR

Vacancy rate

Jo 22 97
EEX

Reversion Yield

B %

Term Yield
HAPR g 7 K

Under the income approach, the fair value of investment
properties as at 31 December 2023 was estimated using
assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of ownership
over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal value. This
method involves the projection of a series of cash flows
on properties interest. A reversion yield is applied to the
projected cash flow in order to establish the present value of
the income stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is
normally separately determined and differs from the discount
rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent
reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment
or refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by market
behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of properties. The
periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives,
maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and other
operating and management expenses. The series of periodic
net operating income, along with an estimate of the reversion
value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then
discounted to present value.

et (8FH K A)

AREES7. 72 AR 434.77C

1.9%

11.51%

3.9%

3.4%

REBEBAL REVER T _=F1+=
A=+—BMARBENFAERNEE
EESWAMARNNERARE (BER
HEERLREE) VRZETHEE %
EEREMEERN —ERREERENTE
A-ERREEFERRBARE RENE
BYBEBEERBOKSRAIRERHK
nXBEEERABETATARTRE

B mE ) RHERE LR ABEMIR LR
ERmR Iy baENESRS HEHEHE N
HEEHE ERABHEEHEE-BEN
SERBEMHTR(IDMERNN—E
BT E EHREeRERBERANR
ZE TAEKER WREX HERE-
MEER RENMEERREMBEEM
BEEBAMGG R EREHLLFRA
BERERIENRERK ZEAEREE
— G R ERE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

14.

15.

Investment properties (continued) 14. REY =X (@)
Valuation techniques (continued) fh{E & T (&)
A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value HEHEBERMSHESFEREERFK
and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would tEE I ORD) BB REMEN R TFERKN
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of B ORD) REZEBEXRRITIREEF
the investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) RIBE I OR D) B HIREYMEN R FE
in the long-term vacancy rate and the reversion yield and RIEm A2 () -—Rm s sEAES
term yield in isolation would result in a significant decrease BEFLORE “Eﬁéﬁifﬂ‘i\iiﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
(increase) in the fair value of the investment properties. FAMENUES) BFREERPEEEX
Generally, a change in the assumption made for the estimated TR R AEE -
rental value is accompanied by a directionally similar change
in the rent growth per annum, and an opposite change in the
discount rate and long-term vacancy rate.
Right-of-use assets 15. EHEEE
Premises
LJE S
HK$'000
FET
Cost: B
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 and R-ZE-_=F—H—H8-
1 January 2024 _7__¢+ A=+—AK
—E-mF—H—H 8,978
Additions =T 4,081
Derecognised upon expiration of lease P TE B JE i B 4% R (8,978)
Exchange alignment bE 51 8 B (29)
At 31 December 2024 R-ZF-_NME+=-A=+—H 4,052
Accumulated depreciation: REITE:
At 1 January 2023 RZZE-_=F—H—H 3,491
Charge for the year (Note 7) FAXZH (F&7) 2,993
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 E"_ g::i‘i“ “A=t—BX&
—E-mF—H—H 6,484
Charge for the year (Note 7) FAH (FEE7) 2,887
Derecognised upon expiration of lease P TE & JE i B 4% R (8,978)
Exchange alignment [ 0 3K 2
At 31 December 2024 R-Z-_NME+=-A=+—H 395
Net carrying amount: R R E
At 31 December 2024 R-Z_NE+_A=+—8H 3,657
At 31 December 2023 RZE_=F+=-A=+—H 2,494

160 Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited #Z 5 E 1 H IR 2 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

15. Right-of-use assets (continued)

The right-of-use assets represent the Group’s rights to use
underlying leased premises as offices for its operations under
operating lease arrangements over the lease terms, which
ranged from 2 to 3 years (2023: 2 years), which are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liabilities.

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are held
by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

15. FAEEE @)

EREEERASERAR (N FME=
F(ZFT_=ZF:WMF) ) AREBLEZHE
CHREZEEREREEMRERARA
ERREMN RIEAAR R ITE KRR
EER(NE)JR LR EERENEM
B EFEHAR

BREBEARE 2 HEEE 2 MM
HEBRL EHMEFMRG -HEEEDT
S REERHER -

2024 2023
—ECNE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FAT

2 M BN X

Expense relating to short-term leases
Total cash outflow for leases (Note)

MER b eeE (EE)

1,135 9,129
3,147 3,676

Note:

Amount includes payments of principal and interest portion of lease
liabilities. These amounts were presented in operating and financing
cash flows.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group entered
into a new lease the underlying asset as an office in Hong
Kong, with the non-cancellable period of 3 years from the
commencement date of the lease on 11 December 2024.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no new lease was
entered by the Group that was not yet commenced.

Wi :

ZeHReREEaEAS MM HENR
REPRERBERERE -

BHE-_Z_NWE+_A=+—RB1FE"
AREFY —HBHHEE HBEAEEALUR
EENRAE HEHA=ZF H_ZT N
F+—A+—BHERK B BRI TR
Fi=k

BE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—RB1tFE"
AEEWEIT W RABNTFHEE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F# 161



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

16.

17.

Intangible assets

6. B EE

Trademarks
[GE:3
HK$'000
TET
Cost: A
At 1 January 2023 R-ZZE_=%—HA—H -
Additions NE 42
At 31 December 2023, 1 January 2024 and R-ZB-Z=Z%+=ZRA=+—-8H-
31 December 2024 “EDNME-A—HARK
—E_NFE+=-ZA=+—H 42
Accumulated depreciation and impairment: R EREE:
At 1 January 2023 WZE-Z=F—HF—H -
Provision for impairment (Note) AR (FEE) (42)
At 31 December 2023, 1 January 2024 and R-ZB-=f+=ZA=+—-8H"
31 December 2024 “ENFE-A-HR
—E-mNE+ZA=1+—H (42)

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2024

BREFE:
R-ZE-_ME+=-A=+—H -

At 31 December 2023

RZE-_=F+=-_A=+—H -

Note:

The impairment loss recognised for the year ended 31 December
2023 was included in “administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Wi :

HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—"BILFE®RRD
REBEDFAGERER TTRAXIA-

Goodwill 17. &
HK$'000
TET
At 1 January 2023 RZTE=Z=F—H—H -
Acquisition of Daqji Culture (as defined below) Wizl (EERTX) (M5E43)
(Note 43) 636
Provision for impairment loss BEE IR (636)

At 31 December 2023, 1 January 2024 and
31 December 2024

R-EBE-_=F+=-R=+-—8"
—E_ME-/F—AK

—E-_mME+=-A=+—H -

ol

Goodwill was arising from the acquisition of ZERI 3t (JEYI)
BRAE] (Dagi Culture (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.) (“Dagqi Culture”)
on 20 December 2023. For the purpose of impairment testing
on goodwill, the management of the Company has assessed
the value-in-use of Dagi Culture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

17. Goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of the operating subsidiary located in
the PRC was determined based on value-in-use calculation.
The calculation used profit projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the Company
covering a 5-year period. The management concluded that the
recoverable amount was lower than the carrying amount of
goodwill, therefore the Group had recognised a provision for
impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$636,000 to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2023.

The directors of the Company had not identified any key
assumptions where a reasonably possible change in such
assumptions could cause the carrying amount of goodwill to
exceed the recoverable amount.

18. Investment in an associate

17. B (@)

b S A B B B A B 2 AT U 1B & 58 Th AR
BEREEHEBRT A EERAREL
ARAFICEBHANTE DS SEEY
HAFER -ERERATRESEENE
BEEE WALEDRAEE T -4
+- A=+ BLEERAGRABRERER
7 9 18 5 98 88 185 40636, 0003 T

ARAEEHEBRNEHESEAEHIIRN
BN ERAEEBETKE SR
MEAERRR-

R EEFE

Share of net assets

2023
—E=%F

HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHEIT
132,635 157,180

Particulars of the associate at the end of reporting period are

as follows:
Place of
Particulars of incorporation/
Name issued shares held ~ operation
BRORT AL
DEER A e
Senworth Limited (“Senworth”) Ordinary shares Hong Kong
BRHBERAR ([B#]) ERK BA

RBEMRZBERR ZFBTAOT

Percentage of ownership interest
attributable to the Group

Principal activities

rEERGEEREECASL  TEEK

2024 2023
—BomE —EF-=F
49% 49% Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REARELZR
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18.

AN

B R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

Investment in an associate (continued)

At 31 December 2024 and 2023, the associate has interests in
the following companies:

18. REFE R T 2 ’RE (#)
R-E-—mER-—TE-_—&F#+-F=+—
B BAATRUTAT R EGER

Place of
Name of subsidiary directly ~ Particulars of incorporation/ Percentage of ownership interest
held by the associate issued shares held ~ operation attributable to the Group Principal activities
BENFAERERLZ RACES AR/
WEARER Btz #1E Kew FRERGRAERECEIL FEEER
Directly Indirectly
BE B
WEMRIEMEEEERDF Ordinary shares  The PRC 44.10% ~ Investment holding and
(RIEMmZ) (2023: 44.10%) provision of property
management services
in the PRC
Lk P 44.10% - RPBEREERRRERNRE
(ZZ==%: 72 R 5
44.10%)
Place of
Name of associate directly Particulars of incorporation/ Percentage of ownership interest

held by X JB %15 issued shares held operation attributable to the Group Principal activities
RENRERFERZ BEORA AL
BELTER Btz # R BEwH AEEEGREREE AL TEEK
Directly Indirectly
B A&
WEmHAEHEERE Ordinary shares  The PRC - 22.05% Property investment
BRAF (2023: 22.05%)
LBk P - 22.05% MERE

On 31 March 2023, Morley Way Limited (the purchaser),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, had further
acquired 24% equity interests of Senworth from an
independent third party vendor, Chen Yihao. The total
consideration for the acquisition of additional equity interests
of Senworth was HK$80,640,000, where HK$70,500,000 was
settled in cash and the remaining balance of HK$10,140,000
was satisfied by issuing promissory note.

The promissory note which bears 3% interest per annum was
issued on 31 March 2023 and will mature on 31 March 2025.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
settled the promissory note in full at HK$10,140,000 and a
loss on early repayment of promissory note of approximately
HK$1,474,000 had been recognised as other gains/(losses) in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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18.

Investment in an associate (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group held 49% of
equity interests in aggregate in Senworth. Senworth, which
is considered a material associate of the Group, is a strategic
partner for the Group, providing access to property investment

market in the PRC.

Summarised financial information in respect of the associate,
Senworth, as extracted from its consolidated financial

statements,
summarised below:

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, is

18. MEE

NAEZERE (|
R-E-—mER-—TE-_—&F#+-F=+—
A A EEA 5 R IR49% IRHE B IA
BAAEENEABLS AT AREEY
RSB REEATEYEL BTSN
B

BERNRRMzUEERBE B aH
BIEEBUERELENFEZ AT ER
® - HEMEwNOT:

2024 2023
—B_NEF —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Current assets MEEE 5,918 6,009
Non-current assets, including ERBEE  BIERBEERAZ
investment in an associate & 290,413 349,228
Current liabilities, including amount A& BFEENAEE 2
due to the Group IR (40,557) (40,355)
Net assets attributable to: AT ATEREEFE:
— The owner of Senworth — B EBER A 223,407 282,526
— Non-controlling interests — AR 32,367 32,356
Revenue WA - 379
Loss for the year FAEE (1,243) (1,574)
Fair value losses on land THRAFEEE (48,848) (25,774)
Loss and total comprehensive loss AT ATEIEFAEBER
for the year attributable to: T HAREE:
— The owner of Senworth — R ZHA A (50,102) (23,827)
— Non-controlling interests — JEE A b = 11 (3,421)
Reconciliation of the carrying amount of investment in an REEM RN KERZINB L AR 2K
associate recognised in the consolidated statement of financial BREEZHERNT:
position is as below:
2024 2023
—F-mEF e
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER T
At the beginning of year ﬁAEW 157,180 87,006
Share of losses of an associate AR (=R i) RN ) oF =] (24,545) (8,962)
Additional investment cost BHIMEE AN = 79,136
At the end of year RER 132,635 157,180

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, there are no
significant restrictions on the ability of the associate to transfer
funds to the Group in the form of cash dividends or repay
loans and amounts due to the Company (2023: Same).

ARREFRE BERRINRSBEK
‘ﬁﬁﬁ’%liﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬂaa R AN AR

AIREMNRENTBEEARH (2T ==
¢ *ﬁﬂ)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

19. Equity investments at fair value through other 19. EBH M2 EIKFZR A FESI

comprehensive income RZIRARE
2024 2023
—E-ImF —F_Z=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FET
Equity securities listed in BB TTRAES
Hong Kong, at fair value /NS =] 4,185 2,638
The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at PRI E A MBI E ABBEM
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group FPEWREAFEIR RAAAEER
considers these investments to be strategic in nature. RREREBRIIEE -
The fair values of the listed equity securities investments were FHRAEFEFKREZ A TEDREE B
determined based on the quoted market closing prices on The ERGMARRIR ([BRA]) Rz WT
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). BET-
An analysis of investment portfolio is as below: REEEDTWT :
2024 2023
—E-ImF —F-Z=F
Stock code Name of securities HK$’000 Zoas  HK$'000 Yo*
RORE BHEEB THER %* FET %o*
1141 CMBC Capital Holdings Limited 4,182 2,635 0.75
RIBERNIERBR LA
412 Shandong Hi-Speed Holdings Group Limited 3 A
s ZERERBR AR
2,638
* Percentage of shareholding in the listed securities held by the * REEMFETEFZBRER ST
Group
A Percentage less than 0.01% A B/ R0.01%
During the year, the Group did not receive any dividend from RAFE AEBEYEBZFREWIRE
these investments (2023: Nil). ARE (T _=F &)
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group sold RBE-_Z-_=F+-A=+—HILFE"
65,356,000 ordinary shares of Shandong Hi-Speed Holdings AEER=ZZBIE=FHELGERE
Group Limited to three independent third parties for a total B G R A B165,356,0000% & @mA% - B4
consideration of approximately HK$169,272,000. 7%169,272,000/ 7T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

19. Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (continued)
As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income, with
carrying amount of approximately HK$4,182,000 (2023:
HK$2,635,000) and Charged Listed Securities (as defined
below) in the custody of the Group at the fair value of
approximately HK$424,160,000 (2023: HK$396,711,000),
have been pledged to secure the other borrowings granted to
the Group (Note 34(c)).

* On 24 October 2022, Central Wealth Infrastructure
Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Vendor/Chargor”), being the shares
owner of the listed securities, had entered into a share
charge arrangement with Globally Finance Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of a company with its ordinary
shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
namely Future World Holdings Limited, to charge
95,061,000 shares of the ordinary share of Shandong
Hi-Speed Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as
China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited)
(the “Charged Listed Securities”) in favour of Globally
Finance Limited (the “Trustee/Lender”) (the “Share
Charge Arrangement”). Under the Vendor’s instruction,
who could instruct the Trustee to enter into share sale
and purchase agreements to transfer the Charged Listed
Securities to the purchasers, the net proceeds shall be
applied in or towards the payment to settle the loan and
interest receivable owed by the Company to the Lender
(the “Loans”) until the Loans are discharged.

On 3 November 2022, 29,705,000 shares of the
Charged Listed Securities had been transferred to two
independent third parties at the consideration of an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$45,746,000 to
be set-off against the Loans.

On 4 November 2022, the Vendor further entered into
the conditional sale and purchase agreements with three
independent individuals (the “Purchasers”), each of the
Purchasers respectively pursuant to which the Vendor
agreed to sell and the Purchasers agreed to acquire,
an aggregate 65,356,000 ordinary shares of Charged
Listed Securities held by the Vendor as at the date of
the sale and purchase agreements (“Sale Shares”) for
considerations of an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$169,272,000.

19. EBHEMEAEKRFZRLFETY

RZBRARKE (8
RZE-_WNF+_A=+—HB £KEH
BREE 44,182,000 0 (T - =4
2,635,000 L) BB EMmEEKFIE
NEENEZRAKERAEEBIE
ZEERMETER(EERTX)AF
BE4424,160,0008 T (& - = :
396,711,000 7U) EMBIEAEBHER 2
HAEE 2R (M 5E34(c) °

* RZEZZF+A=Z+HEA AQH
EEMBARIPEEZEREFRAA
([BA EHWAl) (EALEMESEN
BN BERMEERAR (—
MEBRREBRMTER LEMZAR X
R FIEBAERARZEENBAR])
R — R E R At R
ERABI([ETEAEBRADAZ
mANER L EREBEBR 2T (B
MAEARLESRemERFRAA)
95,061,000f% L@z ((EER LHE
() (IROEHRZH]) - RBREEH
MIER(BEHAERTTEA)GT LR
HEEMRARNE FEECERET
BH MG REFHARRSBIES
BARRNREREHRNE R RERFE
(B2 BEEEHEEBE-

R—ZZTE=-_=_F+ — A B
29,705,000 EER L mESHCD &
ETYTMEBIE="H BREDAE
45,746,000/ 70 AR SE B 5K -

RZEBEZZF+—HORA -EHE=
LB EAA(TBER]) (RREH)D
BRI BIEGEEHE B - FH
BAELENEFRBEWEEITNES
A MEENDER EHELEAS R
65,356,000/ E@EA% ([SHERMT])
AR BAA169,272,0005 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

19. Equi
com

As th

ty investments at fair value through other

prehensive income (continued)
(continued)

As the relevant percentage ratio(s) exceed 25% but
all relevant percentage ratios are below 75%, the Sale
Shares contemplated thereunder in aggregation with the
previous disposals constituted a major transaction on
the part of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules and was subject to the announcement and the
shareholders” approval requirements under Chapter 14
of the Listing Rules.

On 15 February 2023, ordinary resolutions were passed
in the Special General Meeting to approve, confirm
and ratify sales of Sale Shares, to the Purchasers at a
total consideration of HK$169,272,000. Details of the
transaction regarding the Sale Shares were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 4 November
2022, circular of the Company dated 20 January 2023
and announcement of the Company dated 15 February
2023.

On 3 October 2023, the Sale Shares had been executed
according to the sale and purchase agreement, of
which partial of the total consideration in amount of
approximately HK$34,350,000 had been received,
resulted outstanding receivable of approximately
HK$134,922,000 (Note 26(ii)(c)) being recorded under
other receivables.

On 30 December 2024, the Vendor entered into letters
of extension with the Purchasers in relation to the
outstanding consideration under the Share Charge
Agreement to grant extension such that the settlement
of the outstanding consideration will be on or before 31
December 2025.

e consideration had not been fully received vyet, the

Charged Listed Securities had not been transferred to the
Purchasers and are still under control of the Group, the
relevant Charged Listed Securities are still being pledged
for other borrowings as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 as
disclosed in Note 34(c).
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19. EBHEME2AEKFZRLFETY

/\E
*

ZRAEAKE &)

(#8)

RN AR B D X B25% B P E 18
A DL RIGER75%  BETT Z 1
ERMEEMEETESHBRAR
AR ETRAFU4ERETZ —BEEE
R ABTETRUBUERTZ
NERBRRILENRE

RZE-=ZF_A+HH BREEFH
Re@BE@imE A tfE - R

BRABLHEHEERD BREAR
169,272,000 T B BHE KM X
SZHEBRARFIBREA-ST ——

+—AmNBZAE ARARBEHA -
T =F—AZFTHZBHEARF
AEA-—E-=#—-_A+HAZA%
HWEE -

R-ZE-_=F+A=H #HERHE
BIEE S Hm g7 Eh 2 U EG
DR (B #934,350,0008 7T A It &
U B & JfE U 3 T8 #9134,922,0007% 7T
(FtEE26(i)(c) ) B re A E Ath 8 Yz -

R-ZT-_WF+-_A=+H BEHH
B 75 s AR5 5 TR T B R S A
REFTLERHME KX HEH &
MAXNREHER -_Z-_HEF+-A
=t—HR%ZAEE-

A0 FE34(c) FTH 28 - AR (B 18 R B &
WH ZECER IMESHAEETE
FoDBALEELRS BEEER ETES
R -_WNFER T _=ZF+_A=+—
BIDtEEMER G-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

20. Deferred tax 20. EELEKE
Deferred tax assets EEHEEE
Credit loss
allowances of
other financial
assets
HitemEE
FEEERE
HK$'000
FAET
At 1 January 2023 WZEZ=F—HF—H 110
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated statement Rzt Aér & B KR ZIELEFIE
of profit or loss during the year (Note 10) (K¥zE10) (76)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 RZB_=F+_A=+—HK
R-ZF-_WFE—-—A—H 34
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated statement Rzt Aér & B KR ZIELEFIE
of profit or loss during the year (Note 10) (K¥zE10) -
At 31 December 2024 R-B-ME+=-HA=+—8 34
Subject to the approval by relevant tax authority, the Group KEBNERHE RZT_MNF+A
has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately =t+—B AEEERBEELEZHIE
HK$3,174,275,000 as at 31 December 2024 (2023: 518 493,174,275,0008 T (—Z T~ =%
HK$3,250,470,000) that are available for offsetting against 3,250,470,00078 7T ) - Al K K IR E5 18 2
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses NAZARKERB M o % FARE A IR
arose. Such unused tax losses are subject to the approval BRAGEENBD ([HBR ) IEERS
of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (“IRD”). Tax AEE -TRIAEIB S ERPES-
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
The Group has unused tax losses arose in the PRC, which will REBRPEELBRSFRIPOAREA
be expired in 5 years, of approximately HK$6,238,000 (2023: T IAE 18 496,238,000 7L (ZE =4
HK$127,334,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised 127,334,000/ 7T ) ° & 72 & 2K i F 3R 59
due to unpredictability of future profit streams. AT FEORIME - B otk A A R SR AT AR RE A IR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

21. Loan receivables from money lending business

21. HEEBELE ZBRKBER

B EEEREE

Loan receivables
Less: credit loss allowances

A SEBNERED

Less: non-current portion

Current portion BPERER >

2024 2023
—E-NF —EBE-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
520,970 438,619
(81,285) (60,713)
439,685 377,906
(434,482) (30,608)
347,298

As at 31 December 2024, the gross amounts of
loan receivables represented loans of approximately
HK$520,970,000 (2023: HK$438,619,000) granted by
the Group to a number of independent third parties. The
loans bore interest rates ranging from 5% to 7% (2023:
5% to 7%) per annum and were repayable within three
years from the date of drawdown (2023: three years from
the date of drawdown). The grants of these loans were
approved and monitored by the Group’s management.
The gross loan balances of approximately HK$45,278,000
(2023: HK$267,485,000) were past due and approximately
HK$475,692,000 (2023: HK$171,134,000) were not past due
at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2024, in the opinion of the directors, loan
receivables related to borrowers who were unlikely to pay
their credit obligations to the Group in full or the respective
valuations of the collaterals cannot be fully covered the
outstanding balances of these loans at the end of reporting
period, hence, the Group’s management considered these
loan receivables as credit-impaired as at 31 December 2024.
As at 31 December 2023, non-past due loan receivables
related to a number of customers who had repayment to the
Group or had no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group holds collaterals or
other credit enhancements over its credit-impaired loan
receivables of approximately HK$475,692,000 at fair value
of approximately HK$467,286,000, including charge of
properties located in Hong Kong and the PRC, listed securities
in Hong Kong and equity interest in the unlisted Hong Kong,
Cayman Islands and PRC entities of the borrowers. As at 31
December 2023, the Group held collaterals or other credit
enhancements over its non-past due loan receivables with
gross carrying amounts of approximately HK$171,134,000
at fair value of approximately HK$291,512,000, including
charge of properties located in Hong Kong and the PRC, listed
securities in Hong Kong and equity interest in the unlisted
Hong Kong and PRC entities of the borrowers. As at 31
December 2023, collaterals with fair value of approximately
HK$143,722,000 were held for credit-impaired loan
receivables.
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*A%’J520970000/9§71:(_2:5 :
438 619,000 7T ) ° ?;ziﬂiﬂ ’
5% & 7% 47;f¢ 5°/oi7°/o)%'+E
BERBEIRMABE=FRNEEZE(
:¢ BiIEEHBE=F) &ﬁé
RMAEBEEEBERER B
%Eiq45278000/57t(f§—7¢'
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

21. Loan receivables from money lending business 21. HEXBEEZEKER (@)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2024, loan receivables included an RZEBEZWFF+_A=+—H EBRER
amount due from Senworth Limited, which is considered a BENEEREEZRBERBRA A
material associate of the Group, of HK$5,200,000 (2023: (B REARAE gﬂﬁ" N AR RIELD
HK$5,200,000), arising from money lending business, bears 5,200,000 7T ( ==& —_i 5,200,000/%5
interest at 7% (2023: 7%) per annum and will be matured on ) FMNERT% (ZEZ=F:7%) I
23 April 2025. The Group holds collateral of equity interest BR_ZZE_AFMNAZ+=RAFH - K&
in an unlisted Hong Kong entity at fair value of approximately .T‘—rﬁ M LEMEBERIRERMR -

HK$146,942,000 (2023: HK$177,121,000). N {EX146,942,0008 T (Z T =4

177,121,000 7T) °

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of the loan RIZE-_WE+-_A=+—B EKREXK
receivables approximates their fair values (2023: Same). ZEEEEAATFERE (ZT-=F 1
[) e
Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount is as follows: REAEEZZHOTNT:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
P& B P Ex2 RE3 gst

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TET TAT

At 1 January 2023 R-ZB-=fF—HA—H 354,239 18,902 60,278 433,419
Transfer to lifetime ECL credit R CERECEPEREE

impaired (Stage 3) &1 (B ER3) (221,894) (313) 222,207 -
New loans during the year RERMEER 5,200 - - 5,200
At 31 December 2023 and B’\:;:_E‘f'*ﬂ_‘T‘*El&

1 January 2024 —E-ME—A—H 137,545 18,589 282,485 438,619
Transfer to lifetime ECL credit BREEENEZZHESREE

impaired (Stage 3) B (EE3) (225,989) (18,589) 244,578 -
New loans during the year AERMEER 113,690 - 113,690
Settlements during the year KEEHEE (25,246) (6,093) (31,339)
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-ME+=-A=1+—H = 520,970 520,970
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

21. Loan receivables from money lending business 21. HEXBEEZEKER (@)
(continued)
Analysis of changes in the corresponding credit loss allowance HEEEBEREZEHONMT

is as follows:

2024
—E2opmEF
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
12 B B2 R &3 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THEx TR TR TR

At 1 January ®—B—H 8,204 238 52,271 60,713
Transfer to lifetime ECL credit BEREEEREZEH

impaired (Stage 3) RHEEERE (BR3) (12,052) 494) 12,546 -
Change in risk parameters BN e 3,848 256 16,468 20,572
At 31 December R+=—R=+—8H = = 81,285 81,285
ECL rates TEHEEREEX NATER NATER 15.60% 15.60%

2023
—T=F
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
P B P B2 PE B3 5t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TET TAT THT

At 1 January ®—HA—H 7,680 93 52,817 60,590
Transfer to lifetime ECL credit BREEEREZ

impaired (Stage 3) 2HEMEEEE (BR3) (4,861) (36) 4,897 -
Change in risk parameters EsE e 5,385 181 (5,443) 123
At 31 December R+=ZRA=+—8 8,204 238 52,271 60,713
ECL rates HHEEEERE 5.96% 1.28% 18.50% 13.84%
As at year ended 31 December 2023, three debtors with REE_T-_=F+_A=+T—HLFE"
overdue principals and relevant interests in an aggregate —HEBEANGBEACELEENE S H
amount of approximately HK$262,487,000 were overdue, #9262,487,000/8 LB m H AEE B 8=
the Group had agreed with the three debtors for renewal and ZEBARBHRIGERBRGBERERX
agreed repayment schedule. The three renewal agreements ME-=OBENMHRE RN T _MF—H
had been entered into on 15 January 2024, with repayment THRAV ERAPLEE T L F—
dates extended to 14 January 2027. A+mH-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

22. Trade receivables from securities dealing

business

2. BEEEERELEZERES

%ﬂ

2024 2023
—EE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHT FAET

Trade receivables arising from the SEEXBEEZ
securities dealing business FEHKE%EE
— Clearing houses —EET
— Cash clients -ReEP
— Margin clients —RBELEP

B EERBREE

Less: credit loss allowances

2,446
20,482 15,373
250,252 301,083
273,180 316,456
(259,779) (256,728)
13,401 59,728

Trade receivables from cash clients and brokers arising from
the securities dealing business are repayable on demand
subsequent to the settlement date. The normal settlement
terms of the said trade receivables are, in general, within 2
days after the trade date. The Group allows a credit period
mutually agreed with the contracting parties for receivables
from margin clients.

Except for receivables from margin clients, the Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances. The Group is allowed to dispose of the
securities deposited by the customers with the Group to settle
any overdue amount.

Trade receivables are unsecured, interest free and repayable
on the settlement date of the relevant trades, except for
the receivables from margin clients of approximately
HK$250,252,000 (2023: HK$301,083,000) which bears
interest at a range of 6% to 15.6% (2023: 6% to 15.6%) per
annum and are secured by investments held by margin clients
of approximately HK$14,802,000 as at 31 December 2024
(2023: HK$101,180,000). The carrying amount of the trade
receivables approximates their fair values.

EFREBEXBELECREREEP MEL
Zf@’f%ﬁ% ANBEEARZEREE - bt
RRESER L EREERERER/XH A
HE2AAN -RRERKRES TP FHAME
AEBERFETNTERBEEES-

BEKRESEPRIAN AEELER

RERBFBAEAERRAEMEERA
EiE-AKRBEANLEEFPFERAKEZ
&5 AERHET B H RIE -

JEWE SRR AERP - TFEREREA
E«ﬁféi%#*"at:ua HRERKREZFEEFZ
FIE49250,252,0008 L (T - =4
301 083,000/% 7T ) B 41 - B B FOIB = & F
BN TF6%E15.6% (TE-_=ZF:16% =
15.6%)5F B WIARFEEFR -2 -IY
F+-—A=+—HMFEE 14,802,000
BT (ZZE Z=4:101,180,000/% jt. ) {EK
H-EWRE SRR ZEMERERFEME

Eo

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 3 173



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

22. Trade receivables from securities dealing 22. B EEXRBEEZRRES
business (continued) R (@)
Included in the trade receivables as at 31 December 2024 is RZE_NMF+_A=+—H EKESH
the amount due from a related company (2023: amounts due RRBERAEREERSMES 2 BN —
from an executive director and a related company), arising F'EJ BB NalzRB(ZE-_=F ER—%
from securities dealing transactions. For Mr. Chen Xiaodong, WITES K —RBERR ZHIE) - B
the amount due bears interest at commercial rate and are BEREE L RBEREMENEGE THSE
secured by respective underlying investments, listed as below: B2 R EEEMR 5w
Gross carrying Net carrying Fair Value of
2024 —E-ME amount amount collaterals
BHmz
MREAE BREFE ARE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THER TER TERT
Executive director WITES
Mr. Chen Xiaodong REER KA
Related company EERERN|
Senworth Limited (Note) BWARRARE (M)
Gross carrying Net carrying Fair Value of
2023 —T-=F amount amount collaterals
B mZ
REEE REFE NS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET TET TET
Executive director HITES
Mr. Chen Xiaodong BREER L 1,915 1,915 1,962
Related company ERTA)
Senworth Limited (Note) BHMBRAT (M) 2,328 - -
* amount less than HK$1,000 * SEAR,000/8 7T
Note: As at 31 December 2024, the Company held a total of 49% fist: R-ZE-_WE+-_A=+—H0 ARQF
equity interest in Senworth Limited (2023: 49%) which is AHBEBRVBERAA9% (ZT =
considered a material associate of the Group (Note 18). Fa9%) i MR A REENEER
B AR (MEE18) -
The Group maintains accounts with the clearing houses REBRBEMRBEER, UEETES
through which it conducts securities trading transactions and BEXR % WIRFRREERE -

settlement on a net basis.

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the VERBEREDN BARAEERARE
directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give REBIEE RO T ZIREREIMEE -

additional value in view of the business nature.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

22. Trade receivables from securities dealing 22. BFEEXBELECRRES
business (continued) R (8
Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount is as follows: FREZEEZZHOTWT:

2024
—¥-mE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
123 P& B2 P& &3 st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TERT TER TER

At 1 January W—A—H 30,417 4,833 281206 316456
Transfer to lifetime ECL credit BRZCEEREY

impaired (Stage 3) FHRHEEERE (BR3) m (983) 984
Transfer to lifetime ECL not HREREERELZ

credit impaired (Stage 2) SHEBEEEE (BR2) 1,760
Transfer to 12-month ECL not BREREEREZI2EA

credit impaired (Stage 1) EHEEEE (BR1) @)
Other changes (including new HtnEs (BEMEER

assets and derecognised assets) BIEEREE) (18,358) (21,075) (43,276)
At 31 December R+=—RA=+—H 10,305 261,115 273,180
Arising from: BTIISHEEL:
Clearing houses EER 2,446 = 2,446
Cash clients Rergpr 6,646 13,067 20,482
Margin clients RESEP 1,213 248,048 250,252

10,305 261,115 273,180
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

22. Trade receivables from securities dealing

2. BEEEERELEZERES

business (continued)

BRAX (@)

2023
—T=F
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
P& B2 1 P& B2 P& B3 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January R—A—H 114,815 17,784 277,165 409,764
Transfer to lifetime ECL credit BREEEEERELZ
impaired (Stage 3) FHRHEEER (BR3) (23,776) (3,532) 27,308 -
Transfer to lifetime ECL not BRAEREEREZ
credit impaired (Stage 2) FHRBEEER (BK&R2) (4,779) 4,779 - -
Transfer to 12-month ECL not BREREERECI2EA
credit impaired (Stage 1) EHEEEE (BR1) 792 - (792) -
Other changes (including new HiE 8 (BEMEER
assets and derecognised assets) R IFHEREE) (56,635) (14,198) (22,475) (93,308)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 30,417 4,833 281,206 316,456
Arising from: BTIISHEEL:
Cash clients Be®p 2,678 1,271 11,424 15,373
Margin clients REEEF 27,739 3,562 269,782 301,083
30,417 4,833 281,206 316,456
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

22. Trade receivables from securities dealing 22. B EEXRBELEZRKES
business (continued) R ()
Analysis of changes in the corresponding credit loss allowance HEEEBERE2EHONMT
is as follows:

2024
—EBomE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
P ER 1 P FR 2 P& FR3 #at
HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TERT FET
At 1 January n—H—H = = 256,728 256,728

Other changes (including new Hih &8 (BEMEEK

Assets and derecognised assets) RIFTEREE) (8,668) (8,527)
Change in risk parameters RR28 2% 11,537 11,578
At 31 December R+ZR=+—H 259,597 259,779
Arising from: BTIIBEEL:

Cash clients RerF 12,744 12,926

Margin clients RESES 246,853 246,853
259,597 259,779

ECL rates EHEEHEX

Cash clients RexpP . . 97.52% 63.10%

Margin clients RESEP 99.52% 98.64%
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A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

22. Trade receivables from securities dealing

business (continued)

22. BHREEEKELE CERES
R (@)

2023
—E-=F
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
PEERT B Ez2 B ER3 st
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET FAT
At 1 January w—A—H - 26 262,042 262,068
Transfer to 12-month ECL not EBREREERECI2EA
credit impaired (Stage 1) BHEEERE (BR1) 789 - (789) -
Transfer to lifetime ECL credit EREEEREZZHES
impaired (Stage 3) EEBE (FE&R3) - (2) 2 -
Other changes (including new Ht &8 (BEMEER
Assets and derecognised assets) X[ ERBEE) - (24) (20,100) (20,124)
Change in risk parameters [ B 2 B B (789) - 15,573 14,784
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—~H - - 256,728 256,728
Arising from: BTISHEL:
Cash clients Re®P - - 10,906 10,906
Margin clients RELEP - - 245,822 245,822
- - 256,728 256,728
ECL rates BHEEFEE
Cash clients He®P - - 95.46% 70.94%
Margin clients RELEP - - 91.12% 81.65%
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fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

23. Trade receivables from placing and asset

23 REREEEERBELEZRE

management business WE Z R
2024 2023
—E-MmF —Fo=HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
Trade receivables arising from the MENEEEREBEELEZ
placing and asset management FEWE 5 BRI
business
— Individual clients —BAARF 2
— Investment funds —-KREES 4,513
4515
Less: credit loss allowances B EEEEEE (205)
4,310

Trade receivables from corporate clients, individual clients
and investment funds which are past due but not credit
impaired represent receivables arising from placing and
asset management business which have not yet been settled
by clients after the Group’s normal credit period. Except for
the credit loss allowances provided, the outstanding trade
receivables from corporate clients, individual clients and
investment funds as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 were
considered not to be credit-impaired as the credit rating and
reputation of the trade counterparty are sound.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group's trade receivables from corporate clients and
investment funds using a provision matrix:

RAEAIEF AAEFREBREESZCEH
BREEREZEEEZERERANEE
FTREEHR EFHRBELEENREE
EEEBELEZBRUIRK -BRPAEHRRZE
EERBEFEN R_Z-_MER-_T =
Ft-A=+—H "HAREERAEF @
ABEPERREESZERREZESWER
RAMEERE RERRSHFH 2EER
BREEHBRY -

ERASERBEBERFTENRE AR
EPREREESHNRKE S RERFNEER
BREREINAT -

2024
it o115

Less than 1to Over
Current 1 month 3 months 3 months

s SR-fER -2=f8f BB=fEA

Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BRE#&ME (T 1,972
ECL (HK$'000) BEHEEEE (TET) 89
ECL rates BHEEEER 4.51%
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

23. Trade receivables from placing and asset
management business (continued)

23. BEREEEBEKNEECE
WE S RM (8

2023
I 3
Less than Tto Over

Current 1 month 3 months 3 months Total

HD e Pi— A —Z={AR BiE={E A @

Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BRI #(E (Fi#L) 4515 - - - 4515

ECL (HK$'000) %ﬁi,ﬁ;ﬁfaéﬁﬁa (Fi87T) 205 - - - 205

ECL rates BHEEEEE 4.54% - - - 4.54%

24. Finance lease receivables 24, BHEHEREKRRIE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group entered into finance R-ZE_=ZF+__A=+—H AKEHE

lease arrangements as a lessor for premise. The term of finance

REEARDEITIREBRE R PRI

leases entered into is 3 years. Finance lease receivables are VHREHMERRR=F -MEHERNK
comprised of the followings: FREBEATEE:
2023
—ET=%F
Minimum  Present value of
lease minimum lease
payments payments
®EHE
BEMERK RHIRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within one year —FR 1,890 1,646
In the second year F_F - -
Undiscounted lease payments REBEAEMNK 1,890 1,646
Less: unearned finance income R ERER B A WA (244) -
Present value of lease payments FEW I &I SR E
receivable 1,646 1,646
Analysed as: DT
Current mE 1,646
Non-current FERE -
1,646
Interest rate implicit in the above finance leases was 5.38% MRZEBE_=F+ZA=+—0B Li@mE
per annum as at 31 December 2023. HENAENER/FTF5.38% °
The Group was not exposed to foreign currency risk as all REBTEAEN SRR BRAEHEED

leases were denominated in HK$.
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25.

26.

Inventories

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
RNy

5k MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

25. B

2024
—EomE
HK$/000
TE T

Finished goods — Fashion apparel
Provision for impairment losses

BUAK oh — RF 1) AR 2 6,495
EE B (3,245)

3,250

During the year ended 31 December 2024, approximately
HK$283,000 (2023: HK$2,962,000) was recognised as an
expense for written down inventories to net realisable value.

2023
—E-=F
HK$’'000
FAET

7,404
(2,962)

4,442

RBE-_ZET_-_WNE+-_A=+—HItHF
€& 8H283,0008 L (T - =4
2,962,000/ 7T ) FER A F X LA T S MU

2023
—E-=%F
HK$'000
AT

3,321
252,762

]I FE -
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  26. A E - iIZ & R H it KR E
2024
—E-NF
HK$'000
FET
Prepayments (Note (i) AR E (ML) 51,777
Other receivables (Note (ii)) H b e Uk k18 (B £ (i) ) 192,901
Deposits paid (Note (iii)) BfRe (M3 Gi) 44,751

Less: credit loss allowances

289,429
B EEEERE (17,225)

Less: Non-current portion

272,934
W IEREE (1,404)

Current portion

MBS 271,530

36,959

293,042
(8,063)

284,979
(17,323)

267,656
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

26. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

The Group was intending to expand its market reach to
potential new investments in the future and the Group will
continue to actively seek opportunities in new energy vehicle
and artificial intelligent technology to expand the business
scope of the Group. On 21 February 2024, the Group entered
into a service agreement for the research, development and
delivery of artificial intelligence generated content software
(the “Service Agreement”) with a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability (“Vendor A”), an independent
third party to the Group. Pursuant to the Service Agreement,
the Group would provide a purchase consideration of
US$6,630,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$51,493,000)
to Vendor A for the research and development of artificial
intelligence generated content Software (“AIGC Software”),
Vendor A agreed to commence the research and development
of AIGC Software upon the receipt of the purchase
consideration, and the completion shall take place on or before
30 June 2025. On the completion date, Vendor A shall deliver
or procure delivery to the Group of, or make available to the
Group the AIGC Software.

On 21 February 2025, Vendor A and the Group had entered
into the termination agreement to the Service Agreement
(“Termination Agreement”). According to the Termination
Agreement, in consideration of the mutual release of the
Service Agreement with effect from 21 February 2025, it is
agreed that (a) the Service Agreement shall be terminated and
shall cease to be binding upon the parties hereto; (b) that
none of the parties hereto shall have any claims against each
other for breach of any provision or otherwise howsoever
in connection with the Service Agreement; and (c) that the
parties hereto mutually release and discharge each other from
all obligations, duties, responsibilities, claims and liabilities
whatsoever of whatever nature owed to any other party arising
out of or in connection with the Service Agreement.

Pursuant to the Deed of Set off dated 28 February 2025
(as defined in Note 51(iii)), as a result of the Termination
Agreement, Vendor A shall be returning approximately
US$6,630,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$51,493,000),
being the purchase consideration of the AIGC Software.

Up to the date when the consolidated financial statements
were authorised to issue, the deposits of approximately
HK$51,493,000 have been set off under the Deed of Offset
(Note 51(iii)).

The remaining balance of prepayments represented
miscellaneous prepaid amounts to various suppliers.
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(i)

AEBBEEERRBEMSGHEREEE
ENFIREEE ASEBEERIGS K
R RAERAISERBNES &
AREENEFGE - R _T_NF_A
—t+ B AEEA-REFBTMKL
WEREEAA ([EFA] AEENE
NE=ZA)RI RS HBE ((REHE]) -
PHBERIMFATEEEERRBTEF R
EREHE AEEERAEAAZTES
186,630,000 7T (4948 & 751,493,000
EIT) c AR A T B AR ARE
(TAIGCE#]) - EFARBEWEER
BREFBABAIGCEH MG TEN T
—HERNAZ+TBHSZAIER R EKH
B BHABERANEERNRRER R
ML B REAIGC B -

RZE-_RAF_A=-+—H BHAHARX
SEERREHE LR IEHE ([RIE
W&l BELKILHE ERE-_Z-F1
FZAZ+—HREFHEERRZREH
FEFEE@ERBHBEETRLE A
TBEBESHTEENERS: bBESH
BB HIE R RS s M A g3k sk B AT
MERESHEEENECRAmME S —7F
REAR: B OAHEEREREER
HH TR E A S ARG e = sk
R AR 2 — T EE 2 &5 B
5 HAI HREBE-

BEZFE-_RAF A=+ /\BrEKHERE
(FEFE RMIFES1GH)) - B LR -1

EHABEIRIE 6,630,000 7T (HHER
51,493,000 7T ) * BIAIGC B R EE B X
Eo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

26. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(ii)

Other receivables mainly represent:

a)

Interest receivables arising from the money lending
business with gross amount of approximately
HK$45,407,000 (2023: HK$71,925,000), of which
the balance of approximately HK$5,983,000 (2023:
HK$46,576,000) was past due. As at 31 December 2024,
the credit loss allowance amount are approximately
HK$16,495,000 (2023: HK$8,063,000). In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, interest receivables arising
from the money lending business with gross amount of
approximately HK$45,407,000 (2023: HK$49,933,000)
are considered credit impaired as at 31 December 2024.

As at 31 December 2023, a receivable from a third
party arising from trading of equity investments with
gross amount of approximately HK$21,826,000 had not
yet been settled and no credit loss allowance has been
provided for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
Group held collateral over the amount of approximately
HK$61,880,000 of property in Hong Kong. Certain
portion of this receivable of approximate HK$7,243,000
was classified as current portion. Remaining balance of
approximate HK$14,583,000 was classified non-current
portion. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
aforesaid amounts were fully settled.

A receivable of approximately HK$134,922,000 was
arose from execution of Sale Shares as disclosed in Note
19 after receipt of partial consideration in amount of
approximately HK$134,922,000. As the consideration
has not been fully received yet, the legal title of Sale
Shares has not been transferred to the Purchasers (as
defined in Note 19) and are still under custodianship of
the Group, relevant Sale Shares are still being pledged
for other borrowings as at 31 December 2024 and
2023 as disclosed in Note 34(c). Up to the date of
the consolidated financial statements were authorised
to issue, approximately HK$12,500,000 have been
subsequently settled.

The remaining balance of other receivables of
approximately HK$12,572,000 (2023: HK$9,834,000)
as at 31 December 2024 relates to a number of
independent parties for whom there was no recent
history of default.

26. FEATE

(%)

GEE

(ii)

(#8)

H 1 8 WK

a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F#
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B L% A1916,495,00008 7T (=
T~ =4 :8,063,000/8 ) o ARD
AEERA R_ZT-_WF+=-A
T+ B REEREEZERF
B 45 58 445,407,0008 L (= F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

26. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iii)

As at 31 December 2024, deposits paid mainly represented
the paid amount of approximately HK$42,254,000 (2023:
HK$34,310,000) for the uncompleted sale shares of the
Group's associate for acquiring additional 25% equity interest
in Senworth Limited (Note 18)). On 29 November 2023,
Morley Way Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party (“Vendor B”), pursuant to which
Vendor B agreed to sell and Morley Way Limited agreed
to acquire 25 ordinary shares for a total consideration of
HK$80,000,000 (“Sale Shares of Associate”). The Sale Shares of
Associate represent 25% of the issued share capital of Senworth
Limited, which is being a 49% held associate by the Group as
at 31 December 2023.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 29 January 2024,
as the relevant percentage ratio(s) of the acquisition of 24%
issued share capital of Senworth Limited in March 2023
and the further acquisition of 25% issued share capital of
Senworth Limited proposed in November 2023 in aggregation
exceed 25% but are below 100% of consideration ratio, the
transactions contemplated thereunder constitute a major
transaction on the part of the Company under Chapter 14 of
the Listing Rules and are subject to ratification and approval by
the shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company
(“Circular”). The Circular containing, among other things,
further details of the proposed acquisition of 25% issued share
capital of Senworth Limited, was expected to be despatched to
the shareholders.

On 21 February 2024, 2 May 2024, 21 June 2024, 29 July
2024, 5 September 2024, 29 November 2024 and 24 January
2025 and 28 February 2025, the Company announced that
additional time is required to prepare and finalise certain
information contained in the Circular, including but not limited
to the financial information relating to Senworth Limited, the
despatch date of the Circular is expected to be postponed to a
later date.

Further details regarding the acquisition and extension of
Circular are disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 29 November 2023, 29 January 2024, 21 February 2024,
2 May 2024, 21 June 2024, 29 July 2024, 5 September 2024,
29 November 2024 and 24 January 2025 and 28 February
2025.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

26. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iii)

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, Vendor B
had further increased the deposit paid to approximately
HK$42,254,000 to Vendor B in relation to the Sale Shares of
Associate.

Pursuant to the Deed of Set off dated 28 February 2025 (as
defined in Note 51(iii)), as a result of the termination of the sale
and purchase agreement entered into between Vendor B and
Morley Way Limited in relation to the acquisition of the issued
share capital of Senworth Limited, Vendor B is obliged to return
approximately HK$42,254,000, being part of the consideration
paid by Morley Way Limited under the Deed of Set off.

Up to the date when the consolidated financial statements
were authorised to issue, the deposits of approximately
HK$42,254,000 have been set off under the Deed of Offset
(Note 51(iii)).

The remaining balance of deposits paid represented mainly
short-term rental deposits and deposits for the information
system.

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables
approximate their fair values.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, deposits,
prepayments and other receivables other than disclosed in
Note 26(ii)(a) are neither past due nor impaired.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
further recognised a credit loss allowance of approximately
HK$730,000 (2023: Nil) on certain other receivables as
the management of the Group assessed the likelihood of
recovering such amounts is remote.

26. AMNFIE  RERHELEUKE

(%)
B (&)

(i) (4&)

BE_Z-_NE+_A=+—RHIFE"
EHIBERBERNRBEERNAE B
RS — BB ZE 442,254,000 7T °

BEAMA-_T_RAF - A -+ /\MIEH
2 (FE BHaEs51GH)) AN EHBHE
Morley Way Limited 5] 32 5 B BB BR #4
RARBEITRANKIIESHE &
B ZEMR 5 1K 5 22 45 3R 181 4942,254,0007%8 7T -
Bl Morley Way Limited 3z 15 &) & 5 (X (& ©

BEEAGAWHRREETIZEH &S
#942,254,0007% T B AR 5 K 45 22 1% (BT
51(ii) ) T LA EH -

ENREzH T EREENESRERE
BRGHES -

BeHEMRYEZ FEREEZLATE
HE -

ARRABEEFRR B E26G)@ ARES
S ¥~ TR RIR M E A MR B R 8
HA TR AR

BE_Z_NWE+_A=+—B1FE"
AEBE—TERSE TEMERRENE
BEEBEEEN7300008 T (T - =4F:
#) FRALEEEEEFHREZER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

26. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  26. BT RIE - #& R Hth UK IE

(continued) (#7)
Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount of interest FRAEHERRBEH oM IARER
receivables during the year contributed to changes in the loss BE2EBHOHTMOT:

allowance is as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
P 1 P X2 P B3 Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET

At 1 January 2023 RZE=Z=%—F—H 58,734 271 8,290 67,295
Transfer to lifetime ECL credit EEZEEEREC2HESH

impaired (Stage 3) EEER (BER3) (47,551) - 47,551 -
New assets during the year AEEHMEEE 9,237 1,301 - 10,538
Settlements during the year AEEHEE - - (5,908) (5,908)
At 31 December 2023 and RZBZ=F+-A=+—HRk

1 January 2024 —E-mE-f—H 20,420 1,572 49,933 71,925
Transfer to lifetime ECL credit EHEZBEEREZZHEH

impaired (Stage 3) FEEE (ER3) (21,781) (1,572) 23,353 -
New assets during the year KEEHEE 1,361 = 9,391 10,752
Settlements during the year AEEHE - - (37,270) (37,270)
At 31 December 2024 R-B-MNE+=A=+-—H - - 45,507 45,507
Analysis of changes in the corresponding credit loss allowance EWH SN HEEEBERBE2EH DM
on interest receivables is as follows: mr

2024
ZE-MmE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
P& BR1 (329 P& ER3 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THERT TERT
At 1 January n—HA—H8 1,577 247 6,239 8,063
Transfer to lifetime ECL credit BRAZCEEREZ
impaired (Stage 3) S HEBEEEE (BR3) 1,577) (247) 1,824 =
Change in risk parameters B & 2825 = = 8,432 8,432

At 31 December w+=-—A=+—8H = = 16,495 16,495
ECL rates BHEEBER NATER N/ATEH 36.25% 36.25%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

26. ANRE REREMEKRIE

26. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

(continued) (&)
2023
—T=F
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B P B2 P B3 a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTERT FET FET
At 1 January W—A—AH 1,546 1 8,290 9,837
Transfer to lifetime ECL credit BREZEEEREC2HES

impaired (Stage 3) EEBE (FFER3) (1,229 - 1,229 -
New assets during the year REEHEE 828 191 - 1,019
Settlements during the year KEGHE - - (1,734) (1,734)
Change in risk parameters EE ¢ 432 55 (1,546) (1,059)
At 31 December mt-—A=+—*H 1,577 247 6,239 8,063
ECL rates AREEBRE 7.72% 15.71% 12.49% 11.21%

27. BRBEH/BAIFEIIRZBAR

27. Equity investments at fair value through profit

or loss BE
2024 2023
—E-F —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TE T TATT
Listed securities, mandatorily LHEE RHMIR A EE
measured at fair value
— Equity securities listed in — BB LWRAES (M)
Hong Kong (Note) 25,681
— Equity securities listed in — kB FHRAE S
the United States -
25,681
Note: Mo

TR AR EFIEEE D EABBIEREAT
BIR-HE_E_NF+_A=1+—HILFE"
— S BN EEEEARE-BRAE (=T
ZEF X)) BEZERBETLEIWRERERN
AFEFEFANGHERN+T HBAFEFEE
BANZEERSH ARE BT AER-

The above equity investments were classified as fair value through
profit or loss as they were held for trading. During the year ended
31 December 2024, one (2023: one) listed share was suspended
from trading, and transferred from level 1 to level 3 (2023: Same).
The fair values of listed equity investments under Level 3 are based
on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

WZZE-WFE+-A=+—B BEFEBEER
RPEIRZEREECEMEREEERZ
HEEZHZR (T =% 8)-

As at 31 December 2024, no financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss have been pledged to secure the other borrowings
granted to the Group (2023: Nil).
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28.

29.

188

Debt investments at fair value through profit 28, FERIEZE AT EIIERZES
or loss RE&E
2024 2023
—E_NF T =%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
; T
Listed debt securities FTHERES
— listed outside Hong Kong and PRC ~ — R & & KR BILASN ETR 166
The listed debt securities as at 31 December 2024 were A mME+—_A=+—HzLtmE
interest-bearing and were classified as fair value through profit BEFTES AREEEMORAERE
or loss as they were held for trading. The coupon interest rates REAFEINE FTEBEFIREX
of listed debts securities are ranged from 6.00% to 10.25% N T HF6.00% £10.25% (ZEZ=F:
(2023: 6.00% to 10.25%) per annum with the maturity dates 6.00% £10.25%) ' HHANF T4
ranged from 2020 to 2025 (2023: 2020 to 2025). E_T_RF(ZB_=F:_T_FFZE
—E_RHF) -
As at 31 December 2024, certain bond issuers listed in RZE-_WMF+_A=+—H8 REER
Hong Kong and Singapore (2023: Hong Kong and Singapore) FME(ZTE_=ZF - BBRHIMK) &
were required to redeem the bonds which were subjected MZaETEFETARARESINHAE
to redemption notices at the aggregate principal amount (o] & [0 38 &0 P 5 K € 48 5H 4 578,000/ T
of approximately HK$78,000 and HK$20,280,000 (2023: %20,280,0008 T2 EH (ZF - =4
HK$78,000 and HK$20,280,000) on the bonds maturity dates. mow%n&mzmmm%n)ﬁ%%ﬁ
The bond issuers were unable to fulfill their redemption and ARBEREPHABTEER RN REE:
payment obligations on the maturity dates, which constituted T%&L%’]?V—F
an event of default.
During the year ended 31 December 2024, none of the BE_ZT-_NF+_A=+—RHIFE"
defaulted bonds were disposed. The Group assessed the BMEHEENES AEE2EXEEFS
fair value of the default bonds by making reference to the ZRFEFGEENVEFZAFE REE
fair value of these bonds and recognised the fair value gain R CNFEFT A=t —RHIEFE - QF
of approximately HK$168,000 (2023: fair value loss of B Z=L168,0008 T (ZTE-=F:RF
approximately HK$346,000) in the consolidated statement of 1B &5 18 49346,000/8 7T ) R 4R & 18 21 R A e
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2024. e
Cash and bank balances 29. BERBITER

As at 31 December 2024, cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (RMB) amounted to
approximately HK$533,000 (2023: HK$16,756,000). RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The
carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances approximate
their fair values.

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FEEBZERER A A

R-ZE-WNE+-_A=+—H KEBMN
AREFEZRE MIRITHEF A%533,000
BIL(ZZE-=%:16,756,00087C) - AR
BATEmRABRAREMER  SAM - RIEH
B A 2 S BE B B R B DA B A B - B BB
NEERET AEEEETEBERE
HITINEER ZRIT BARENIBAHE
g -

FRIFTTZRESREE A RITHERA FR
FERNEBREIA S - RITEFFRORAYL
BENCHAREEZRIT -HEe KRR
HEEzREEEERFERES-
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30. Bank balances held on behalf of clients

31.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group maintained
client trust monies via Central Wealth Securities Investment
Limited (“CWSI”), which were not held for settlement of
approximately HK$101,862,000 (2023: HK$76,967,000) in
segregated bank accounts in accordance with the provision of
Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules.

The Group has classified the client trust monies as cash
held on behalf of clients in current assets section of the
consolidated statement of financial position and recognised
the corresponding trade payables to the respective clients in
current liabilities section of the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group is allowed to retain some or
all of the interest derived from the clients monies. The Group
is not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own
obligations. The carrying amounts of the bank balances held
on behalf of clients approximate their fair values.

Trade payables

30, RREBEFHAZRITER

R -_WNEER T -_=F+-_F=+—
B AEBBBPEFHFREBRAA ([
ERF | REFEZLELPE (RPHHAE)
iﬁ,E“Jﬂwiﬁ’\ﬁifﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁT?EI?ETWT’FN
B2 BB EFERIEL101,862,00058 7T (=
T~ =4 :76,967,000 7T ©

AREBKEFEREREDBEREE MBI
ARARBDEERD Zﬁ%%ﬁ?w*ﬁzfﬁ
Ea j’IHﬂE1‘J‘REﬁZ$EJ*J*1 T’Z%HE%A
REEHMBRAARARB EES
AEBEREREBED DL RS BXQ%)E',
Zﬂ%\f’Z?»‘%@T\?%ﬁ%%?}f‘%ﬁlﬁéﬁﬁﬁ
A zEH - RREPEHBEZIRITEFR
E{ERE R FERE -

31. ERESERN

Trade payables arising from the BREEXBREECENES
securities dealing business AR
— Clearing houses —EET
— Cash clients -BHeERF
— Margin clients —-REREP

Trade payables arising from sales of
goods

HERMmES ZENEZEX

Trade payables arising from securities dealing business bear
interest at 0.01% (2023: 0.01%) per annum and repayable on
the settlement day of the relevant trades.

2024 2023

—EZNF —E-=HF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TE T FAET

4,982

42,058

29,991

= 542

107,329 77,573
BLEEERELECENESERIEFR
0.01% (ZE=Z=F:0.01%)sT B XZAR

EHESKEEREE-
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31. Trade payables (continued) 31.

As at 31 December 2024, trade payables arising from the
securities dealing business included the amounts due to (i) Mr.
Wang Jinsong, a director of the Company, of approximately
HK$1,074,000 (2023: Nil); and (i) Mr. Yu Qingrui, a director
of the Company, of approximately HK$500 (2023: HK$500),
these amounts were arising from securities dealing are
unsecured, bears interest at 0.01% (2023: 0.01%) per annum
and repayable on the settlement day of the relevant trade
transactions.

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give
additional value in view of the business nature. The carrying
amounts of trade payables approximate their fair values.

32. Lease liabilities

32.

ENE SRR @)
R-ZE-_WNMF+_A=+—H EHNE
SEFBEAFAFEERIMEEZE
FOARARREEITYNEEZREN A
1,074,000 L (ZE = =F ) : K (i) &
NAIESHREH LA ZHRELH B50058 T
ZE - _F 5008 70) ZEREAEIR
IR FERME01% (ZEZ=%:0.01%)
ECUWEREMESRSEERER-

W EREREDN AARAEERBRE
REBUE Rk M T SRHBIMEE
ENESERZEREREAFERS-

HESE

2024 2023
—E-mEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER T
Within one year R—FR 1,049 2,989
Over one year but not more than BB —FETHBBRE

five years 2,246 -
3,295 2,989

Less: portion classified as current B BERARBABNIY
liabilities (1,049) (2,989)

Non-current liabilities

FRBEE

2,246 -

As at the end of the reporting period, the future minimum
lease payments of the net minimum lease payments are as
follows:

RBRERR REEAENFFEZIRAKS
EREMNZEINT -

Within one year
Over one year but not more than
five years

R—FR
BB —FEIBBRF

Total lease payments
Less: finance charges

ME KA
W B B

Total lease obligations

HEREERE

2024 2023
=Sl 3 —E-=HF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAET
1,246 3,064
2,368 -
3,614 3,064

(319) (75)

3,295 2,989
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33. Other payables and accruals 33. Htt BN RIERETEH
2024 2023
—E-MEF —ET=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER T
Accruals FERTE 3,059 3,066
Loan interest payables (Note) &R E FAE (B EE) 6,432 7,416
Other payables H At & 5RIA 6,266 2,713
15,757 13,195
Note: The loan interest payables are derived from the secured/ Mzt BNERMNEKEGFEHBREN T34
unsecured other borrowings in Note 34 to the consolidated ZHEER S mEREMEE -
financial statements.
The Group’s other payables and accruals are non interest- REBE HMhEANRIEREER AT
bearing and are normally settled within three months. The B R —RZAR =18 R R{E - KAl AT 5K
carrying amounts of financial liabilities included in other BREFERBEZeMEBE REER
payables and accruals approximate to their fair values. HRAFERE-

34. Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 34. T ERRITRAMEEUREIT

and bank overdrafts i
2024 2023
k- 1}:3 —3C-=F
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
per annum per annum
(%) Maturity HK$'000 (%) Maturity HK$'000
BRERE ERERNE
(%) il THx (%) 315 T
Current Ik
Bank overdrafts - secured RTEL-BHF 55  Ondemand 14,800 59t06.1  On demand 20,375
RER 5.9 6.1 BREX
Bank horrowings - secured BORE-FEM 5.9 2025 10,000 N/A N/A -
ot THR T
Other borrowings - unsecured  E {5 & — EH 4 25 2025/ 7,399 5.8 2024 5,538
on demand —E-ME
“E-nE/
REX
Other borrowings - secured EffaE-BHMA 5.5 t0 12.8 2025/ RN 250128 2024/ 142,887
55 %128 on demand 25%212.8 on demand
“E-ERE/ ZEImE/
142,861 148,425
Total Bz 167,661 168,800
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34. Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
and bank overdrafts (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Group's overdraft facilities amounted to HK$180,000,000
(2023: HK$180,000,000), of which approximately
HK$14,800,000 (2023: HK$20,375,000) had been utilised as
at the end of the reporting period.

Certain of the Group’s other borrowings of approximately
HK$135,462,000 (2023: HK$123,437,000) are secured by
listed securities held by or in the custody of the Group with
market values as below:

34.

AERTREMBEURRT

Equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income held by
the Group (Note 19)

Equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss held by the Group

Charged Listed Securities in the custody
of the Group

(PEE19)

SRR 2 AR E

REE A BE M 2K
BATFEIEZBEARRE

AEBEMBERBDEAFE

AEEREZCERLETES

Certain of the Group’s other borrowings being secured
(2023: secured) with carrying amount of approximately
HK$96,853,000 (2023: HK$89,032,000) are repayable on
demand to the Lender (as defined in Note 19), of which,
65,356,000 shares of the Charged Listed Securities (as defined
in Note 19) in the custody of the Group, were pledged to
secure the borrowings as share charge since 24 October 2022,
and as at 31 December 2023 and 2024. As at 31 December
2024, the fair value of the Charged Listed Securities is
approximately HK$424,160,000 (2023: HK$396,711,000).

For the details of the Share Charge arrangement, please refer to
Note 19.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's secured bank borrowings
are secured by listed equity investments securities pledged to
the Group held by certain margin clients with an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$21,747,000 (2023: Nil).

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group’s bank
borrowings and other borrowings are maturing within one year.
The carrying amounts of these loans approximate to their fair
values.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, secured bank borrowings
bear floating rates with reference to HIBOR and Prime Rate.
The carrying amounts of these loans approximate their fair
values (2023: Nil).
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AEE 2 E S @ E /180,000,000 7T (=
T — = 4 :180,000,00078 7T ) * R ¥} & 2
KE B Z A L14,800,0008 7T (=&
— =%1:20,375,000/8T) °

AEEBE E 5 H b5 E 49135,462,0007%8 7T
TE =4 :123,437,0008 70 ) A AR EE
BASTEEN EMEHFERE  mEQOT

2024 2023
—E-NE ZE=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
4,182 2,635
6,144 -
424,160 396,711
434,486 399,346

7K & B B T {E 496,853,000 L (=&
— =4 :89,032,000/8 7)) & T B KA
o AR EMERREER
BETERA(EERNFI9) EhBEE
HHRAEBEFE M EMEHR65,356,000
BEm(EHERMFE19) BT ==
F+A-ZH+MNBRERER =T -_=F K=
T-_NE+ A=+ —BEEREAR
ML AEERHERF - R_T-_WOF
+—A=Z+—H BEBLTEENRFE
B A #424,160,0008 7L (— T = =4
396,711,000 7T ) °

BFEBROERZENFE F2HMZE
19 °

R-ZE-_ME+_-_A=+—H A&EBA
BEIHRITEEIUNETRESEFERY
By AREEZ EFMRAREESERR
WEH) B21,747,0008 L (T - = F:
') o

RZE-WMFER T =F+_A=+—
A AEERTEBREMEBEER —FR
- ZEERNEESEELNFER
‘go

RZTFE-ZWMFR T =F+=_A=*+—
H BRBRITEEL2EEBRITRER
ERBEEBMNRUNFHFERE -ZEEH
FHEASEEEATFERSE (2T ==
Fofm)o
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35. Defined benefit plan obligations

Defined contribution scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme, the employees
are required to contribute 5% of their monthly salaries or
up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and they can choose to
make additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly
salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 (the mandatory
contributions). The employees are entitled to 100% of the
employer’s mandatory contributions upon their retirement at
the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

The employees of the Group’s factory and offices in the
PRC are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
plan operated by the government of the PRC. The Group are
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
plan is to make the specified contributions.

LSP Obligation

For the Group’s subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong, pursuant
to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57, the Group has the
obligation to pay long service payments (“LSP”) to qualifying
employees in Hong Kong under certain circumstances (e.g.
dismissal by employers or upon retirement), subject to a
minimum of 5 years employment period, based on the
following formula:

Last monthly wages (before termination of employment) X
2/3 X Years of service

Last monthly wages are capped at HK$22,500 while
the amount of long service payment shall not exceed
HK$390,000. This obligation is accounted for as a post-
employment defined benefit plan.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance passed in 1995 permits the Group to utilise
the Group’s mandatory MPF contributions, plus/minus any
positive/negative returns thereof, for the purpose of offsetting
LSP payable to an employee (the “Offsetting Arrangement”).

35. AEBAGTEEE

SEHKEE
AREBRRRHIERTER BRI RER
BRERIERHFBESRKBHEE
(REEtE]) -REGRESTE ES
B A ¥ #95% 3 R 1,500 TR - I A
EEFLBRIMF -BEE A EHOHER
WEB AFHMN5%TE 8 ER1,500/8 7T
(o8 HI EH ) - B B Ne55R RIKF ik - &
kST 2 B KTT RAE N IS I 15 100% 18 =
58 il 1 A R o

AEBETFENTIHRNIBHERNEEDR
B BRI O B R B R AR IR M T 810
RE - AEEERTIERANFEEAD L
FER IR A ET B R U ahl g - AN &
B RKEANEE T EAE —RBEL

B RE K

RRE®%

RIBRBIED (BEAME7E)  HRA
SEEERBELNMBAR EREBR
T(PmERIEELRK)EZBRA
ERNBEAREXNEHRE S (RR
) FEREELSFNNRESE A

BAELAAWT:

K& AH (RILERAT) 23X RBFE

&1& AE 22,5008 LA LR MEREN
% 58T 158 48390,0008 7T © B B 3 IS5 1E 5
B AERMEIAR-

BN — AN A FFBBNRHELTES
AERPIRFFARBEERERFIERED
B3R Ik B EE A IE, B B3R - LA
AXNTRERENERS (E#HRH]) -
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35. Defined benefit plan obligations (continued)

LSP Obligation (continued)

The Amendment Ordinance was gazetted on 17 June 2022,
which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived from
employers” mandatory MPF contributions to offset the LSP.
The Abolition will officially take effect on the Transition Date
(i.,e. T May 2025). Separately, the Government of the HKSAR
is also expected to introduce a subsidy scheme to assist
employers for a period of 25 years after the Transition Date
on the LSP payable by employers up to a certain amount per
employee per year.

Under the Amendment Ordinance, the Group’s mandatory
MPF contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative returns,
after the Transition Date can continue to be applied to offset
the pre-Transition Date LSP obligation but are not eligible to
offset the post-Transition Date LSP obligation. On the other
hand, the accrued benefits derived from the Group’s voluntary
contributions made pre-, on or post-transition can continue
to be used to offset pre-and post-transition LSP. Furthermore,
the LSP obligation before the Transition Date will be
grandfathered and calculated based on the Last monthly
wages immediately preceding the Transition Date and the
years of service up to that date. The Amendment Ordinance
has impact on the Group’s LSP liability with respect to
employees that participate in MPF Scheme and the Group has
accounted for the offsetting mechanism and its abolition as
disclosed in Note 2(b) and Note 2(t).

Movements in the present value of unfunded LSP obligation in
the current year were as follows:

35.

REBANFEET (@0
RRE&&EE (&)
EITEAER-E-—FEXA++BET
= BONEAETRMERES ERFE
KM BEBER RN ERS -BUSS%IES
HSElEREs EE (- -—RERA—H)
ER AR BN BB ERFES &% ¢
— I BEE B R B ERA S ER B
WETEFASEEESZNOTRA—T
SHEONERS -

BBEETIEN REBEEEH B HE R
SIEAEEHE I, IR E, &R R
AAEEREEEES BTN RREER
ETNEANEEES BEENEREES-
S—HEAEERES BB B A
sEH BEEMNBERERMEEN R EE
IO EE AR E S B BT AE ) B
BOERRS - EHIEBHINEREE
BisERE T REEEH B HITNRE
BHREEZBHOREFEAFE BT
B AREFL2EBRESHENEENER
REBEBFE NEED S &
HEUCHEL @5t RIE  SEBE THE200) &
MEE2(0) ©

AERARHRESRREEHFNRENE
BiERMT

2024 2023

—E-MEF ZTZ=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT FAT

At 1 January m—HA—H 666
Current service cost & HREK AR (158)
Interest cost PN 20
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 528

The average duration of the benefit obligation at 31 December
2024 is 30 (2023: 29) years.
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35. Defined benefit plan obligations (continued)

LSP Obligation (continued)

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the
year are included in the employee benefits expenses in profit
or loss (where the analysis of expenditure in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income/
statement of profit or loss is by nature). During the year
ended 31 December 2023, a reversal of defined benefit plan
obligations of approximately HK$158,000 had been included
in administrative expenses.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the
LSP obligation are discount rate of 3.32% (2023: 2.95%),
expected salary increase of 2.50% (2023: 3.20%) and net
annual return on MPF assets of 2.60% (2023: 2.50%).

35.

RAERAFESEE @)
REE€&% (&)

FRNE PR A LA EFASFET AR
TANEERMIAY (KeBEZkEME
MmN R TBRRANEZIREE ) »
HE-_ZEZ-_=F+-_A=+—H1L=FE"
RERFGHE E T B 4158,0008 T E 5
AITEA S »

ErTERSESMATZEBRERIAME
K332% (ZEFE-=9:2.95%) - FBHH
S IN2.50% (ZEFE = =4 :3.20%) Ki&HE
SEBEEFTFRFER2.60% (T - =4F:
2.50%) °
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36. Share capital 36. BRZ&
2024 2023
ZE-MmE 2
HK$'000 HK$’000
THT TET
Authorised: ERE
80,000,000,000 80,000,000,0004%
(2023: 80,000,000,000) (=% = =4 :80,000,000,000/% )
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREB.0EBIT EEE 800,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRER:
17,281,750,057 17,281,750,057 8%
(2023:16,757,250,461) (ZE==%:16,757,250,461%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREB.0EIT . EEE 172,818 167,573
A summary of movements of the Company’s issued shares BERAARREBITRARKRN ZER &
capital and share premium account is as follows: BT
Number of shares Issued share  Share premium
in issue capital account Total
ERITROEE ERTRA R RER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THT
At 1 January 2023 RZE-_=F-H—H 16,293,850,461 162,939 4,772,338 4,935,277
Exercise of share options (Note) ~ 1T{5 B AR & (FizE) 463,400,000 4,634 6,751 11,385
At 31 December 2023 and RZEZ=F+ZA=1—H
1 January 2024 ZEMFE-A—H 16,757,250,461 167,573 4,779,089 4,946,662
Exercise of share options (Note) ?‘I@E,ﬁ%ﬂﬂg (HizE) 524,499,596 5,245 12,905 18,150
At 31 December 2024 R-ZB-ME+=A=+-0  17,281,750,057 172,818 4,791,994 4,964,812
Note: B 5
During the year ended 31 December 2024, 524,500,000 (2023: RBEE-Z-_WF+_A=+—-BHILFE"
463,400,000) share options were exercised which results in 524,500 OOOT%(_T_:¢1463,400,0001’73)5\%
524,500,000 (2023: 463,400,000) shares being issued in which f% i B2 1T - R L % 17524,500,000/8 (= F
47,700,000 shares at a price of HK$0.021 and 476,800,000 (2023: — =4 :463,400,0000%) B 17, H #3125 1£0.021
463,400,000) shares at a price of HK$0.024 (2023: HK$0.024) per BLR0.024BTT (B - =4 :0.0248 L) 1B
share. 1% 84747,700,000/% }2476,800,000/% ( =T ==

£F 1 463,400,0008% ) B 19 °
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37. Reserves

The contributed surplus of the Group arose as a result of the
Group reorganisation upon listing of the Company’s shares in
1994, and represented the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the former holding company of the
Group prior to the Group reorganisation and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

In addition, pursuant to special and ordinary resolutions
passed at the special general meeting held on 22 September
2000, the issued and fully paid share capital of the Company
was reduced by HK$448,992,000 through a reduction in the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company. The credit
so arising was transferred to the contributed surplus.

On 28 July 2005, a capital reorganisation scheme was
approved by the shareholders under a special resolution,
pursuant to which, every 10 shares of HK$0.01 each in
the issued share capital of the Company were consolidated
into one consolidated share of HK$0.10 and every issued
consolidated share was reduced in nominal amount by
cancelling HK$0.09 of the capital paid up for each issued
consolidated share so as to form (after the share consolidation)
one reorganised share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was
transferred to the contributed surplus.

On 26 March 2013, a capital reorganisation scheme was
approved by the shareholders under a special resolution,
pursuant to which, every 5 shares of HK$0.01 each in the
issued share capital of the Company were consolidated
into one consolidated share of HK$0.05 and every issued
consolidated share was reduced in nominal amount by
cancelling HK$0.04 of the capital paid up for each issued
consolidated share so as to form (after the share consolidation)
one reorganised share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was
transferred to the contributed surplus.

On 27 February 2015, a capital reorganisation was approved
by the shareholders under a special resolution, pursuant
to which, every 10 shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued
share capital of the Company were consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.10 and every issued consolidated
share was reduced in nominal amount by cancelling HK$0.09
of the capital paid up for each issued consolidated share so
as to form (after the share consolidation) one reorganised
share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was transferred to the
contributed surplus.

The equity component of convertible bonds arose from the
convertible bonds with the maturity date of 15 November
2010 issued by the Company in 2007, which had been fully
redeemed by the Company upon maturity.

37. %%

AEBZEGEKRREARARE RN RN
—ANmFEENRMETZEEEHR R
SEEAAMAEEZATERARRO @EE
BARRBRRWZEF RN MBITRD 2H|
BFT% th oz Bag -

N BER-_ZEEEFNAA-_+ZHHR
TZBREFIAE EMBBEZFIRER
RER AR ZEBETRBERANER
BB AN~ B B8 A8 2 T & M Bl Bk448,992,000
B -ENEEAZEREREETHRG -

R_EBEERFE+A -+ NA BAELHA
BRI — B R R R R R - Rt
AARBEBEITRAF F10/ SR EEO.01
B zBRMHAEfAE—KREELIOBTZA
GBIty MEBREBITAMHKRH 2EES
BIIESBEITAFRM0BITLZHRE
A& A F LABIR - Bt E A (R E &)
—REE0.OB T 2 &=, - AttESE
CHFEEREEH A%

RZE—=F=AZ+ 8 BRASEMHE:
BRI — R RR R REACRAL A - Bt
RAREEITHRAF HREHR@E.01E
TTZ B A PR — R E{E0.058 T2 & B
B MEBRCETAHBROZEEEBR
HEHE D BRITAMRMN0.04B T ZERK
AT LAHDRE B E A (R & BH18) —
PREMEO.OTE T REBEM D - FHILEEZ
EREBREEHAMK-

RZE—FEFEF_A-++tR BREAEAR
B—IEERAREERELE  BIL - AR
RIRBITIRAREFI0REREE.OBE T
ZBRHpEHAE—REEI0ETLZ A HFIK
 MBREEBTEHRMH ZAEEBT
HEBEEITAFKH0.098 T 2 BRI A
FLABDR B EAE (REDEaHE) — K
H{E0.01E T 2 & EAM D - Bt EE Z #
IREREEHRG-

AmkEF R NRE —ETLFH
RRRABIZIHBR-_ZE—ZTF+—A
THARMNARBES  ARFEREHE
BEBEO A REES-
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38. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash
flows
Major non-cash transactions

(@)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a
customer of a wholly-owned subsidiary, Top
Billion Finance Limited (“Top Billion”), had made
payment to Hao Tian Management (Hong Kong)
Limited on behalf of the Company of an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$22,280,000,
regarding the outstanding note payable amount
due from the Company to Hao Tian Management
(Hong Kong) Limited, being the note holder. The
paid amount is being set-off with his loan interest
receivable recorded in Top Billion.

During the year ended 31 December 2023,
Sale Shares (as defined in Note 19) had been
executed according to relevant sale and purchase
agreement, partial of the total consideration
in amount of approximately HK$34,350,000,
resulted outstanding receivable of approximately
HK$134,922,000 being recorded under other
receivables.

During the year ended 31 December 2024,
additions of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of approximately HK$2,350,000
and HK$468,000, respectively, were transferred
from prepayments, deposits and other receivables.
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38. MEBREREXRME (@)
REEIRFELCEEIYE

TRAVAEBEREETHAEFLARE
2EE PEReMIFREH -/
BEHMELZBENRERELK
ARBEEREHERAEERERE
//Ibiﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁé/ﬁ@j?étziﬁw//IL.

38. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash

flows (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated

(b)

statements of cash flow as cash flows from financing EZ8E-
activities.
Other Total
borrowing liabilities
interest from
Lease included in Other Bank financing
liabilities other payables borrowings borrowings activities
TR A
EAREZ MEEB
HEAE HuEEHNE HitfE & RITEE BEASE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THET TR TR
At 1 January 2024 RZEZME—H—H 2,989 7,341 148,425 = 158,755
Changes from financing cash flows: BEARETEEE:
Proceeds from new secured other  ¥EREFHLMEE
borrowings A
Proceeds from new secured bank MERERRITEE
borrowings s
Repayment of secured other BREEAHMES
borrowings
Repayment of unsecured other EREEAEMESR
borrowings
Repayment of lease liabilities BREEEAR
Payment for interest portion of A EMEER D
other borrowings
Payment for interest portion of XRBHEEFEHH
bank borrowings
Payment for interest portion of XNEEREFNEHD
lease liabilities
Total changes from financing cash ~ BER @R EHEEH
flows
Other changes: HEh#E:
New lease liabilities AEMERE
Interest charges on other borrowings  Efthfs & 2 S &
Interest charges on bank borrowings fETﬂﬁgZﬂ ,,,,, ER 399
Interest charges on lease liabiliies ~ HEBEZFSEH 93
Total other changes Hth#Ham 10,795
As at 31 December 2024 R-ZE-@mE
+=ZA=+-H 142,861 162,341
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38. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash ~ 38. ZfRE RS HRERM T (@)
flows (continued)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing b BMETBHRELEEGEIHER(E)
activities (continued)
Other Total
borrowing liabilities
interest from
Promissory Lease included in Other Bank Notes financing
note liabilities other payables  borrowings ~ borrowings payable activities
AR
RNHEZ REEHZ
AiRE  HEER %1’*%% A BOEE ERRE  afgE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TERL TR TERL TER TER
At 1 January 2023 RZZZ=§-f—-H - 6,404 1,024 123,075 39,500 42,422 212,425
Changes from financing cash flows: BERSRER
Proceeds from new secured other borrowings g Tﬁ}ﬁﬁ‘rmﬁﬁﬁﬁ BFE - - - 24,224 - - 24,224
Proceeds from new secured bank borrowings NEERRRTRENENE - - 16,561 - - 16,561
Proceeds from promissory note RAEBAENE 8,645 - - - - - 8,645
Repayment of note payable BEENRE - - - - - (38,006) (38,006)
Repayment of secured hank borrowings EBEEERRTES - - - - (39,500) - (39,500)
Repayment of secured other borrowings BREEREMESE - - - 4773) - - 4773)
Repayment of unsecured other borrowings BEERAEMEE - - - (10,662) - - (10,662)
Repayment of lease liabilities EREEAME (3,415) - - - - (3,415)
Repayment of promissory note BEAARE (10,140) - - - - - (10,140)
Payment for interest portion of note payable INERZEEHN TS - - - - - (1,994) (1,994)
Payment for interest portion of other borrowings X EffEEF|EHH - - (1,825) - - - (1,825)
Payment for interest portion of bank borrowings % {7 EF|SHH - - - - (1,727) - (1,727)
Payment for interest portion of lease liabilities XNEERENEHS - (261) - - - - (261)
Payment for interest portion of promissory note X &R ZEF|EHH 6] - - - - - 8
Total changes from financing cash flows BERSHEEDER (1,503) (3,676) (1,825) 25,350 (41,227) (40,000) (62,881)
Other changes: EEy:
Interest charges on other borrowings secured EbEEZ NS ER-EER - - 6,309 - - - 6,309
Interest charges on other borrowings unsecured  EHEEZFISBR-EEE - - 1,833 - - - 1,833
Interest charges on note payable ERNREZHEER - - - - - 1,994 1,994
Interest charges on bank borrowings BiEEZME gﬁ - - - - 1,727 B 1,727
Interest charges on lease liabilities BERGEZFISE - 261 - - - - 261
Dividend Income from fund investment HEREZ QEL{&U\ 29 - - - - 29
Gain on early repayment of note payable REEEENRE N - - - - - (853) (853)
Loss on early repayment of promissory note REERALE EZE& B 1,474 - - - - - 1,474
Transfer interest portion of note payable to BRENRENSHNE
other payables HiEMAFE - - - - - (3,563) (3,563)
Total other changes Bt 250% 1,503 261 8,142 - 1,727 (2,422) 9211
As at 31 December 2023 WZE-=F+-A=1-8 - 2,989 7,341 148,425 - - 158,755
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39. Share option schemes

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted under the
2003 Scheme, the 2013 Scheme and the 2023 Scheme
(collectively, the “Share Option Schemes”) is an amount
equivalent to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
as at the dates of approval of the Share Option Schemes
unless approval for refreshing the 10% limit from the
Company’s shareholders has been obtained. The maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the share options granted to each eligible participant in the
Share Option Schemes (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) within any 12-month period is limited to
1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Under the Share Option Schemes, share options granted to
a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any grant of share options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, which would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5,000,000 is subject to shareholders approval in advance
in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option
Schemes may be accepted within 28 days from the date of
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determined by the directors of the Company, save
that such period shall not be more than 10 years from the
dates of adoption of the Share Option Schemes subject to the
provisions for early termination set out in the Share Option
Schemes. Unless otherwise determined by the directors of the
Company at their sole discretion, there is no requirement of a
minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised.

39. IBRESTE

RITERE-_FT=F8 —T—=F
AER T _=FHE(RERRAEBR
Bt EeROEREREZAARBRE:
ABRTZESRNBBESRIEZEE
PRt S HBIARR 2 EITRMD Z210%
BRIFEARD AR EFTH10% 2 LR
PR+ B A B B S8 R S
BERERSEETHER T ZBEET S
ThEETzEERNHEE (BE2TR:
EREH R ARITE ZERE) NSBBA
RABBITRMN Z21% - E—FRTFEHI
REEZ B RIZABRERRA® EHEME -

ZEBBRETEETE RARARESE TR
BHITERRABEE 2T MBBALE
FREREAEEENSB Y IR ITE S -
AN HER T AR EE/ BN IB LI
HTEFARE 2T MBHE AL 2 ERE
BEIREERIEREER (BEER)
M+ —EASBMETEMEEBATER
LEERE2BERE (BEETHFE - BEEER
MARTEZERE)MBEITRGETHR
DBEARTE TN 20.1% REE (1R
BERYEBARARARKMDUMmETE) B8
5,000,000/ 7 * Q| BB AR A E EE
BRE LA -
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RAEENREBHBNBERATRE B
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39. Share option schemes (continued) 39.

The exercise price of share options granted under the Share
Option Schemes is determined by the directors of the
Company, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share of the Company on the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders” meetings.

Under the 2023 Scheme, an option must be held by the
Grantee for at least 12 months (the “vesting period”) before it
can be exercised and subject to discretionary terms for shorter
vesting period approved by the board of directors of the
Company. Under the 2013 Scheme, there is no vesting period
for the share options granted. The outstanding options granted
under the 2023 Scheme shall continue to be valid and are
subject to the provisions of the 2023 Scheme, 2013 Scheme
and Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2024, 3,193,830,000 (2023:
478,800,000) share options were outstanding, details as

BRETE (5

BRI SRR S B B Y 1T
BEAAFREEET BERELRUAT
ErRESE ((VADARGRE L ERE
AR B 20 B 2 MR 0B (i) AN 2 R IR A5 74
SERHERERSNAESS BERES
Bz FHU (B © R (i) A A B A 1
BEARHE B R EE

BREZFSAANERERRSHINBERA

P s
%ZJ: X Z= °

BEBE_Z_=FH8 ARARFEBER
BELR2EA ((BEB))  HAlTEBR
B EARAEFSARIBIHERENR
BH -RE_ZFT-=FE CREZBR
EHEERH - RE_S_=FHEMK
M2 RARITEBRESEEGR UX =
TT=FHE —T-=FHERLETR
AIFB178 ZARFAIR -

RZZE-ME+—-A=+—H" 3,193,830,000
5 (ZZ Z =4 :478,800,00017 ) B& AL #E 1% &

below: 1T FEIBESIAN T -
2023 Scheme 2013 Scheme
“ECOCFHE B
Weighted Weighted
Number of average exercise Number of average exercise
options  price per share options  price per share
SRINE S
BREHE FHTEE BREHE FHTEE
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
Tn TET T TAET
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-=%—-f—8 - - 2,554,090 0.020
Granted during the year FARE 1,518,130 0.027 - -
Lapsed during the year FRERM - - (1,611,890) 0.020
Exercised during the year FRTT6E - - (463,400) 0.017
At31 December 2023 and RIB-=ZF+-A=+-HBRK
1 January 2024 —E-mE—-A—H 1,518,130 478,800
Granted on 28 March 2024 RZZE-mE=A=+N\H 205,300 =
Granted on 2 October 2024 RZZE-ME+AZHES 1,675,700 =
Lapsed during the year FREKB - (159,600)

Exercised during the year FNTHE (205,300)

At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-_NFE+=-A=+-H 3,193,830
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39. IBEREFTE (@)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, 1,881,000,000
share options (2023: 1,518,130,000) were granted to a total
of 13 grantees (comprising 13 employees of the Group)
(2023: 10 grantees (including 2 directors and 8 employees of
the Group) under the 2023 Scheme (2023: Same) to eligible
participants, 159,600,000 (2023: 1,611,890,000) share
options were lapsed, 524,500,000 (2023: 463,400,000) share
options were exercised.

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the stock options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2024:

Grantees ARA

2023 scheme —EC=FHE
Directors )

Employees E&

Total st

N
of options
outstanding

fe R AT

BREHE

'000
T4

335,140
2,858,690

3,193,830

Weighted
average
remaining
contractual life
¥
MBRENHR

0.70

3.08 0.021 and 0.024

HE-_Z-_WN&F+-_A=+—BLFE"
BREBE-ZZ-_=FFE8ERTHIZBARA (B
ERAEEI3EREE) (ZEZ=F:10%
EEAN(BEAEE2ZEES NSZIEER) )
1,881,000,00010 BB g #E (—ZF = = F:
1,518,130,00017% ) * 159,600,000 ( =&
—=%:1,611,890,00017 ) B A% #£ 2 S 7 -
524,500,000 ( =& — =4 : 463,400,000
m)EBREDEITE-

RS IR E ARIT B IR TTE(E RTT
EEAT

BE-ZE-_NF+-A=T-HLEFE:

Number Weighted

of options average exercise
exercisable price per share
AT ik B
THEE BREHE THE
HK$ '000 HK$'000
i T4 TER

Exercise price

0.027 335,140 0.027
2,858,690 0.024

3,193,830

For the year ended 31 December 2023: HE_Z_=F+_A=+—RHILFE:
Weighted
Number average Number Weighted
of options remaining of options average exercise
outstanding  contractual life  Exercise price exercisable  price per share
MR ik Be2 AT Mg
Grantees ERA BEHE  FgaNHR TEE BEESE TEE
‘000 HK$ ‘000 HK$'000
T BT T TR
2023 scheme e
Directors S 335,140 1.75 0.027 335,140 0.027
Employees EE 1,182,990 1.75 0,027 1,182,990 0.027
2013 scheme —F-=F5E
Directors BX 478,800 1.58 0.024 478,800 0.024
Total et 1,996,930 1,996,930
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39. Share option schemes (continued)
The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The exercise period of the share options that were outstanding
as at 31 December 2024 are from 13 September 2023 to 1
October 2029 (2023: 20 June 2022 to 12 September 2025).

The fair value of the equity-settled share options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2024 was estimated by
Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, an independent
firm of professionally qualified valuer, using the binomial
option pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The fair
value of the equity-settled share options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2024 was approximately
HK$25,565,000 (2023: HK$21,600,000) has been recognised
as a share option expense during the year ended 31
December 2024.

The following table lists the inputs to the model used.

39. IBREFTE (@)

BhEzITEES SRR BITARK
ARB AT 2 AU EHFE -

RZE-_WMF+—A=+—8 ' HRITE
%%%Zﬂﬁ%ﬁ_?_—ihﬂ+ H
EE_NFE+A-—H(ZE-=%:
——FENAC +Ei_?_£$hﬂ+_
H) -

HE_Z_NWF+_A=+—"HLEFEX
HREEECBREZ ATERBIEE
EEREEMTNAFEZABR QRN
“HEABAETERX ERERNEREZ
ERRAEH R ETHIT B2 _NF
T A=+ HALFERERELEZE
%1 2 N FE A25,565,0008 0 ( — T - =
F:21,600,0008 ) WHEZE T —F
T A=+ HULEFECHERAEREHN
Slzo

TR AZBRE TR 2 8U& -

Share options granted EREBRE 2 October 2024 28 March 2024 13 September 2023
—BC-RF ks —B-=F

tTA=H =ZA=tNH hAT=H

Dividend yield (%) B % (%) N/ANER NATER N/ATER
Expected volatility (%) wﬁu+4§m5 (%) 101.66 99.69 110.80
Historical volatility (%) Jﬁi/&z & (%) 101.66 99.69 110.80
Risk-free interest rate (%) B 2K (%) 2.59 3.34 4.09
Expected life of options (year) ?E er,ﬁﬁ RAEFH (F) 5 5 2
Share price at grant date (HKS$ per share) AR BBRE (BKET) 0.021 0.024 0.027

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
3,193,830,000 (2023: 1,996,930,000) share options
outstanding under the Share Option Schemes, which
represented approximately 18.48% (2023: 11.92%) of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.
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Share option schemes (continued)

Under the 2023 Scheme, an option must be held by the
Grantee for at least 12 months (the “vesting period”) before it
can be exercised and subject to discretionary terms for shorter
vesting period approved by the board of directors of the
Company. For the share options granted during the year, the
share options are vested on the day of the fulfillment of the
performance target (2023: the share options were vested on
the day falling 12 months from the date of grant).

Lease arrangements
(@ The Group as lessor
(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2023,

the Group had acquired investment properties
located in the PRC, together with the existing
leases. The Group leased its investment properties
under operating leases arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from 6 to 8 years. The
terms of the leases also required the tenants to pay
security deposits. The investment properties were
disposed during the year (Note 14).

(i) The Group sub-leased certain properties under
operating lease arrangements with leases
negotiated for 3 years. During the year ended
31 December 2024, all the sub-leases had been
terminated.

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases
from investment properties and sub-lease were as

39. BREFTE ()
BE-S-—Fx3 ABAEEEER
HELEA ((BEBB))  FaTEER
ORAAFESSARBEHERENR
B A AT EEHERENS  BR
BREREREEEAREE (=
G ERERNEYARENREARE DR
RE)

40. HEZH
(@ AEEEHRAEEA

iy HEZE-_=f+=-A=+-—
BIEFE AEEBAMAFEH
MIEMECERRABMELY) -
AEBREBELEHELZHERA
EREYE ZERHNTAE
NF-HEBRRIMERBR I
EHRIES - EWERFANRE
(MIzE14) »

iy AEBRELEHELHER
ETWE BTHOEZF-F
22 -_WF+=A=+—H
IHFEE -FEEHETKIE-

RHEREMEREHERZ
AR EEFIAEMT :

follows:
2024 2023
Sl 11 -3 —To=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER FET
Within one year —FR 1,872
After one year but within two years ~ —F&ERFR 1,936
After two years but within three years MF&E=FNR 1,463
After three years but within four years =4 1&{8PUF A 967
After four years but within five years U 1£18 7 F A 793
7,031
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40. Lease arrangements (continued)

(b)

The Group as lessee

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not lease
any asset with a lease period of 12 months. As at 31
December 2023, the Group leased two offices in the
PRC with a lease period of 12 months, which was
qualified to be accounted for under short-term lease
exemption under HKFRS 16.

At the reporting date, the lease commitments for short-
term lease were as follows:

40. AEZH @)
(b)

—FN

Within one year

41. Commitments
No capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2024
(2023: Nil).

42. Related party transactions

206

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with certain related parties during the year.

Interest income on margin REEFETES
financing from directors BEERGZRER

BEZFBMWA

arising from securities dealing
transactions

Loan interest income received REEBEEBKZ
from a related company arising B EEAREK
from money lending business F 2 A

Commission income from EFHETESFEE
directors arising from securities X 5 Z A& WA

dealing transactions

AEBEREBA
RZEBEZWNFE+ZA=+—H F&&
EYEfAETmMBEga2EAZE
E-R_T_=%F+_HA=+—H"
AEEREMARPEOMERRE,
HEBANREA REFBVHEHRSLE
BlZE165E A AR IRIBE B ER 2 A
EEQ

RmERH CHEE 2 HEAED
T

2024 2023
—E-UE —E-=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
- 109
41. &IE
R-EBE-_NEFE+—_A=+—BHENKE
THBEREE(ZS-_=F /&)
42. BEAELRS
@) BZSUHREREMIBOAFLZR
S9N AEBMRAFEBEATEE T
BEALZRS-
2024 2023
=Sl - 3 —E-=%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M FE FHET FHEIT
(i) 376
(i) 255

(iii)
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42. Related party transactions (continued)
(continued)

(a)

Note:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Interest income on margin financing received from
directors of the Company which arose from securities
dealing transactions were charged based on mutually
agreed terms with reference to the prices and conditions
similar to those offered to other customers of the Group.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
none of the interest income on margin financing
received from directors of the Company had constituted
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Loan interest income received from a related company of
the Company which arose from money lending business
were charged on mutual agreed terms with reference
to the prices and conditions similar to those offered to
other customers of the Group.

Commission income received from directors of
the Company which arose from securities dealing
transactions were charged on mutual agreed terms with
reference to the prices and conditions similar to those
offered to other customers of the Group.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

The Group considers the directors of the Company to be
the key management personnel, whose compensation
has been disclosed in Note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the balances with the Company’s directors as

at 31

December 2024 and 2023 are included in Notes

21, 22 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

42. BEAETR S (#)

(a)

(%)
B i :

i) WREARREFLETEFEERS
ZRECBRENBWARBERE
A FRARER - I 4 22 E [ AN S [ E A
BPRMEZIAE B R

HE - T -_NFE T -_=—F+—
A=Z+—HBFE TEERXK TR
AIZ14A ZE TR E B WA QA&
EMNREFCHEFBMANBEER
%o

(i) KREEEEXEBZERARARBER
BAERMBRAE2EMAELEE
b E PR 2 A B LRI RE
B 19 5E 16 SRR -

(i) ARBEZERFFEERH MK
MASKRAK2ERNASREELBE
PRtz BEBRRIEHZAE R
TE R ULER -

AEBTEEBAEZME:

AEERARANEEHATEED
AB BRALZMEREAB TSR
RSB -

T—HEAXARAEZTZHEHRZ
BRI R A S R A2~ 228

3% o 2t
[

w
_
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43. Step acquisition from a joint venture to a

subsidiary

On 28 December 2022, Shenzhen Zhongda Enterprise
Consulting Co, Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,
has entered into a cooperation framework agreement with
a PRC company, FEUEHEB K BR QA (Zhongqi Media
Technology Co., Ltd*) (“Zhongqi Media Technology”).

As a result, a joint venture company, Daqi Culture was setup
in the PRC on 5 January 2023. Daqi Culture is principally
engaged in retail and wholesale of clothing products via
online platform in the PRC, where 60% of its equity interest
held by the Group and 40% of its equity interest held by
Zhongqgi Media Technology. Upon incorporation of Dagqi
Culture, Zhongqi Media Technology has appointed a sole
director to Daqi Culture to manage the operational and
financial decisions and activities directly. The Group and
Zhongqi Media Technology were having joint control to Daqji
Culture, and the equity interests only indicated the share of
profit or loss.

Based on the actual business circumstances, the directors of
the Company concluded that the Group has no control over
Daqi Culture as described under HKFRS 10 “Consolidated
Financial Statements”.

On 9 December 2023, pursuant to the equity transfer
agreement with the Zhongqi Media Technology, an
independent third party to the Group, the Group agreed to
acquire 40% equity interest in Daqi Culture at an aggregate
cash consideration of RMB1 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1) (the “Step Acquisition”). Daqi Culture is principally
engaged in development of customised clothing brand in live
streaming industry in the PRC. After the Step Acquisition, Daqi
Culture has become an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of
the Group.
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43. REE

\|

NAEANBARND
& s

A\—_E_—HF+ A+ N\B AEE—
Fﬂiéﬁﬁ%ﬁj/ NP ELEZRERA
AR EARTRERMEBR QA
(TRREREMNE]) AT LA EER G-

%

it AERBERMXIER T _=F—
ARBAERBEKL - ZERBEEERTE
BREGREFARERKERTERIHE
REBFE H60% 0 Ik o RUE KR
R B H40% # BUAE o 70 52 B SCE = Ml A 32
B PREZMREREMERIKR B
E—EF HEEREELENPHRRKLE
Bf o 7K 5% (8 B op R AR A A AR R4 R K
XAt BIEIER R D 1E B

REBEEREZBREL ARBAEERA/EE
B ERCUEL B E B M B RELERNFEI0
5 (4R A M5 3RS | Pt 4% 4

R-ZF_=ZFF+_ANLA REAPRE
BRR(BAKENEILE =) LK
BEEZERZ AKERBERBERXC
40% B BRERBRAARBIT (BE
R#nET) (25 W) - ERX T2
ERENEEBREXTENREREHNFHE-
RO FRBTRE EMXLERBAE
BREE2EHNBAF -
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43. Step acquisition from a joint venture to a 43. REEQNTNEHAMBLARND
subsidiary (continued) HUWEE ()
The fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities assumed of ERXER—_ZE_=F+-A=-+RH([2
Daqi Culture as at 20 December 2023 (the “Step Acquisition SWEBRB N FFEERAENEE

\|

Date”) were as follows: NEEET:
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment (Note 13) E RS E A AR 26
Inventories TR 6,906
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AN FIE - 2e R H M ERFIE 85
Cash and bank balances Be MRTTHER 2,330
Other payables and accruals H A A 5RIA N JEEH B B (57)
Fair value of identifiable asset acquired and ROFWEBBERENTRINEER
liabilities assumed at Step Acquisition Date AEENEEATE 9,290
The fair value of consideration transferred: FEEREAFE:
Cash consideration WEREB _*
Payable to the joint venturer et & &R RIFIA 4,326
Carrying amount of pre-existing equity interest Jﬁﬁﬂxﬁémﬂﬁﬁﬁ 5,574
Exchange difference PE N ERR 26
Total consideration REHARE 9,926
Goodwill arising on the Step Acquisition (Note 17) 2 FKWBEENEE (HE17) 636
Net cash inflow arising on the Step Acquisition: PERBEENRERAFH:
Cash consideration paid ENEREERE —*
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BRENEEMReEEY 2,330
2,330
* amount less than HK$1,000 * SR HM,00008 7T

Revenue and net loss attributable to the Group for the
period from the Step Acquisition Date to 31 December 2023
contributed by the Step Acquisition were approximately
HK$7,000 and HK$2,967,000, respectively, which included
the provision for impairment loss on inventories of
approximately HK$2,962,000 recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2023 (Note
25).

Had the Step Acquisition taken place and completed at the
beginning of the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue
and net loss attributable to the Group would have been
approximately HK$1,841,000 and HK$4,491,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2023, respectively.

B WBRARREE_ST _=+_A
Zt+—HILEE Ao U ESR AE
B FE 5 UR %5 N s R UF FE O B4 A7,00078 7T
2,967,000/ It * ;?EP@%%&E_i—_
FH+_AZ+—HUEFERGLAEZER
N EREEIBEE %’92,962,000,% 7T (Bt
£125) ©

WMo+ WERNBEE-_Z-_=F+_A8
—t—HUEFEVNETRTK AIXNEER
BE_ 2 - =ZF+_A=+—HILFERE
Uz KB EFEE R 9D 549 41,841,000%8
7T }2.4,491,0005 It ©
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44. Disposal of subsidiaries

(@)

Disposal of Youbeiqin (Guangdong) Medical
Technology Co., Ltd (“Guangdong Youbeiqin”)

On 25 May 2023, pursuant to the share transfer
agreement, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group
agreed to sell and the purchaser, an independent third
party to the Group, agreed to purchase 51% equity
interest of Guangdong Youbeiqin (representing entire
equity interest in Guandong Youbeiin held by the
Group), with aggregate cash consideration of RMB1
(equivalent to approximately HK$1). The principal
activity of Guandong Youbeiqin is trading of traditional
Chinese medicines and supplements.

The breakdown of assets/(liabilities) of Guandong
Youbeiqin as at the completion date of disposal and the
consideration of the disposal are as follow:

44. HEH B A A

(@ HEERERGEHBENEER
AR(TEREERH])
RZTE-_=FRA=-1+AHB BERK
BEZGE AEE—HE2EMRBA
AREHEMER (AXREEMNBEL
F-A)IAEBEERREHT%K
B EEFRABEENEHERKE
HgE) HeRELEAAREIT
(BHERLEBIT) ERABEHERNE
EEBRYTELBRES-

ERRERNHETK AN EE/
(AE)AANRBERENT

HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment M- ME kR E 39
Inventories = 967
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TR e K E M R GRIE 3,780
Cash and bank balances He RIR{TTHET 1,250
Trade payables e E FHERR (2,141
Other payables and accruals HoAh & RIE K B AT E A (1,168)
Tax payable JEt IR (105)
Net assets BEE 2,622
Non-controlling interests FEVERLME & (2,422)
Exchange difference ME W, =R 169
Net assets disposed FItERERE 369
The fair value of consideration transferred: FFEEREATE:
Cash consideration REeERE —*
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BHEARZEER 369
Net cash outflow arising on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—BHEBEARELEN
BREeERHBEE:
Cash consideration received BUER S R(E —*
Cash and cash equivalents disposed FEERE MRS EEY (1,250)
(1,250)
* amount less than HK$1,000 * S E L H1,0005 7T
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44. Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

(b)

Disposal of LigHI#Z {3 #HH R 2 A (Shanghai
Jiaeucalyptus Enterprise Consulting Co., Ltd)
(“Shanghai Jiaeucalyptus’)

On 15 May 2023, pursuant to the share transfer
agreement, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group
agreed to sell and the purchaser, an independent third
party to the Group, agreed to purchase 100% equity
interest of a long time dormant subsidiary Shanghai
Jiaeucalyptus (representing the entire equity interest
in Shanghai Jiaeucalyptus held by the Group), with
aggregate cash consideration of RMB1 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1).

The breakdown of assets/(liabilities) of Shanghai

44. HEM B QT (@)
b) HELBNRCEZATRAA
(rExsumiz])

E/\fyf_iﬁﬂ‘HEEl *E%Fﬁﬂié
EEpE AEE—HE2ENBA

Ei=x ﬁ%ﬁﬁaﬁ(ﬁmﬁlﬂ’]ﬁ

—H)REE E\*Fﬁﬁﬁﬂlﬁfﬂ@%
A EAIIR100% A kE (B
AEBATHA N LFIR2IRAE) -
BeREBRABAAREKIT(HAER

TEEOBT 8

#BTT) °

RN HETKARNEE (&

Jiaeucalyptus as at the completion date of disposal and BE)RARHERBWT
the consideration of the disposal are as follow:
HK$'000
FAET
Cash and bank balances e RRITHERE 105
Net assets REE 105
The fair value of consideration transferred: FFEEREATE:
Cash consideration ReRE —*
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BNEARZER 105
Net cash outflow arising on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—BHEARELEN
BRERHFEE:
Cash consideration received EWER KB —*
Cash and cash equivalents disposed FEERE MRS EHEY (105)
(105)
* amount less than HK$1,000 * & 71,0008 T
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45. Financial instruments by category 45. RERE D 2EMT A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EReRMIANBESHRZERENT:
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value
at fair  Financial assets  through other
value through at amortised  comprehensive
profit or loss cost income
ERBER g F 2HEE
BRATLEIRZ BASEe RAFESIRZ
tREE tREE tREE @it
31 December 2024 “E-RE+TZA=t-H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TER
Debt investments at fair value FRERELTEIER
through profit or loss EBRE 334 334
Equity investments at fair value BRAMTANGEATE
through other comprehensive SR 2 BRAR A
income 4,185
Equity investments at fair value BREREATETIRZ
through profit or loss RARE 38,844
Loan receivables from money MEEBEEZEKER
lending business 439,685 439,685
Trade receivables from securities BFBEEEBEEYL
dealing business B E 5 R 13,401 13,401
Trade receivables from placing REREEEERBELL
and asset management business JEYE 5 R 1,883 1,883
Financial assets included in FIARE REMEKFIE L
deposits and other receivables FREE 221,157 221,157
Cash and bank balances ReRRITHEE 13,398 13,398
Bank balances held on behalf of REBPHERTER
clients 101,862 101,862

791,386 834,749
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45. RERE S 22T A (@)

45. Financial instruments by category (continued)

Financial assets
at fair
value through

Financial assets
at amortised

Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive

profit or loss cost income Total
BBEM
BB bire & 2HEKE
BAFENERZ BASE, ZRTEDRS
SHEE FREE FREE @it
31 December 2023 ZE-=5+-RA=+—H HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
SR AL AL AL
Debt investments at fair value BRBEEATENRZ
through profit or loss EBRE 166 - - 166
Equity investments at fair value BREME2ARERATE
through other comprehensive SR 2 AR E
income - - 2,638 2,638
Equity and fund investments at BRARRRATEIIRL
fair value through profit or loss BARESRE 25,681 - - 25,681
Loan receivables from money MEEBEEZERER
lending business - 377,906 - 377,906
Trade receivables from securities BHEBEEBEEL
dealing business EUE 58T - 59,728 - 59,728
Trade receivables from placing REREEEREBELL
and asset management business EUE 557 - 4,310 - 4,310
Financial assets included in deposits 5T A2 & REMEYNFE 2
and other receivables SREE - 281,658 - 281,658
Finance lease receivables BERERYGE - 1,646 - 1,646
Cash and bank balances BeRBIER - 22,553 - 22,553
Bank balances held on behalf of REBPHERITER
clients - 76,967 - 76,967
25,847 824,768 2,638 853,253
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45. Financial instruments by category (continued) 45. BEHE D2 T A (@)
Y gory

Financial liabilities TRAeE
2024 2023
—F_MmF —To=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER TET
Financial liabilities at amortised cost — #Z# $H KX AR 2 & @l & &
Trade payables e E ZERK 107,329 77,573
Financial liabilities included in other — &F A E i & 5 578 K
payables and accruals EstERzemMAE 15,757 13,195
Lease liabilities HeaE 3,295 2,989
Other borrowings HibgE 142,861 148,425
Bank borrowings RITEE 10,000 -
Bank overdrafts RITEX 14,800 20,375
294,042 262,557
46. Offsetting of financial instruments 46. BHEM T A
The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off REBRKA QA RITRNEHERK K
receivable and payable with Hong Kong Securities Clearing ENBEETREEARAF ([BBEE])
Company Limited (“HKSCC”) and Hong Kong Futures LRESHEHEMERAR ((HEEKERQ
Exchange Clearing Corporation Limited (“HKCC”); and the Bz HE: MASEBRIRFRETEK
Group intends to settle on a net basis as trade receivables IENBEEEERPELERTRCE SR
from or trade payables to HKSCC and HKCC. e
In presenting the amounts due from/to the clearing houses, REVEY TN EEMRIER  NEE
the Group has offset the gross amount of the trade receivables EREREEMZEZRFEREIHFEEN
from and the gross amount of the trade payables to the HEMBESERBAE - CREERF
clearing houses. The amounts offset and the net balances are PRERFIIRIAT

shown as follows:

Gross amount Amount offset Net amount
Fk ] EHEHESHE R
31 December 2024 —E-NME+=A=+-—H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAERT FTHERT FTHER
Amount of trade receivables RUKEERZESER
from the clearing houses 6,392 (3,948) 2,444
Amount of trade payables R &EE M2 B HERK
from the clearing houses (3,948) 3,948
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46. Offsetting of financial instruments (continued)

46. IKEHERM T R (#)

Gross amount Amount offset Net amount
B BiREEH R
31 December 2023 —E-=F+ZHA=+—H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT FHAT
Amount of trade receivables RREERZE SRR
from the clearing houses 1,780 (1,780) -
Amount of trade payables ERNEERZE SRR
from the clearing houses (6,762) 1,780 (4,982)

47. Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
bank balances, loan receivables from money lending business,
trade receivables from securities dealing business, trade
receivables from placing and asset management business,
trade payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, bank overdrafts and bank
and other borrowings, approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The Group'’s finance department is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. The finance manager reports
directly to the financial controller and the audit committee.
At each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.

The valuation is reviewed and approved by the financial
controller. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair value of the note payable and lease liabilities has
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities, which
approximate to their carrying amounts.

47. EMITERNFEER
MARBSRIBTRET MEEBESE
WEH BAEEEBELAYRNESE
B REREECREBEL Y EKES
ER ENESER TAEMRE R
REMBRRIE, S BEE T ALME
NRERESER s REE HTEX
DRBTREMESAZREHNEIL

HERERRZELAQAFEREREE
GEESK

AEEBGHFEERESR TARTE
AFEBRREERF MHEEERRAMBA
ENBECREQER -NERSEH UK
WS EMTABEZEYMETHE
FRIERMEZE AR

EEET SR EEN RIE - FREAS
B 18 4B 12 I 4 o 500 O B 9 5
SFHRMA -

TRMEENABNATENZIARERM
R (MIERELBFREE)ENRH T
MARHEBARKR T ERBRITA
PEERFE:

ENRBELEERENAFEBBERA
AR LUIE R 5 B R e K R 68 B HR B IR 19
TRAZHMAGHNEXTRBERRKRSRE
matE BEKEERS-
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47. Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments  47. @R T REAFEER (&

(continued)

The fair values of listed equity investments at fair value BRAMEPEAWERATFERZ LT
through other comprehensive income and equity investments AEERBBBEHEZRATEIE KRR
at fair value through profit or loss are based on quoted market BZ ATV EETISHREMETTE

prices.

The fair values of debt investments at fair value through profit FRBERATEIRNERREZAT
or loss and fund investments at fair value through profit or ERFBBEFZRATVTEIERZEESRED
loss are based on quoted market price in inactive markets. ERATERBNTSREMET -

Fair value hierarchy RFEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRINFAEESHMIANATFEAERE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: e

Assets measured at fair value: BRATEFENEE:

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable

markets input inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RIEBTS EXATEE EATAEHE
HE BAHE BARE

(5-EBf) (B=B&) (E=ZER) @t
At 31 December 2024 R-Z2-mE+-A=t+-H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TR
Debt investments at fair value BRBRRRATEIIRZ
through profit or loss EBRE 334 334
Equity investments at fair value EBEME2ARERATE
through other comprehensive SR 2 AR A
income 4,185
Equity securities at fair value BREREATETIR
through profit or loss RAES 38,844

43,363
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Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments 47.

(continued)

ERMITAEATFERR @)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) NP EER (&)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets input inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERT % EAUBR BATHUEER
WwE AR BAHE
(E—ER) (5=E#H) (5=E#HR) @at
At 31 December 2023 R-FE_=f+t-A=1—H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET THET
Debt investments at fair value ERBEREATER.
through profit or loss EBRE - 166 - 166
Equity investments at fair value ERAMEZANERATE
through other comprehensive SIERZ BRARE
income 2,638 - - 2,638
Equity securities at fair value BRBRRRRATEIIRZ
through profit or loss A E 5 25,681 - - 25,681
28,319 166 - 28,485

There were no transfers of fair value measurements between
Level 1 and Level 3 (2023: Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Financial risk management objectives and 48.

policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise equity,
debt and fund investments and cash and bank balances.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
from securities dealing business, trade receivables from
placing and asset management business, loan receivables
from money lending business, trade payables, note payable,
other borrowings, bank borrowings, third party interests in
consolidated investment fund and lease liabilities. Details of
the major financial instruments and the Group’s accounting
policies in relation to them are disclosed in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

ANFEFENSEEE—EBRARE=ZER
CHEER(ZE_=F ) -

REBW -_Z-_NFERER T -=F+_A
—t+—BYETNEAFEAEZSRE

fi5o
MHEREEBRBRREE

FEBZFEZSRMIARERE BBK
HeREUNRBRASRRTEF HLEFSR
TATZEAERAGEEZZESERES-
AEEFBEREMTRAZEREEREE
NMEZEEXEBEEZRRESRR &
ENEEREEBELZRKRE SRR
MEEBEL ZEKER BNEZEN
ENRE EtEE RITEE REAR
EREgzEF=_TEaEERE-TES
MTARAKEHZEERTAZARS
TR F BN AR A M I R M 2 R

AEBZERTAMEEZ TERMR AN
KRR MEER- EERR RBESE
BEEANERRR -EF@CRIMER
FRLERR ZEERE  WHAWT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

48. Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCieS (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from dealings in securities which are settled
in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency
and holding of bank balances in foreign currency. As at 31
December 2024, cash and bank balances of approximately
RMB299,000 (2023: RMB12,969,000) and approximately
US$624,000 (2023: US$757,000) were held by the Group. As
the HK$ is pegged to the US$, the Group considers the risk of
movements in exchange rates between the HK$ and the US$
to be insignificant

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to reasonably possible changes in the
RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Company’s profit before income tax and the Company’s

equity.

31 December 2024 —E-NE+=-HF=+—H

If the Hong Kong dollar WETHARKRE
weakens against the RMB
If the Hong Kong dollar AT ARETE

strengthens against the RMB

31 December 2023 —E-=F+-A=+—H

If the Hong Kong dollar WETAARKRE
weakens against the RMB
If the Hong Kong dollar WETHEARETHE

strengthens against the RMB

48.

(Decrease)/
increase in
exchange rate

BERREEEEREE @

S & | By
AEFEAZIRGERRK -EHERK EKE
LX$’ATIJJQ BN B EE 2 F
RGUENINERSF ZRITEGF - R
“WFEF+ A=+ —H AEEEHEERE
FIRITHEFHANR®E299,0000 (ZE ==
F: AR¥12,969,0007T) & #41624,0003 7T
—E - =4:757,000%70) AN B T E
EnEE AEBERAEBLAETLZER
BB E R E e

TRAPEMBEEMERET TE N H
FHRARBEXRZABAREHHALR
BIRFTERANEN R AR ARG 2 EZ
BURE »

Decrease/
(increase) in
equity
EmEd
(#m)

(Decrease)/
increase in loss
before tax
P?ﬁﬁﬁ 18
wWL) Em
(%) HK$'000
FET

HK$'000
TAL

(5) (701) (586)

5 701 586
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

48. I EKREE BEREXK (&)

) = 2 By
ARBRTIGNEEFHMAT 2 AREER
HARAIRZBHERGF R ZEEER-

48. Financial risk management objectives and
pOliCieS (continued)
Interest rate risk
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings
with a floating interest rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a TREPFE A H A BB T LR
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other EEH%RIE%% TNEEBAREE B E AR
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, of the N Al R P AS A& A (Li@\ﬁ/%,.\ﬂ =
Company’s profit before income tax (through the impact on FEB)RARAERBRE -

floating rate borrowings) and the Company’s equity.

2024 2023
ZEI@E “BCZE
Increase/ Increase/ (Increase)/ Increase/ Increase/ (Increase)/
(decrease) in  (decrease) in loss decrease (decrease) in (decrease) in loss decrease
basis points before income tax inequity basis points  before income tax inequity
BRA G A B A
2Y EREm/ Ei e R/ Ea
i/ (H) (B2) () /5 RGeSy i) () /R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThER TER TER Fhx
Hong Kong dollar /7T 67 56 100 256 214
Hong Kong dollar 7T (Y] (56) (100) (256) (214)
The Company’s policy to manage its cash flow interest rate ARREBEReRENERR 2 BER
risk is to minimise the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings HERD ZIK’A\ AR BNEG B2 BB
which bear interest at floating rates. g

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Company’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
by the risk management department on an ongoing basis
and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. The
Company has no significant concentration risk in view of
the fact that the Company’s trade receivables from securities
dealing business and trade receivables from placing and asset
management business relates to a large number of diversified
customers.

The management estimated the ECL of loans receivables
based on historical credit loss experience of the customers
as well as the fair value of the collaterals pledged by the
customers to the loans receivables. Based on assessment by
the management, the loss given default is from 27.35% to
100%.

FEERKE
AEEERERAAREEAZEZE=ZHiEE
IR -BBARB 2B FIERIZEE
HETRGZEBFNEBBEERERF-
HESN - [ B B IR P i 1 B B 1 Uk A
Eh MASBE ZERRARITER AR
RN EEAEPRAR  JIHRADQEEF
BEERECZERESERMEENRE
EEREBELZERESEREZET
AEFERE-

EEEREEFEANEERELRUR
BEBEREZTEFROAFEMGTERK
BERWNBEHEEBE - REEEENTG

EHBRRNTF27.35%E100% °
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48. BB EMEE EHERBE (&)

48. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for its customers. The Group
considers all loans receivables as doubtful if, on an individual
assessment by way of discounted cash flow, the repayment
of principal and/or interest has been overdue and may not be
recoverable and the fair value of the collateral, may not be
able to fully settle the amount of the outstanding principal
and/or interest. Such loans receivables would be considered
as loss immediately if the collection of the principal and/or
interest in full is improbable.

The Group applied simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to
measures loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. The ECLs on trade receivables are
assessed individually for debtors with significant and/
or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significant different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables from securities
dealing business and trade receivables from placing and asset
management business are disclosed in Notes 22 and 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The credit risk of the Company’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and bank balances, deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. In assessment of credit risk on other receivables,
the management has considered the settlement in subsequent
period to the reporting date and also take into consideration
of the renewal and subsequent settlement, the management
of the Group considers and believes that the amounts are not
credit impaired if the past due amount has been subsequently
settled in cash.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

48. Financial risk management objectives and 48. M5 R b EE B ERBUER (|)
pOliCieS (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERE (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December RIB-MFR -_E_=F+-H=+—
2024 and 2023 H #9557 5 BB K 4 A A AR 5
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum TRIFKR-_Z-_WHFE+_A=+—HE
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, REEBEERRZGEEERZRARZ&
which is mainly based on past due information unless other SEERR HEXr2RBaHEHR (RIER
information is available without undue cost or effort, and BANETVERASANABZEME
year-end staging classification as at 31 December 2024. The ) UARFERBRMND B2 2 &%
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial REMEEZBRHEIE-
assets.
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 AEH
FEEE EREMEEER
Simplified
31 December 2024 ZEMETZAZt-A Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
-E& FRR EZER 1973 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAR THET THERL TET
Cash and margin client receivables ReRREC TP R
- LTV at 100% or above ?ﬁﬂ“‘ﬁttfﬁﬁoouw 261,115 261,115
- LTV between 80% and 100% A EELEH80%E100% g - 1,760
- LTV less than 80% ?x%ﬂ“@tt 25%80% h - 10,305

261,115 273,180

Loan receivables, trade receivables BUER RERAEEEER
from the placing and asset EEZRWESETRELRFIE
management business and
interest receivables
~ Not yet past due — AR 515,116 ! 517,088
— More than 90 days past due — R HEE0A 51,261 51,261

566,377 ! 568,349

827,492 ! 841,529
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48. Financial risk management objectives and
pOliCieS (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December
2024 and 2023 (continued)

48. B EKREE BEZEREEK (@)

EERM (&)
RIF-PFER —F - =—F+ - H=+—
ARIREEERFAZART (E)

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12 AFEH
[FEBE SHEHEERR
Simplified
31 December 2023 TECZETCAZT-R Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FMER FRBR FZRR B @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT FiEn FhEL TAL
Cash and margin client receivables RERRELEPEYNTE
- LTV at 100% or above ~ERHEELER00% KA £ - - 281,206 - 281,206
- LTV between 80% and 100% ~ B HBELERN80%E100% - 4,833 - - 4,833
- LTV less than 80% —ERHEELEDR60% 30417 - - - 30417
30,417 4,833 281,206 - 316,456
Loan receivables, trade receivables REER REREEEREH
from the placing and asset EEZRUB SR RERTE
management business and
interest receivables
~Not yet past due —HRBH 172,965 - - 4,515 177,480
~ Less than 90 days past due — BB R0 - 20,161 - - 20,161
~ More than 90 days past due — R H2iR90A - - 317,418 - 317,418
172,965 20,161 317,418 4,515 515,059
203,382 24,994 598,624 4,515 831,515
Liquidity risk RBESERE

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g. trade receivables from securities dealing business, trade
receivables from placing and asset management business and
loan receivables from money lending business) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of the
Group’s available cash and its listed equity investments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

48. Financial risk management objectives and 48. M5 R b EE B ERBUER (|)
pOliCieS (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRER (8)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at AEERBETAOXRFTRARITEHE
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual BERRERRZ BIBMBRAT

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

On demand or

within 1 year 1 to 5 years Total
R—FR —ERE Mt
31 December 2024 —E_mE+=ZA=+—H HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHEx FRET
Trade payables ERE SRR 107,329 107,329
Financial liabilities included in &1 A E b & {~H 5038 12
other payables and accruals EAERzo®MERE 15,757 15,757
Lease liabilities HEARE 1,246 3,614
Bank borrowings RITEE 10,000 10,000
Other borrowings HifgE 145,787 145,787
Bank overdraft RITHE L 14,800 14,800
294,918 297,286
On demand or
within 1 year 1to 5 years Total
R—FR —ZARF BEt
31 December 2023 ZE-=F+=-A=+—H HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Trade payables B8 5 8RR 77,573 - 77,573
Financial liabilities included in &1 A E b fE {~H 7028 &
other payables and accruals EETEBRzemMAas 13,195 - 13,195
Lease liabilities HEaE 3,064 - 3,064
Other borrowings HiEE 136,338 19,466 155,804
Bank overdraft RITEZ 20,375 - 20,375
250,545 19,466 270,011
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

48. MKEAKEEEEZERBEK (@)

48. Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCieS (continued)

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity investments,
debt investments and fund investments decrease as a result
of changes in the levels of equity indexes and the values of
individual investment. The Group is exposed to price risk
mostly arising from equity investments, debt investments
and fund investments that are classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. Majority of the Group’s equity investments and debt
investments are listed on the Stock Exchange, respective
overseas stock exchanges and the over-the-counter markets,
while the unlisted investment fund are traded in the over-the-
counter markets.

Listed equity investments

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting
period. For the purpose of this analysis, for the equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
the impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve and no
account is given for factors such as impairment which might
impact on the statement of profit or loss.

Carrying amount
of equity Group's loss
investments  before income tax

B

EREBRERARE BHREESR
B R FE TR ZRER  ThhRIRAE R
KERBAREEEZICAK - AN EEE
e B0 B R R KB D R R IR AR E - &
BRERESRE (DEREBBRGHH
2SR A FEIRCEREE) A
SEH AR BAKRE REKIRE DR
R BENBINEFRGARGINZ S
mELEH MELTREESNRNIZIIR

ZHHEE-

L TRARE
TRETBRERSHRZEREE RAK
B2 RN ES% EEMAA L MERERST
BYHBRRBAZEMTZERZHEE -5
Aofms HEBEMEERESZRAF
BIRZBEARE 2 ERER/E R FE
FEzTE EPLEZRBAESAIEY
ERDmR AR

Change in the

Change in the
Group's equity

FEER

BARERHE MEHABREE FREEZEDH

31 December 2024 —E_ME+-A=+—H

Investments listed in: RTFE EH 2 &RE

Hong Kong - Equity investments ~ &#& —#BHE M 2 E K
at fair value through other BRAFEINRBREARE
comprehensive income

Hong Kong - Equity investments ~ &#& —#iBEHEAT(E
at fair value through profit or SR AR E
loss
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

48. Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCieS (continued)
Price risk (continued)
Listed equity investments (continued)

Carrying amount
of equity Group's loss

. BEEREEBERBEK &)

B (&)

LETRARE ()

Change in the
Change in the

investments  before income tax Group's equity
A& ERR
BAREREE FMEHAEREEY AEERERZ
31 December 2023 —Ro=H+-A=1—H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Investments listed in: RTE EHiRE
Hong Kong - Equity investments ~ &/#&—#EBAMEEKE
at fair value through other BRATEINRREARE
comprehensive income 2,638 - 132
Hong Kong - Equity investments ~ &/#&—#BERRATE
at fair value through profit or SR AR E
loss 25,681 1,284 1,072
Debt investments BHERE

For sensitivity analysis purpose of debt investments amounting
to approximately HK$334,000 (2023: HK$166,000), if the
prices of debt investments had been 5% higher/lower, the
loss before income tax for the year ended 31 December
2024 would have decreased/increased by approximately
HK$17,000 (2023: HK$8,000).

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

F49334,000 70 (ZF = =4 : 166,000
BILNEBRREZBRESTME  ME
BIWENE®RLEF THE% BEFEE—-F
TFE+ A=+ BItFEBRERA
R AN417,0008 T (ZE ==
F :8,000/87C) ©

EXERE
AEBEAERZTEZABRARERNEE
ERELERBERENERL R UX
FREXBY /RREREREE-

AEBEEEEARRRE ARELHENRNR
MBI RAREEZ BRSEimEL -
7N S5 18 R RE F BOR T T BCR AV AE - A AR
RERBEBEAREBETHR AEHHARE
AERB-RBE_T_NFR-_FT_=F
T-A=+—RLFEE AEEEEER
MER BRIEFUEELES-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =F ZF+=H="+—HIFZF

48. Financial risk management objectives and
pOliCieS (continued)
Capital management (continued)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity
ratio calculated as total debt, excluding lease liabilities,
divided by total equity. The debt-to-equity ratios as at the end
of the reporting periods were as follows:

48.

BEEREEEEREE @

EXREE ()

AEBNERE ST (REBRARE (T

BREERE) KRR

RETE) 2 BE%E

ERHEA - RBEMRZERSERLL

E3 Ul

2024
=Sl - 3
HK$’000
FERT

142,861
10,000
14,800

167,661

Other borrowings Hib g &
Bank borrowings RITIEE
Bank overdrafts RITHEX
Total debt BIR4ARE
Total equity M R

733,127

Debt-to-equity ratio SIE I REZS L &K

22.87 %

The increase in debt-to-equity ratio as at 31 December 2024
was mainly due to the slight decrease in total equity by
approximately HK$43,557,000.
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2023
—E-=F
HK$’000
FAET

148,425

20,375

168,800

776,684

21.73%

RZZE-_WNE+-_A=+—HAzBEEHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 =FZF+=H=1+—HIFZF

49. Statement of financial position of the 49. A1 F) 2z B #AR R &
Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the R|ERR NRBIMBRREK 2 BRI
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: T

2024 2023
—E-mE TEC-=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

9
3,267
770,253
517

774,046

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WE KRR
Rights-of-use assets EREEE
Interests in subsidiaries KRB AR Z
Deposits ®’e

Total non-current assets FERBEELE
Current assets RBEE

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

BN FIR - & R E AR KRROR

51,543
144

51,687

10,337
1,049
345,233
96,853

453,472

(401,785)

372,261

Cash and bank balances B MRITHETF
Total current assets MEEELRE
Current liabilities RBEE

Other payables and accruals H A A SRR R A E A
Lease liabilities HEBE

Due to subsidiaries P& B 8 R RIFRIE
Other borrowings HiEE

Total current liabilities mEBEER

Net current liabilities REBAETRE

Total assets less current liabilities EEHEBERRBARE
Non-current liabilities kRBEE

Defined benefit plan obligations
Lease liabilities

REBMTEIEE
HER®E

18
2,246

2,264

369,997

172,818
197,179

Total non-current liabilities ERB B EEE
Net assets FEE

Equity Rz

Share capital LN

Reserves (Note) bt (ML)
Total equity R B

369,997

984
2,494
744,492

747,970

1,085
900

1,985

8,873
2,989
270,162
94,570

376,594

(374,609)

373,361

18

18

373,343

167,573
205,770

373,343

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 3 227



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR
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49. Statement of financial position of the

Company (continued)
Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Share
premium  Contributed
account surplus

RtaEE  EHEK
HKS'000  HKS'000

49, KQAF) 2 HBEMR AT (&)

B
RRFREHHENT
Equity
Share  component
Capital option  of convertible ~ Accumulated
reserve reserve bonds losses Total
TRRES 2
EXfE  BRERE  BENS  RHER @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

FAL TAL FHL FHL FAL TAL FHL

At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-=F—-Hf—H 4,769,338 675,671 556 23,232 47,257 (5,097,743) 418,311
Total comprehensive loss TELAFEEE

for the year - - - - - (237,478) (237,478)
Exercise of share option iR E 6,751 - - (3,414) - - 3,337
Lapse of share option BT - - - (14,470) - 14,470 -
Equity-settled share option WEgE 2 BRER S 58

arrangements, net - - - 21,600 - - 21,600

At31 December 2023 and RIB-=F+-A=1-H
1 January 2024 R-Z-MmE-A—H 675,671

Total comprehensive loss TELAFEEE
for the year

Exercise of share option TRERE
Lapse of share option BRI RN

Equity-settled share option RESEBRELH 38
arrangements, net -

At 31 December 2024 R-E-ME+-A=t-AH 4,788,994 675,671

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result
of the capital reorganisation referred to in Note 37 and
represented the excess of the then combined net assets of
the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z _—F_[JF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFFZ

50. New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but 50. ER2T{EEKXERZHIT LK

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Amendments to the Classification
and HKFRS 7 and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?
Amendments to HKFRS 1, Annual Improvements to HKFRS
HKFRS 7

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and Accounting Standards - Volume 112

HKAS 7
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2025.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2026.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027.

4 To be determined.

Except for as discussed below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

IR EMKREER
AR B IR A T 5B BTE MK
B2 3R] AR BT B 1 A R

BB GER Rz AR
EVAL AL
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RRANE75 2 B35
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B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F_IF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

50. New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

51.

not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. While a number of sections have been brought
forward from HKAS 1 with limited changes, HKFRS 18
introduces new requirements for presentation within the
statement of profit or loss, including specified totals and
subtotals. Entities are required to classify all income and
expenses within the statement of profit or loss into one of the
five categories: operating, investing, financing, income taxes
and discontinued operations, and to present two new defined
subtotals. It also requires disclosures about management-
defined performance measures in a single note and introduces
enhanced requirements on the grouping (aggregation and
disaggregation) and the location of information in both
the primary financial statements and the notes. Some
requirements previously included in HKAS 1 are moved to
HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors, which is renamed as HKAS 8 Basis of Preparation
of Financial Statements. As a consequence of the issuance of
HKFRS 18, limited, but widely applicable, amendments are
made to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS 33 Earnings
Per Share and HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. In
addition, there are minor consequential amendments to other
HKFRSs. HKFRS 18 and the consequential amendments to
other HKFRSs will be effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2027 with earlier application permitted.
Retrospective application is required. The Group is currently
analysing the new requirements and assessing the impact of
HKFRS 18 on the presentation and disclosure of the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Events after the reporting period

(i) On 31 December 2024, an independent vendor (“Party
A”), a Hong Kong citizen and merchant and Central
Wealth Infrastructure Investment Limited (“CWIIL”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into
the agreement pursuant to which the CWIIL has agreed
to purchase and Party A has agreed to sell the sale
shares, representing 100% of the issued share capital
of the target company (“Target Company 1”) for a total
Consideration of HK$60,000,000. Target Company 1
is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and is principally engaged in investment
holdings including but not limited to investments in
listed and unlisted securities. The Consideration of
HK$60,000,000 for the sale and purchase of the sale
shares shall be settled by CWIIL upon completion in
cash or in such other manner as may be agreed by the
CWIIL.
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51. Events after the reporting period (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(continued)

The completion of Target Company 1 shall be
conditional upon: (i) CWIIL being satisfied with the
results of the due diligence review on Target Company 1;
(ii) the warranties given by Party A under the agreement
remaining true, accurate and complete in all material
respects; and (iii) all necessary consents and approvals
required to be obtained on the part of CWIIL in respect
of the agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereby having been obtained. If the conditions have not
been fulfilled (or waived by CWIIL as the case may be)
on or before 31 March 2025, or such later date as Party
A and CWIIL may agree, the agreement shall cease and
neither party to the agreement shall have any obligations
and liabilities towards each other thereunder save for
any antecedent breaches of the terms thereof.

The acquisition of Target Company 1 has been
completed on 28 February 2025, Target Company 1
will be accounted as subsidiary of the Company and its
financial results will be consolidated with the Group for
the year ending 31 December 2025.

Details of the transactions were disclosure in
announcement of the Company dated 31 December
2024.

On 31 December 2024, an independent vendor (“Party
B”), a merchant and CWIIL, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into the agreement pursuant
to which the CWIIL has agreed to purchase and Party
B 2 has agreed to sell the sale shares, representing
51% of the issued share capital of the target company
(“Target Company 2”) for a total Consideration of
HK$60,000,000. Target Company 2 is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and is
principally engaged in investment holdings including
but not limited to investments in listed and unlisted
securities. The Consideration of HK$60,000,000 for the
sale and purchase of the sale shares shall be settled by
CWIIL upon completion in cash or in such other manner
as may be agreed by the CWIIL.
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51. Events after the reporting period (continued)
(ii)  (continued)

The completion of Target Company 2 shall be
conditional upon: (i) CWIIL being satisfied with the
results of the due diligence review on Target Company 2;
(ii) the warranties given by Party B under the agreement
remaining true, accurate and complete in all material
respects; and (iii) all necessary consents and approvals
required to be obtained on the part of CWIIL in respect
of the agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereby having been obtained. If the conditions have not
been fulfilled (or waived by CWIIL as the case may be)
on or before 31 March 2025, or such later date as Party
B and CWIIL may agree, the agreement shall cease and
neither party to the agreement shall have any obligations
and liabilities towards each other thereunder save for
any antecedent breaches of the terms thereof.

The acquisition of Target Company 2 has been
completed on 28 February 2025, target Company 2
will be accounted as subsidiary of the Company and its
financial results will be consolidated with the Group for
the year ending 31 December 2025.

Details of the transactions were disclosure in
announcement of the Company dated 31 December
2024.

(iii) On 28 February 2025, the Company entered into a
deed of offset (“Deed of Offset”) with Morley Way
Limited, Top Billion, CWIIL, Vendor A, sole shareholder
of Vendor A, Vendor B, Party A and Party B and agreed
that the acquisition considerations of Target Company
1 and Target Company 2 with an aggregate amount of
HK$120,000,000 shall be offset by (a) the refund of
approximately HK$42,254,000 from Vendor B, being
part of the consideration paid by Morley Way Limited
in relation to the acquisition of the issued share capital
of Senworth Limited (Note 26(iii)); (b) the repayments
of prepayments of approximately HK$51,493,000 from
Vendor A as a result of the Termination Agreement
in returning the purchase consideration of the
AIGC Software; and (c) the remaining amount of
approximately HK$26,253,000 due from Vendor A
included in the Group’s loan receivables.

52. Approval of the consolidated financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March
2025.
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